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Financial Highlights

Bl a2

Statement of Profit or Loss and B R HEMEEEAK Year ended 31 December
Other Comprehensive Income BEt+t-A=+—HLEFE
RMB million
AREBET
2019 2018 Changes
Continuing HEY —E—hE —E— £ )
CONTINUING OPERATIONS SIS TS
Revenue e 306.5 206.4 48.50%
Gross Profit EN 102.5 90.0 13.89%
Profit before tax from FRE A & 575 2 R A )
continuing operation 68.6 72.8 (6.77%)
Profit the year from continuing operation & [E 5 B 48 & 2 75 255 7 51.0 57.5 (11.30%)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS BRIEER
Profit for the year from discontinued FEERILERZEN
operations 84.0 29.2 187.67%
Profit for the year FEEF 135.0 86.7 55.71%
Profit attributable to shareholders of ZN/NEVE g
the Company 113.9 80.8
Basic BER
— For profit for the year —FERF RMBAR %164 cents?  RVBARH20.4 cents
— For profit from continuing operations ~ — ¥ & & & ¥ 75 2% A RMBARK73cents?  RMBARH145cents?
Dividend per shar (HK cents) B E (BIL)
—interim —E 2.0 3.3
— final — R EA 3.0 2.2
— combined —iRE 5.0 55
31 December
Statement of Financial Position BRI TR +=RAR=+—H
RMB million
ARBBHEET
2019 2018 Changes
—E-hF —T—N\F BE)
Non-current assets ERBEE 920.6 269.0 +242.23%
Current assets MEEE 740.7 532.2 +39.18%
Current liabilities mE B & (132.8) (179.7) (26.10%)
Net current assets MBEEFE 607.9 352.5 +72.45%
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (91.5) (21.5) +325.58%
Net assets FEE 1,437.0 599.9 +139.54%
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Revenue (proportion)

Financial Highlights
RS

Profit Attributable to Shareholders

EEWE (E) of the Company
For the year ended 31 December 2019 NN B R EEAL SR
BHE-Z-—NWF+-A=t+—HLEE
AR¥T T
MERE TR 92,144 80,751 113,895
T 120,000 — ' ! '
Properties Investment
RMAA TS 0.04%
RMAA Services
10.95% 100,000 —
%é&j}ﬂl 80,000 —
Dyeing and
Processing
20.21%
60,000 —
40,000 —
tERES
Production and 20,000 —

Trading of PFY
68.79%

Gross Profit Margin
EME

%
30 —

27.8% 23.0%

25.0%

Wrim R 44
EERES
Production and
Trading of PFY

ER=E
Gross Profit
(Y Elge]ly

21.1%

FeERMMT
Dyeing and
Processing

ERIZE
Gross Profit
Margin

36.4%

RMAA RIS
RMAA Services

WERE
Properties
Investment

ER=
Gross Profit
Margin

27.6%

ERIZE
Gross Profit
Margin

92.9%
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Corporate Information
~al&aidl

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jidong (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 29 November 2019)
Mr. Li Conghua
Mr. Ma Qinghai
Mr. Xu Wensheng (appointed on 29 November 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Wai Ling
Mr. Shiping James Wang
Dr. Wang Huaping

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairladly)
Mr. Shiping James Wang
Dr. Wang Huaping

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman)
Mr. Shiping James Wang
Dr. Wang Huaping

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairtadly)

Dr. Wang Huaping

Mr. Xu Wensheng (appointed on 29 November 2019)
Mr. Zhao Jidong (resigned on 29 November 2019)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Li Cheng

Ms. Yeung Wing Kwan (appointed on 29 November 2019)

Mr. Zhao Jidong (resigned on 29 November 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yeung Wing Kwan (appointed on 31 May 2019)

Ms. Lo Lok Ting Teresa (Solicitor) (resigned on 31 May 2019)

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO HONG KONG LAWS

Chiu & Partners
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LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO PRC LAWS
Mr. Wang Shungen of Zhejiang Baoxuan Law Firm
REGISTERED OFFICE

2/F, Century Yard, Cricket Square,
P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman, KY1-1103,
Cayman lIslands

HEADQUARTER AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit C2, 29/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre
No. 18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.chinaysgroup.com
STOCK CODE

3608

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
P.O. Box 10008, Willow House, Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY1-1001, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54,

Hopwell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China
CITIC Bank
Agricultural Bank of China
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

Li Cheng Z
Chairman and Executive Director |

TERPITEE

In 2020, the PRC government is expected to further tighten its
environmental policies, which exerts pressure on the domestic dyeing
and processing industry. Small-scale enterprises lack the funds to
equip with environmental protection equipment, together with the weak
consumption sentiment of the globe brought by the trade war resulting
in significantly lower demand from major end customers of clothing
and home textile products, both of which will contribute the further
consolidation within the industry, and therefore Sales orders will gradually
converge to the leading enterprises. As a normative leading enterprise
in the industry, the Group has advantages in dyeing technology and
environmental protection equipment. Under the challenging operating
environment, the Group will fully capitalize its advantages in scale to
maintain the order quantity at an ideal level. Also, the Group will take
such opportunity to identify acquisition targets in the upstream and
downstream industry chain for further expanding its industrial layout.
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In addition, the Group continues to focus on the development of
diversified businesses with high profit margin. Yongsheng Plaza,
a building under construction of the Group located at Xiaoshan
Economic and Technological Development Zone, Hangzhou City,
with main structure topped out in 2019, is expected to complete
the interior decoration in the second half of the year and start
investment promotion around Chinese New Year of 2021. With the
convening of the G20 Summit and the coming of the 2022 Hangzhou
Asian Games, Yongsheng Plaza is expected to become one of the
representative buildings of Xiaoshan, even of Hangzhou. With the
significant improvement of the surrounding facilities, the rents of the
Group’s commercial and financial office units in Xiaoshan Economic
and Technological Development Zone, Hangzhou City will significantly
increase in the coming new year. The management is of the view that
the urbanisation and development process in the PRC will continue to
ascend in the future, and it believes that there will be a positive outlook
and development to Hangzhou, which in turn will drive the residential or
commercial demand in the region. The investment properties held by the
Group will diversify the Group’s income sources and bring potential for
future capital appreciation, which is beneficial to the long-term investment
and sustainable development of the Group as a whole.

In 2020, the Group will also continue to develop the RMAA project in
Hong Kong in a stable manner. After the completion of the acquisition
of Widely Construction & Engineering Limited, the Group has started
to tap into the RMAA and fitting-out works sector in Hong Kong
with participating in a number of outdated property upgrading and
government urban renewal plans. With sufficient orders in hand currently,
the Group believes that this business segment will also yield considerable
returns in 2020.

In addition to investment opportunities in mainland China and Hong
Kong, the Group has also continued to seek international investment
projects in a bid to expand its business segments and thus disperse
operational risks. After detailed investigation, the Group believes that
the municipal infrastructure industry in Southeast Asian countries has
investment potential-driven by China’s the Belt and Road Initiative, the
urbanization and industrialization process in Southeast Asian countries
have accelerated, their economic growth has strong momentum, and
their government and residents are in great demand for improving
municipal infrastructure, providing the Group with good investment
opportunities. In particular, the water industry is a public utility with rigid
demand and good cash flow. Based on the country’s strategic policy and
the Group’s abundant financial resources, the Group is planning to set
up a joint venture platform to develop the Southeast Asian water works
market with emphasis on water supply and sewage treatment.

Chairman’s Statement
FRERS
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

As the new year has ushered in a new journey, Yongsheng Advanced FE—FFRR T FAVERR - KB FT M RS R # L
Materials will stay true to the mission and adhere to the enterprise spirit BR(HE A B2 28 ¥ b ERe &
of “Honesty, Cooperation, Reciprocity, Learning and Innovation” to carry TEESRSEWHMITERRRARES  EmisEmE
out substantive compliance operation, control risk strictly and closely REBETFMNANEE K kBB FITEK AR NE
focus on the essential needs of customers at the market level, with an R EmE R M- Bt RER - RMESEERIER
aim to truly build Yongsheng into a leading high-end differentiated brand TETERS FEVECERBEE U TLE
in the industry. At the same time, we will also actively seize opportunities BHEATREACEEBE &k RERREZTEZM
in different industries and continue to identify high-return projects, so as EREE 2BETRSURREMEBZH —BE UKD
to diversify the business portfolio and maximise asset value. Finally, on SR EEBUAR OB -

behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to the

management, all employees, Shareholders and business partners for

their continuous support and trust.

Li Cheng *E
Chairman =W
Hong Kong, 31 March 2020 BE R ZTF=A=+—H
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MARKET REVIEW

Amid the unstable international political and economic situations caused
by the continuously intensified Sino-American trade war and impacted
by uncertainties in geopolitics, the market held a wait-and-see attitude
in 2019. The trade conflicts caused pressure to China’s overall textile
manufacturing industry. With certain improvements in the overall
economic situation in the second half of 2019 as compared to the first
half, the Group continuously optimized its advantages and grasped
favorable opportunities to launch new products, keeping a firm foothold
in the difficult times.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The Group is principally engaged in the textile-related business in
China, including (i) production of differentiated polyester filament yarn
(“PFY”) and trading of PFY, which had discontinued as at November
2019; and (i) dyeing and processing of differentiated polyester filament
fabric. The Group is also engaged in the provision of renovation,
maintenance, alteration and addition services (“‘RMAA services”)
and properties investment. During the Year under Review, the Group
restructured its business and disposed of companies engaged in the
production of differentiated PFY and trading of PFY in order to fully
develop and enhance technical capacity in dyeing and processing of
differentiated polyester filament fabric in the long term for grasping growth
opportunities and satisfy customers’ demands in such high-added-value
market, thereby creating greater value for shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”).

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

During the Year under Review, the Group recorded a turnover from
continuing operations (i.e. excluding the production and trading of PFY)
of approximately RMB306.5 million include, representing an increase in
approximately 48.5%, as compared to approximately RMB206.4 million
(i.e. excluding the production and trading of PFY) in 2018. The gross
profit was approximately RMB102.5 million, representing an increase
of approximately 13.9% from approximately RMB90.0 million in 2018.
The gross profit margin slightly decreased to approximately 33.4% from
approximately 43.6%, which was mainly due to (1) the decrease in overall
demand in the textile industry in 2019 as a result of the Sino-American
trade war; and (2) decline in product price resulting from intensified
competition in the industry.

Business Review
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Business Review
EigoEa

During the Year under Review, the revenue derived from dyeing and
processing of differentiated polyester filament fabric, provision of
RMAA services and property investment respectively accounted for
approximately 64.8%, 35.1% and 0.1% of the turnover from the Group’s
continuing operations, respectively; while the operating profit of such
three business segments accounted for approximately 70.6%, 29.0%
and 0.4% of the operating profit from the Group’s continuing operations,
respectively.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Group completed the disposal of companies engaged in the
production and trading of PFY in November 2019. Upon completion of
such disposals, (i) approximately 70% of the equity interests in Hangzhou
HUVIS Yongsheng Chemical Fiber Limited* (#71 M JE %k {5k 2% {6 4
AR A A ; (i) approximately 67% of the equity interests in Nantong
Yongsheng HUVIS Fiber Advanced Materials Co., Ltd.* ( & 38 7k B E
W EFT MR BR AR ; and (i) approximately 70% of the equity
interests in Jiangsu Yongsheng High Polymer Advanced Materials
Research Institute Company Limited* (T &k 5k 5% & 2 F #1 ¥ £H 7 58 Fr
AR A 7)) were owned by a company controlled by Mr. Li Cheng (“Mr.
Li"), a controlling shareholder, an executive Director and the Chairman of
the Company, at a total consideration of RMB173,916,400 (equivalent to
approximately HK$197,726,000). For details of such disposals, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 26 July 2019, 16 August
2019, 23 September 2019 and 29 November 2019.

During the Year under Review, the turnover from discontinued operations
was approximately RMB675.6 million, representing approximately an
increase of approximately 42.6% as compared to RMB473.76 million in
2018. The gross profit from discontinued operations was approximately
RMB143.4 million, increased by approximately 114.8%, as compared to
RMB66.8 million in 2018. The gross profit margin increased from 14.1%
in 2018 to 21.1% of the Year under Review.

OVERALL BUSINESS REVIEW OF THE
GROUP

During the Year under Review, the Group recorded a revenue
of approximately RMB982.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 44.4% from RMB680.2 million in 2018. The gross profit
was approximately RMB245.9 million, increased by approximately
56.8% from RMB156.8 million in 2018. In all, profits attributable to
shareholders reached approximately RMB113.9 million with an increase
of approximately 41.0% from approximately RMB80.8 million for the
corresponding period in 2018. The earning per share of the Company
(“Share”) was approximately RMB0.164 (earning per Share in 2018:
RMBO0.204).
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DIFFERENTIATED POLYESTER FILAMENT
FABRIC DYEING AND PROCESSING

Located in Hangzhou and recognized as “High and New Technology
Enterprise” by Chinese government, Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Dyeing
and Finishing Co. Limited (“Yongsheng Dyeing”), being a subsidiary of
the Company, is principally engaged in polyester filament fabric dyeing
and processing and has been honored as a provincial technology
research and development center.

During the Year under Review, with weakening global consumption
sentiment as a result of the Sino-US trade friction, demands from the
Group’s major end customers for apparel and home textile products
significantly declined as well. As for the supply side of the industry, the
Chinese government continued to tighten policies on environmental
protection, imposing pressure on domestic dyeing and processing
industry, especially smaller-sized companies lacking capital to invest
in the environmental protection equipment, which further promoted
the market consolidation. As a regulated leader in the industry, the
Group was competitive by owning the relevant dyeing technology
and environmental protection equipment and therefore can maintain
satisfactory order volume under the severe business environment. During
the Year under Review, segment revenue was approximately RMB198.5
million, representing a decrease of approximately 3.8%, as compared
to approximately RMB206.4 million in 2018. As the fierce industry
competition resulted in the drop of product prices, the gross profit margin
of the dyeing and processing business declined from approximately
43.6% to 36.4%, but the overall gross profit margin remained at a high
level. Yongsheng Dyeing continued to explore new markets and develop
new technologies during the Year under Reivew. Other than the apparel
market, the successfully developed Italian velvet, which Yongsheng
Dyeing has commenced production during the Year under Review, was
well received in the market.
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Business Review
EigoEa

PROVISION OF RMAA SERVICES

In February 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of 100%
issued share capital of Summer Power International Inc. (“Summer
Power”) at an aggregate consideration of HK$206 million (including
(i) payment by HK$6 million in cash; and (ii) settlement by allotting
and issuing 80,000,000 consideration shares at the price of HK$2.50
per consideration share). Widely Construction & Engineering Limited
(“Widely”) is wholly owned by Summer Power. It mainly provides two
categories of work, namely (i) renovation and maintenance works;
and (i) alteration and additional works and fitting-out works. Upon
completion of such acquisition, the Group has begun to engage in the
RMAA and fitting-out works sector in Hong Kong. It has participated in
multiple programs on upgrading obsolete properties and government
urban construction and acquired 14 new projects throughout the Year
under Review, which further diversified the Group’s revenue model.
During the Year under Review, the Group recorded the segment
revenue of approximately RMB107.6 million with a gross profit margin of
approximately 27.6% and had approximately 55 projects on hand with a
total contract sum of over HK$260 million.

PROPERTIES INVESTMENT

The property assets held by the Group include (i) Yongsheng Plaza,
a building under construction located at Xiaoshan Economic and
Technological Development Zone, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC with an aggregate gross floor area of approximately 64,547.20
square meters with 24 storeys above the ground and 3 storeys under
the ground. The roofing work was completed during the Year under
Review. It is planned that the completion inspection will be conducted in
the first half of 2020, and the interior decoration will be completed in the
second half of the year. It is expected that Yongsheng Plaza would put
into commercial use in early 2021. Positioned as a high-end commercial
office building and apartment, Yongsheng Plaza is expected to solicit
tenants that are mostly large enterprises. With the advent of G20 Summit
and the Asian Games, Yongsheng Plaza is expected to become one of
the representative buildings in Xiaoshan or even Hangzhou. The Group
also owns eight office units for commercial uses in a building located at
Xiaoshan Economic and Technological Development Zone, Hangzhou
City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC with an aggregate gross floor area of
approximately 2,648.78 square meters. Such office units generated
a rental income of approximately RMB424,000 during the Year under
Review. With enhanced ancillary facilities in the neighborhood, the
rental for 2020 will be much higher upon expiry of the lease contract at
the end of 2019. The Group believes that the property investment is a
stable business with strong resistance to pressure. Xiaoshan District is
a key development region with huge development prospects in Zhejiang
Province, and its continuous development will drive the residential and
commercial demand in the region. The appreciation potential of the
investment property owned by the Group in such region will contribute to
the asset structure and sustainable development of the Group.
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PROSPECTS

In 2020, the Sino-American trade war for the first phase has been
concluded at the beginning of year, and US has agreed to reduce the
tariff for Chinese goods worth US$120 billion by half to 7.5%, and
cancel tariffs in other plans, which has eased the tense trade barrier.
The output and delivery by the Group in the first quarter in 2020 are
expected to be affected by the strict preventive measures adopted by
the Chinese government and the postponed resumption of operation of
the manufacturing industry after the Spring Festival since the outbreak of
COVID-19 at the beginning of year. However, the Group believes that the
effect of the epidemic will not last long. The Group will closely monitor the
development of the situation and properly adjust its business strategies
and take corresponding measures, in order to minimise the effect on the
overall capacity and output of the Group for the year ending 2020.

The dyeing and processing of differentiated polyester fabrics are
the development priority of the Group. Under the rough business
environment, the Group will take advantage of opportunities to
continuously conduct research and develop on new technologies,
especially dyeing related technologies, and expand the market share
based on technological enhancement. The Group is proactively
seeking merger and acquisition targets, so as to further expand the
business scale and market share. Meanwhile, the Group will continue
to increase investments in environmental protection in response to
policy requirements, in order to maintain its competitive edge as a large
enterprise. In addition, it has realized stable development of RMAA
services and will continue to develop more public and private engineering
projects, in order to enlarge market share with professional strength. In
terms of the property investment, in addition to the expected significant
increase in the rental income from eight office units for commercial uses
owned by the Group, with the gradual completion of the Yongsheng
Plaza as scheduled, it is expected that there will be increase in revenue
derived from investment property in 2021, and it is planned to introduce
long-term leases of high-quality large enterprises, which will contribute
stable income to the Group.

The Group will continue to explore different markets and diversify its
products and customer base of each segment, in order to enlarge
the market share. The Group has been actively seeking to diversify its
revenue sources in order to bring valuable returns to the Shareholders.
On 5 March 2020, the Company entered into a letter of intent with an
independent third party regarding development, investment, operation
and management of hydra-related projects. For further details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 5 March 2020.

The Group will also continuously research and develop new products in
response to customer demands and popular market trends. Despite the
fickle global economic environment, the Group believes that, based on
its diversified business and technological advancement, it can endure
cyclical economic fluctuations, realize sustainable development and
capital appreciation, and maximize Shareholders’ interests.
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Financial Review
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REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue and
gross profit by the Group’s business segment for the year ended 31

Wz & EF

TR AEEBRE "S- AF+-A=+—HLF
PR BT 5 HBIH rl s R E AR

December 2019:
Revenue change
between
2019 2018 2019 and 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F —E-NFH
RMB’000 RMB’000 —E-N\FH
Revenue g ARETR AR®T R Wz B
1. Production and trading of PFY 1R RHAEENRES 675,637 473,760 42.61%
(discontinued operations) (BARIEET)
2. Dyeing and processing 2246 R IT 198,545 206,420 (3.82%)
(continuing operations) (FECEER)
3. RMAA services 3. RMAAR 7% 107,570 N/A N/A
(2019 new businesses) (ZE—NF TiE A TEA
I EERS)
4. Property investment 4 ERE 424 N/A N/A
(2019 new businesses) (ZEBE—h#F iE A TE A
g E)
982,176 680,180 44.40%

Revenue of the Group in 2019 was approximately RMB982.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately 44.40% from approximately
RMB680.2 million as compared with last year. The increase in revenue of
the Group was mainly due to the revenue contribution from new products
launched by the Group’s PFY production segment and new revenue
contribution from RMAA services since March 2019. The business
segment of production and trading of PFY was disposed of since
November.

14 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2019

AEER T —AFHRSHAEAREIS22HEE T

BARFHHAREES0.28 BT N4944.40% - 25K E
M INE B RARAEBN KRG RGEERR
EmHBRAEERR UAREABZFT—NF=ARMAA
RISHFMATE - R RAEERE S EKIREE
+—AkHE-



Financial Review

i)

Gross profit
change between

2019 2018 2019 and 2018

s —ZF-N —E-NFH

RMB’000 RMB’000 —E-\EH

Gross profit EX ARET R ARBTT EFNBH

1. Production and trading of PFY 1R ERAEERES 143,447 66,790 114.8%

(discontinued operations) (BARIEHT)

2. Dyeing and processing 2246 R IT 72,359 89,987 (19.6%)
(continuing operations) (FBREEL)

3. RMAA services 3. RMAARRTE (== 29,700 N/A N/A

(2019 new businesses) —NFEFILER) TEA TEA

4. Property investment AMEHRE (ZZE—H 394 N/A N/A

(2019 new businesses) FHILETE) TEA @A

245,900 156,777 56.8%

Gross profit of the Group in 2019 was approximately RMB245.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 56.8% as compared with the
same last year. The increase in revenue of the Group was mainly due to
the net effects of the followings: (i) the new PFY products launched in the
Period under Review had relatively high gross profit; and (i) unit price of
the Group’s differentiated PFY dyeing services dropped significantly as a
result of the increasing competition in the industry.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by
approximately RMB8.8 million, representing an increase of approximately
81.9% for the Year under Review. The increase was mainly attributable to
the increase in revenue and cost of warehousing and transportation.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 39.5% from
RMB64.1 million, primarily due to the increase in legal and professional
fees and also research and development costs.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by approximately 88.0% to RMB2.9 million,
primarily due to the financing of properties investment.
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CASH FLOWS HERhE
2019 2018
—E-hF —Z— )\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTT
Net cash flows from operating activities LEEFBREeNEFE 163,426 57,363
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREEBFARESREFE (237,787) (34,694)

BEEEE, (FTH)

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities ReREFHE 78,045 (31,541)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FREEARESEFEYD 148,679 144,573

For the year ended 31 December 2019, net cash generated from
operating activities was approximately RMB163.4 million, representing a
significant increase as compared with 2018, mainly due to the increase in
operating profit from discontinued operations.

Compared with 2018, the cash flow used in investing activities increased
significantly to approximately RMB237.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, which was mainly attributable to the funding used in the
construction of Yongsheng Plaza.

Net cash generated from financing activities was approximately RMB78.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, mainly due to proceeds
from additional bank loans during the Year.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and bank balances,
including pledged deposits amounted to approximately RMB148.7
million (31 December 2018: approximately RMB147.3 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the total bank borrowings of the Group was
approximately RMB95.5 million (31 December 2018: approximately
RMB37.7 million).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s key financial ratio
reflecting its liquidity and gearing level, were as follows:

HE-S-AET-A=T-ALEE EEEBH
BRLFEANAREICSITET B-B—/\FA
B TOE B R AN S A LEE R 2 E T
0

BT \F BE_E-NF+-_A=+—HLF
B RETHIARESRENBENEHARE237.8
BB NEERHRBEERKEKNE-

HE-_Z-NAF+-RA=+—BILFE BEBHHA
SHEFRORAREBOAE L NEEEHANF
MFTILIRITE RN TS FRIA -

RBEERMBER

R-TZ—NAF+-A=+—8 ALEWNBEL RIET
% (BREERFOHNAEARB1487TEE T (=
- \F+ZA=+—H HAREE14738ETT) °

RIE-NF+-_A=+—B ALEHRTERE
B AANRESSEET(ZE—N\F+_A=+—
B:#HARBIT7TEET) °

RZBE-NFR-_Z-NEF+_A=1+—RH F&E
RBHEREE S KRB EKFHBRMBELLRMT

2019 2018

—E-hF —ZT—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T T AREFIT

Current ratio BN = 5.58 2.96
Debt to equity ratio B EHEERE X 0.07 0.07
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Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and
related hedge

The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China with most of the
transactions settled in Renminbi (“RMB”), except for the business of
provision of RMAA service as it is conducted in Hong Kong with the
transaction settled in Hong Kong Dollars (HK$). The reporting currency of
the Group is RMB.

The Group is exposed to minimal foreign currency exchange risk.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits are predominantly in RMB. The
Company will pay dividends in Hong Kong Dollars if any dividends are
declared.

Employee benefits and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total workforce of 600
employees, which included 325 employee from discontinued operation
(31 December 2018: 579 employees). The employees of the Group
were remunerated based on their experience, qualifications, the Group’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions.

During the Year under Review, staff costs (including Directors’
remunerations and the salary of the employees from discontinued
operations) amounted to approximately RMB89.3 million (31 December
2018: RMB70.3 million).

The Group offers its staff competitive remuneration schemes. In addition,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible staff
based on individual’s and the Group’s performance.

The Group participated in the social insurance schemes operated by the
relevant local government authorities, which include retirement pension,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, industrial injuries insurance
and maternity insurance.

The Group emphasizes on team building and the Group’s success is
dependent on the contribution of all employees.

Financial Review
B[Ol gé

BE =2 % B = B K% A A 4 O

REBEERPRERELEEL RBEDXBUAAR
B (TARS])EE ERHERMAARTS E SR IN - T
HRZEBRBEBET BWABTEE -AEBKN A
BEEBARE-

7R ER (B S B (RS BEE LR o

FEBNREMRITEREIZUARBE - WEIR
BB AR BB AB TR R E -

BETEMNRMEBER

R-ZB-NF+-A=+—8 ~EEHF600%E
B ETEERECRLEEERBEHNIBHEE (=F
—NFETZA=+—H:579%EEB) - AEEESH
FMRBEELR ER AEERALRITHHER
FE e

REBEFE BEIRA(BRESHE RERIEEK
EBEHL)NAARKESIFET (ZE—\F+_A
=+—H: AR¥7036&T) °

AEEMEE TREARF NOFHETE - 1o &
SERBEEARARERRAASERB TRHERNB
TEAL R FE A4

AEES AN BUFBPIEEML RS RE
BRE - BERR KERR ITERBEESRR -

AEEEREFERRAEENRKNBEEREEET
M B R o

KB R ERAR 2019F#H

17



Financial Review
B ¥ (O] g

Significant investments held as at 31 December

R-B-—N\FER-B-NF+=A=+-—

2018 and 2019 BHEENEARE
Fair value at
Investment 31 December Type of
Assets Manager Custodian amount Agreement date 2019 investment
R-ZE-h&
+=-A=+-H
BEEEEA TEA REE HEREH MR FE REF|A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR
China Foreign Economy and Beijing Chaowai Street Sub-branch 25,000 13 November 2019 25,181 1
Trade Trust Co., Ltd. of China Merchant Bank Co.,
Ltd
FEISIMEEE S5 BREFITROBR DA —E-NE
BRAF IERBINKEZFT +—A+=R
Minsheng Wealth Management ~ China Merchants Securities 25,000 14 November 2019 25,230 1
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
RAEMEREEERARAR AEERROARRA —E-NE
+-Atma
Everbright Xinglong Trust China Everbright Bank 50,000 6 December 2019 50,285 2
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd., Beijing Branch
RREREEFXBEREETAT HEHRRITRMD AR A A —E-NE
IERA1T +=A/H
100,696
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Significant investments held as at 31 December

2017 and 2018

Assets Manager

BEEEEA

Minsheng Wealth
Management Co., Ltd.
REFEREEEFERRA

China Foreign Economy and
Trade Trust Co., Ltd.

PEHINEEE S
ERERAT

Note:

Custodian

AEA

China Merchants Securities
Co., Ltd.
BEEFROERAR

Beijing Chaowai Street
Sub-branch of China

Merchant Bank Co., Ltd.

BRRTRNDARRAT
b REIRE 2T

Investment
amount

REE
RMB’000
AR®T R

20,000

46,150

Type 1 investment refers to (i) money market funds; (i) bank deposits; (iii)
money market wealth management products; (iv) money market trust plan;
and (v) money market asset management products, etc..

Type 2 investment refers to (i) money market trusts; (i) private investment
funds; (i) money market asset management products; (iv) bond repurchase;
(v) money market funds; and (vi) bank deposits, etc..

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant investments held by
the Company as at 31 December 2019.

Financial Review
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R-B—+tER_B—N\EFE+=A=+—
AEENERKRE

Fair value at
31 December Type of
Agreement date 2018 investment
R=ZB-N\F
+=A=+-8
1% B 5 MR FE rREFH
RMB’000
AR®FR
17 July 2018 20,627 1
—E-N\F
+A++H
17 July 2018 47,507 2
—ZE-N\F
+A++H
68,134
GEE
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Directors and Senior Management

EERERERRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Cheng (“Mr. Li”)

aged 57, is an executive Director and the chairman (the “Chairman”) of
the Board. Mr. Li is also the chairman of the nomination committee under
the Board and one of the authorised representatives of the Company. Mr.
Li has more than 30 years of experience in textile and trading industry,
and is mainly responsible for overall business strategy and management
of the Group. From August 1985 to May 1993, Mr. Li had been engaged
in trading of textile products as a sole proprietorship. He worked as the
general manager of Xiaoshan Yongsheng Trading Company from March
1993 to November 1997, and from November 1997 to June 1999, he
assumed the role of general manager of Xiaoshan Yongsheng Chemical
Fiber Company Limited (currently known as Hangzhou Yongsheng Group
Limited, “Yongsheng Group”). He served as the general manager of
Hangzhou Yongsheng Weaving Limited (“Yongsheng Weaving”) from
June 1999 to April 2003. Since 2003, Mr. Li has been appointed as a
chairman of the board of directors of Yongsheng Group. Mr. Li has been
a senior economist since October 2013. Since August 2014, Mr. Li has
been a director of 71 5t Ef = 4 BHZ A% 17 B PR A & (Hangzhou Shining
3D Tech Co. Ltd., NEEQ stock code: 830978), the shares of which were
quoted on National Equities Exchange and Quotations (‘“NEEQ”) of the
PRC.

Mr. Li completed his professional study majoring in dyeing and
processing engineering in Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textile (now known as
Zhejiang Sci-Tech University) in July 1985. In March 2004, he completed
a course on corporate director advanced business administration
which was held by Ningbo Jianfeng Management Technology Research
Centre. Between 2006 and 2012, Mr. Li had also completed various
courses including the Senior Training Course on the Philosophy of New
Technology and Enterprise Growth—Growth enterprise and the Senior
Training Course on Financial Investment in Real Operations respectively
offered by the school of humanities and the school of media of Zhejiang
University, the Senior Training course for Business Administration
Executives offered by Zhejiang Gongshang University, the training course
for senior enterprise operators and managers in Hangzhou City on “356
Engineering Programme” in relation to investment, financing and capital
operation training offered by Fudan University. Mr. Li was appointed as
the deputy chairman of The Professional Committee of Zhejiang Province
Privately-operated Economic Research Centre in December 2002. Mr. Li
has completed the CEO Finance Program for China Enterprise in 2016,
which was held by the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.
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Mr. Li has been elected as a representative of the Hangzhou City
Xiaoshan District People’s Congress of the PRC from December 2016.
Mr. Li has been elected as a member of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan
District Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since May 2005 to December 2016. In November 2018,
Mr. Li was elected as the vice president of first session of Hong Kong
Hangzhou Chamber of Commerce. He was also elected as the chairman
of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Wenzhou Chamber of Commerce
in July 2010, the vice-chairman of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District
General Chamber of Commerce in December 2012, the standing council
member and vice-chairman of the China Chemical Fiber Association
in April 2012 and April 2015 respectively. In October 2008, Mr. Li was
named the “Staff Caring Outstanding Entrepreneur” of Hangzhou City
jointly awarded by the Federation of Trade Union of Hangzhou City
and the Industry and Commerce Joint Committee of Hangzhou City. In
February 2013, Mr. Li was awarded the “Outstanding Socialist Builder”
for the years 2010—2012 by the Office of China Hangzhou City Xiaoshan
District and The People’s Government Office of Hangzhou City Xianshan
District. Mr. Li is the uncle of Mr. Li Conghua, an executive Director.

Mr. Ma Qinghai (“Mr. Ma”)

aged 45, is an executive Director and the general manager of the
manufacturing division of Yongsheng Dyeing. Mr. Ma has more
than twenty years of experience in the textile industry, and is mainly
responsible for management and supervision of ordinary operation of
the Group’s dyeing business. Mr. Ma was the technical supervisor and
workshop officer of Zhejiang Hongli Group Limited Printing and Dyeing
Branch Company from August 1994 to February 2001. Mr. Ma held the
position of domestic trading manager of Yongsheng Group from January
2002 to July 2005 and was previously a director of Yongsheng Group.
Mr. Ma served as the vice factory director, factory director and deputy
general manager of Yongsheng Dyeing from August 2005 to February
2008, and has held the general manager position of Yongsheng Dyeing
since February 2008.
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In July 1994, Mr. Ma completed his professional study major in dyeing
and processing in Zhejiang Province Common Intermediate Professional
School. He completed the Senior Training Course for Chief Executive
Officer of Growth Enterprise offered by the school of humanity of
Zhejiang University in April 2007. He completed the course of Business
Management from Donghua University in July 2015 and obtained his
professional Diploma. Mr. Ma was awarded the “Progressive Individual
of Xiaoshan Dongpian Printing, Dyeing and Chemical Industry Provincial
Level Environmental Protection Key Regulatory Area Remediation
Work” by the People’s Government of Xiaoshan District of Hangzhou
City in October 2007. Mr. Ma obtained the award of “Outstanding
Contract Manager of Xiaoshan District” jointly offered by the Hangzhou
Administration for Industry and Commerce Xiaoshan Branch and
Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Enterprise Contract Management
Association in 2010.

Mr. Li Conghua (“Mr. Li CH”)

aged 46, is an executive Director. Mr. Li CH has more than 15 years
of experience in the textile industry, and was mainly responsible for
management and supervision of ordinary operation of the Group’s
trading business before the disposal of the trading business of textile-
related products by the Group in May 2015. Mr. Li CH is currently
responsible for conducting product market trend analysis. He worked as
a chemical fiber materials salesperson in the chemical fiber department
in Xiaoshan Yongsheng Trading Company Limited from June 1997 to
December 2000, and worked as a department manager in chemical
fiber department of Yongsheng Group from January 2000 to December
2004. Mr. Li CH has also completed the Senior Training Course for Chief
Executive Officer of Growth Enterprise offered by Zhejiang University in
January 2008. Mr. Li CH is the nephew of Mr. Li Cheng.

Mr. Xu Wensheng (“Mr. Xu”)

aged 53, is an executive Director, has over 30 years of experience in the
construction industry. He has joined the Group since 2016 and was the
vice general manager of the construction project of Yongsheng Plaza,
a building which is located at Xiaoshan Economic and Technological
Development Zone, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. Prior
to joining the Group, he was the general manager of each of Jiangsu
Zhongkai Properties Development Limited* (T #k /R Sl E H EZERE B R
‘A @] ) and Dalian Xinkongjian Properties Development Limited* ( X i
R ERE AR AT, which were companies established in
the PRC and were principally engaged in property development. Mr. Xu
obtained a bachelor’s degree from the Nanjing Institute of Architectural
Engineering* (R R i 2& T2 28t ) (currently known as Nanjing Tech
University (B8R T K ) ) in 1992.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (“Ms. Wong”)

aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director. She is also the
chairlady of the audit committee and the remuneration committee under
the Board. Ms. Wong has more than twenty-five years of experience in
accounting and auditing, and mainly provides her independent judgment
on strategy, performance, resources, code of conduct and other aspects
of the Company. She had worked in major international accounting firms
and local accounting firms before she set up her own accounting firm in
Hong Kong in 1993.

Ms. Wong is an independent non-executive director and the chairperson
of the audit committee of AVIC International Holdings Limited (Main Board
stock code: 161). She is also an independent non-executive director
and chairperson of the audit committee and remuneration committee
of Overseas Chinese Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (Main Board stock
code: 3366). Ms. Wong is a non-executive director of Hin Sang Group
(International) Holding Co. Limited (Main Board stock code: 6893). Ms.
Wong was an independent non-executive director of China Ruifeng
Renewable Energy Holdings Limited (Main Board stock code: 527)
between 16 May 2006 and 31 January 2019, an executive director of
Tonking New Energy Group Holdings Limited (previously known as JC
Group Holdings Limited) (GEM stock code: 8326) between 21 June
2013 and 18 October 2016, and an independent non-executive director
of Glory Flame Holdings Limited (GEM stock code: 8059) between 2
August 2014 and 22 March 2016.

Ms. Wong obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from University of Hong
Kong in November 1983 and a postgraduate diploma in accounting and
finance from the London School of Economics and Political Science,
University of London, in the United Kingdom in July 1985. She has been
registered as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since June
1991. Ms. Wong has become a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (‘FCCA”) and a fellow member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“FCPA”) since May 1995
and February 2001 respectively. Ms. Wong has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 7 November 2013.
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Mr. Shiping James Wang (“Mr. Wang”)

aged 59, is an independent non-executive Director. He is also a member
of the audit committee and the nomination committee under the Board.
Mr. Wang mainly provides his independent judgment on strategy,
performance, resources, code of conduct and other aspects of the
Company. Mr. Wang was the Foreign General Legal Counsel of Zhongxin
Law Firm Shanghai Branch from July 2009 to March 2013 and has been
the Foreign General Legal Counsel of Shanghai Hanyuan Law Firm since
June 2013.

Mr. Wang obtained a master degree of science in biochemical
engineering from Massachusetts Institute of Technology in May 1988.
He completed his Juris Doctor in Seton Hall Law School in June 1994,
Mr. Wang was admitted as an attorney at law in the Supreme Court of
New Jersey and the US District Court for the District of New Jersey in
December 1994. Mr. Wang has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 7 November 2013.

Dr. Wang Huaping (“Dr. Wang”)

aged 54, is an independent non-executive Director. He is also a member
of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee under the Board. Dr. Wang mainly provides his independent
judgment on strategy, performance, resources, code of conduct and
other aspects of the Company.

Dr. Wang has been serving as a professor and a doctoral advisor in the
Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering of Donghua University since
October 2002, and has been the associate dean of the Research Institute
of Donghua University since 2011. Dr. Wang is renowned for his research
in nanomaterials for fiber forming and polymer-based nanocomposite
fibers, spinning forming theory and processing technology, systems
of new clean production: ionic liquid/fiber-forming polymer and has
published a number of papers on those topics.

Dr. Wang is an independent director of Jiangsu Jiangnan High Polymer
Fiber Co. Ltd, a company which is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600527) and Yiwu Huading Polyamide Fibre Co.
Limited, a company which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601113). Dr. Wang was an independent director of Zhejiang
Unifull Industrial Fiber Co., Ltd, a company which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002427), and resigned on 4
January 2017.

24 ongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2019

SRR ([ £ Sl

9% BUFATEF TREFEETEZZE
SRR ZEEXEB - TALETERARAEKE KR
B BRMTRERNSE AR B LA E - TEER
TERNFLAR T -=F=-AEEREEMSE
BRRLEBSMBENEZABER YA T —=FX
AT LEB TR EMBSNERERR -

FEER—NANNFRARMEBEISBRIE £
ITREXBEBELEN RR—ANEFNARSE
Seton HalllZ B k@B L & -HR — LM EF
T AEEHENER N S SRR RITEA M Bt
EREMEK - EREAE—=F+—A+HE
EZAABUIERITES-

FEFEL((EEL])

B4 BUFATEF TREFEETEZZE
g FHNEESRERZEERB -TH LI EHAX
BIREE KB BREITAENFERERBILH

o

EE MDD

IBtA-TT-F+ARBIEEASBHERE
BIRBRHERE LR EEN RA-F——
FRUCEEASHERERE - THLREEH
KHBREAGKES S BN EH

IR FBREERS  BTER RBEAY
SRS ASERE CAURAERERERSE
WX

FERITRAIHIESHEERNERAA (LEH
ER G ETMAT BRI 600527) kESE
SBEROBRAF ( LEEFR S ETMHAA]
RS 601113) MBI ES - THET LEDTHT
ERXSHBERDERLAR (RINEHRZHA LT
MR A B AREE:002427 ) B ESE IR -
—tF—AMB&T-



Dr. Wang obtained a doctorate degree from the Faculty of Materials
Science and Engineering of Donghua University in March 2002. From
January 1989 to March 1992, Dr. Wang was employed by the China
Textile University (currently known as Donghua University) as a trainee
researcher from March 1992 to September 1995, Dr. Wang worked
at Donghua University as an officer of the Technology Laboratory of
Chemical Fiber Engineering Research Centre. Dr. Wang served as
an assistant researcher, a deputy officer, an officer, and an associate
researcher in the Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering from
March 1992 to September 2002. Dr. Wang was appointed as the
associate dean of the Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering
from November 2004 to April 2010. Since September 2008, Dr. Wang
has been a director of the Institute for Engineering Research Center of
Advanced Glass Manufacturing Technology.

Dr. Wang is the deputy director of the Gaoxin Fibers Professional
Committee of China Chemical Fibers Association, the deputy director
of Fibers Professional Committee of China Textile Engineering Society,
deputy director of Fibers Professional Committee of Shanghai Textile
Engineering Society, the deputy director of Industrial Standard Committee
of China Chemical Fibers Association, a committee member of Expertise
Committee of China Nonwovens & Industrial Textiles Association, the
expert of the Textile Industry Division of the National Development and
Reform Commission, a committee member of Technical Committee of
the Engineering Research Centre of the Textile Equipment of the Ministry
of Education and the deputy director of the Editorial Committee of China
Synthetic Fiber Industry. Dr. Wang has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 19 August 2014.

Please refer to the section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s
interest and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
under the “Report of the Directors” of this annual report for details
of interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations held
by the Directors and chief executive of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Feng Hao (“Mr. Feng”)

aged 37, is the head of finance department of the Group, and is mainly
responsible for financial reporting and treasury management for the
Group. Mr. Feng has more than 10 years of experience in accounting
and financial reporting. Mr. Feng joined Yongsheng Group in September
2018. He was the financial director of Raffles Resources (Shanghai)
Limited from October 2010 to August 2018. He also had been the vice
general manager in Raffles Resources (Shanghai) Limited from March
2016 to August 2018.

Mr. Feng completed his bachelor degree majoring in Communication
Engineering from East China Normal University in June 2006. He further
obtained a master degree of professional accounting and a master
degree of commerce from Deakin University in June 2010.

Mr. Liu Chun Kwok (“Mr. Liu”)

aged 43, is a director and general manager of Widely Construction
& Engineering Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. He is mainly
responsible for supervising the overall business strategies and major
business decisions of the Widely Construction & Engineering Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Liu obtained a science bachelor degree in
construction engineering and management from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2013. Mr. Liu has over 18 years of experience in the building
maintenance engineering industry. He served as a project manager
in several construction engineering companies. Mr. Liu has extensive
experience in planning, operation and management of maintenance
projects with different sizes and natures. He found Widely Construction &
Engineering Limited in March 2009.
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Mr. Chung, Kwok Mo John (“Mr. Chung”)

aged 51, holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from Macquarie
University, Australia in 1992 and is also a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia, with over 20 years of
experience in auditing, financial management and corporate finance. Mr.
Chung was an auditor in Arthur Andersen (an international accounting
firm) from 1992 to 1999. From 2000, Mr. Chung had held several senior
management positions, including chief financial officer, executive director
and independent non-executive director, in a number of listed companies
in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chung has joined the Group as a vice president of the Company
since February 2018. Currently, he is also an independent non-executive
director of each of the following listed companies on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”):

- B & S International Holdings Ltd. (Main Board stock code: 1705)
- YTO Express (International) Holdings Limited (Main Board stock
code: 6123)

- BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited (Main Board stock
code: 285)

- Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited (Main Board
stock code: 3363)

- Tokyo Chuo Auction Holdings Limited (Main Board stock code:
1939)
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Mr. Li Wenhua

Aged 49, is the director and the general manager of Yongsheng
construction project. Mr. Li Wenhua has more than 15 years of
experience in the commercial properties investment development
industry, and is mainly responsible for managing the Company’s daily
operations, supervising project engineering and investment promotion.
From 1996 to 2005, Mr. Li Wenhua was responsible for the Company’s
sales work in Hangzhou Yongsheng Group Limited. He worked as the
vice general manager of Zhejiang Yongsha Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. from 2006 to 2011. He assumed the role of general manager of
Tongxiang Yonghua Commercial Operation Management Co., Ltd. from
2012 to 2019. And since 2019, he served as the general manager of
Yonghao Investment Management Co., Ltd..

Ms. Yeung Wing Kwan (“Ms. Yeung”)

Aged 37, is the Company Secretary of the Company. Ms. Yeung is
an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She obtained a bachelor degree in commerce
from The University of Sydney and a master degree in corporate
governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She has over
10 years of company secretarial experience in listed companies in Hong
Kong. Ms. Yeung was the company secretary of China Daye Non-Ferrous
Metals Mining Limited (stock code: 661), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from September 2012 to August 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company was committed to achieving and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold transparency, accountability and independence in all aspects
of business and endeavour to ensure that affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group’s corporate governance practices are based on the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). During the Period under Review, the Board considered that the
Company had complied with the Code.

The Board will periodically review the Company’s current corporate
practices and procedures and will maintain and further enhance the
standard of corporate governance practices of the Company, in order to
ensure it is in line with international and local best practices and maximise
the interests of the Shareholders, investors, employees, business
partners and the public as a whole.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the Model
Code and such code of conduct during the Period under Review.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the Group’s business. The Board includes a balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive Directors so
that independent judgement can be effectively exercised.

During the Period under Review and as at the date of this annual report,
the Board comprised four executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as follows:

Exg
EEENAMK
EFGARREEERFBNEE FHORERE

R-EEEERITESRBIUIRTEENGE
AR RIS RO T 5 8 3L H T

REBEAARAFHRES EEEHATOERT
EEN=RBUIFRTERENK:

Name of Director BEUA

Executive Director HITES

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman) THEE (FE)

Mr. Zhao Jidong (Chief Executive Officer) AR L (7THAEZ)

(resigned on 29 November 2019) (R=ZZ2—NEFE+—A=Z+NABET)
Mr. Li Conghua FHRES A

Mr. Ma Qinghai BEESLEE

Mr. Xu Wensheng (appointed on 29 November 2019)

Independent non-executive Director
Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. Shiping James Wang

Dr. Wang Huaping

The brief biographical details of and relationships among the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 20 to 28. Save as disclosed under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report, there
is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among Board members and in particular, between the Chairman and the
CEO.

During the Period under Review, the Board maintained a high level of
independence, with more than one-third of the Board comprised of
independent non-executive Directors, who had exercised independent
judgement. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications whenever the names of the
Directors are disclosed.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his or her independence pursuant
to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the confirmations received, the Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors satisfied the requirement of
independence under the Listing Rules.

Board meetings and general meetings

Board meetings are held regularly. In addition to regular meetings,
meetings are held as and when necessary under particular
circumstances. During the Period under Review, the Board meetings
were held. The Directors attended the meetings in person or by telephone
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”).

A record of the Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings and the
general meetings held during the Period under Review is set out as
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Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Board Number of general
meetings held meetings held
HEXRE HEXE
FETESS FRBETRRAE
BRXHE R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Cheng FHTAE 9/9 2/2
Mr. Zhao Jidong HEREE (RZT—NF 9/9 2/2
(resigned on 29 November 2019) +—AZTHhBEE)
Mr. Li Conghua THELL 9/9 2/2
Mr. Ma Qinghai 558%E 9/9 2/2
Mr. Xu Wensheng BXBEE (RZT—NF 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 29 November 2019) +—AZ+hBEZE)
Independent non-executive Directors BIUYFHTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERLZL 8/9 2/2
Mr. Shiping James Wang FHFEE 9/9 2/2
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFIEL 7/9 2/2

Mr. Xu Wensheng is appointed on 29 November 2019. Therefore he is
not entitled to attend any board meeting and general meeting before 29
November 2019.
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The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company were held on 27
May 2019. Our forthcoming AGM will be held on 29 May 2020. Our
Directors, chief financial officer and company secretary and other senior
executives of the Company will attend the AGM together with our external
auditors to answer any questions from the Shareholders. All Directors
treasure the opportunity to canvass the views of the Shareholders at the
AGM held annually.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management
of the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to discuss the overall strategies as well as operational and financial
performances of the Group. Certain matters are reserved for decisions
by the Board, including matters relating to: (i) the formulation of the
Group’s overall strategy and directions; (i) any material conflict of interest
of substantial Shareholders of the Company or Directors; (iii) approval
of the Group’s annual results, annual budgets, interim results and other
significant operational and financial transactions; (iv) changes to the
Company’s capital structure; and (v) major appointments to the Board.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group and implementation and execution of policies
and strategies decided by the Board to the executive Directors and
management of the Company.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including risk management, internal controls, those under D.3.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code and relevant compliance issues relating
to the business operation of the Group.

The Board reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior managers; develops, reviews and
monitors the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning
experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The
Directors collectively bring a variety of experience and expertise to the
Company.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The Company has established the nomination committee under
the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) on 7 November
2013. The Nomination Committee has from time to time identified
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and make
recommendations to the Board. The main consideration in selecting
candidates for directorships is whether their characters, qualifications and
experience are appropriate for the businesses of the Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract for a term of 3 years which may be terminated by either
party giving to the other party at least 3 months’ prior written notice.
All independent non-executive Directors are subject to rotation and re-
election at the AGM in accordance with the Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each
AGM, at least one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. All such retiring Directors, being eligible, may
offer themselves for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Li Conghua, Ms. Wong
Wai Ling and Dr. Wang Huaping will retire from office as Directors, being
eligible, and will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy on the Board shall hold office until the
next annual general meeting and shall there be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Xu Wensheng, who were appointed under Article 111
as an addition to the Board, shall hold office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Insurance of the directors and officers

The Company has arranged liability insurance for the Directors and
officers of the Group in respect of legal action against them which is in
compliance with code provision A.1.8 of the Code.

Induction and continuous professional development

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference materials
to enable them to familiarise with the Group’s business operations
and Board’s policies. The Company is committed to arranging and
funding suitable training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from time to time to
ensure that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the governance
policies of the Group. All the Directors also understand the importance of
continuous professional development and are committed to participating
in any suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training
received by the Directors during the Period under Review is set out
below:

EERERABNRE

ARBEETTRNTRRXEAG et E
ERAEESRAENERFLRBEERERA
BEEERR-

ABERRSEEXRRE

HMETEEREEESIRSEEN UEERAZAN
SEEBEEREETTRR -ARRBI REEE
FNRBEEXRERABRSLHELENEE WE -
EEFTHEBMNREFEFTER UEREED
HMEENEMRARERENREEREARANE
BEARKETHEE - 2REFTHAFEEE
BROEEN YR H2EREMSENFI UER
REFRENMBEKEE - REFRMMCH EF
REBEHAMEZNEINIREHIIDT

Types of continuous
professional development

programmes

HESXRRFAEER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Cheng FHMEAE 1
Mr. Zhao Jidong HEREE (RZT—NF
(resigned on 29 November 2019) +—A=+NB&EE) 1
Mr. Li Conghua FHREL A 1
Mr. Ma Qinghai SHEELE 1
Mr. Xu Wensheng BXBEE (RZE—NEF
(appointed on 29 November 2019) +—RAZ+hBEEZE) 0
Independent non-executive Directors BYKBITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling H5ERRT 1
Mr. Shiping James Wang Tt F s 1
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFIEL 1
Note: Bt
il Read relevant materials of workshops/internal trainings/updates on the 1, MEMT S AEEREEE MR REMm

Listing Rules and other applicable regulations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES EEZEE

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has AHMPEEERTEBRE ESeC BB EREZIR
delegated specific functions to three Board committees, namely the Audit FZEEEZEe AEZZEC REZES A
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, MEZEg FBEHINAT :

details of which are as follows:

Nomination Remuneration
Audit Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director BEEng EREEE REZEEE FMEES
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman) THEE(ERE) Chairman Member
*iE 4=
Mr. Zhao Jidong FHAER
(resigned on 29 November 2019) (R=E—h&F+—A8
—+hHET)
Mr. Li Conghua IS A4
Mr. Ma Qinghai SHELE
Mr. Xu Wensheng (appointed on BT Member
29 November 2019) (RZE—hF+—H B8
“t+tHhBEEZIT)
Independent Non-Executive Director &Y EHTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling HERXT Chairlady Chairlady
S FE
Mr. Shiping James Wang FHFEE Member Member
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL Member Member Member
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee under the Board (the “Audit Committee”) currently
consists of three independent non-executive Directors. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s financial
information, review and supervise the Company’s financial reporting
process and internal control procedures, nominate and monitor external
auditors and provide advice and comments to the Board. The Audit
Committee is established with specific terms of references which deal
clearly with the committee’s authority and duties and are available on the
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s internal control (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs
and budget) and risk management systems as delegated by the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
engagement of the external auditor for the audit and non-audit services.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

EREES

EEgE THERZES ([BRERE ) RA=M
B IFFATERAK - %T?é,\aﬁﬁix%ﬁE*
BARAIHNMEER  REEARA M
HWRERARBEERRF 28 RERINEZBENIA
AREseRHEARTR ERXBEFIHAR
BEHE BFEIPLESNBENEE LTIEHERK
B 32 P Ro AN X R A8 o

ERZEENIZRERREFEMITRNERR
REMBHRROTEN BEARAAMEE (B
ERARE ARAAGHEMBREBEABNE
BRER URRSNEIFEAREHREE) RER
EEGENBERE UERZERERREHREZR
FEZREHIIBEBRMAESTSREEZR B
ZEGERHERHER USHABRTRE -

There were three meetings held during the Period under Review and the REBBHA BIT=ZRkex BUZEENEND
attendance by each committee member is set out below: FIEREY T
Attendance/
Number of meetings
Members of the Audit Committee ERZEERE HEREEERE
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairladly) BEEBRRLT (£EF) 3/3
Mr. Shiping James Wang FiFEAE 3/3
Dr. Wang Huaping TEVHELT 3/3
During the Period under Review, the Audit Committee discussed and EESN EREENmAEHNEENFTH

reviewed the interim and final results of the Group and certain other
businesses. The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control was also
discussed at the meetings. The Audit Committee has also reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters including a review of the interim report, annual report
and the final result of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2019. The Group’s final results for the financial year ended 31 December
2019 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to
the Board for approval.
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The Audit Committee has also reviewed this annual report, and confirmed
that this annual report complies with the Listing Rules. In the opinion of
the Audit Committee, there are no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. There is no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

Auditors’ remuneration

The Group’s external auditors is Ernst & Young. The remuneration paid
or payable to the external auditors of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 comprised fees for audit services of approximately
RMB1,250,000 (2018: RMB950,000). During the year ended 31
December 2019, there was no non-audit service provided by the Group’s
external auditors.

Directors’ and auditors’ responsibilities for
financial statements

All Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. The
auditor of the Company acknowledges its reporting responsibilities in
the auditor’s report on the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The statement by the auditors of the
Company about their responsibilities for the financial statements is set out
in the independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared
the financial statements on a going-concern basis.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises one executive Director and
two independent non-executive Directors. The roles and functions
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is established with
specific terms of reference which deal clearly with the committee’s
authority and duties and are available on the website of each of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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During the Period under Review, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee has also reviewed the Board’s diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and nomination policy.

As part of the Board Diversity Policy, the Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance its
performance. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against selection criteria. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, which
would include but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination
Committee will from time to time review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

One meeting was held during the Period under Review and the
attendance by each committee member is set out below:

REEHAR REZESCRIEZTENRE AR
R YEFEBLFATEETNB L L -REBR
BEgTERNESEXREZTERR ([EEEHKE
SRACBE]) RIBEHE-

EREFEGMBE L TLBEN — ) - RARRRIAL
REESFENBEZTEBENREARRANRE -
MEEFERENZTEAUBARES RRA W
ZRMFEEABSRABELER - BB RE AR —
RIZ BB AELE T EE (BETRR) MR
FiR-XERBEES FXER & AERR
BEH ZEERERZBANRENAIRESSRM
MEBMERE REZBERKTRKAEE KRR
NEFEREZTORE UBRRETZAER-

REERHAR |77 —X8#% BUZBEEKENH
FRERAEINMT

Attendance/

Number of meetings

Members of the Nomination Committee REZEBRE HEXEEERE

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman) WAL (FE) 1/1

Mr. Shiping James Wang FHFEE 1/

Dr. Wang Huaping FEFIEL 11
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination RBE-Z-AF+ A=+ HIEBAFE &R
Committee has reviewed and discussed the composition, size ZESEHESTS ZHEM  REREE BILIERT

and structure of the Board, the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, re-election of Directors and appointment of Mr.
Xu Wensheng as an executive Director.

In considering the nomination of new directors, the Company will propose
the candidates to the Nomination Committee, which will review and make
recommendation to the Board on the expertise, skills and experience of
the candidates appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company.

The composition of the Board has a significant element of diversity, in
terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and gender.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the remuneration committee under
the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) which comprises one
executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
consulting the Chairlady of the Board about their remuneration proposals
for other executive Directors, making recommendation to the Board
on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management, by reference to, among
other things, market level of salaries paid by comparable companies, the
respective responsibilities of the Directors and senior management and
the performance of the Group. The Remuneration Committee’s authority
and duties are set out in written terms of reference that are posted on the
website of each of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic salary,
allowance and discretionary bonus.

Salary adjustments are made where the Remuneration Committee
takes into account performance, contribution and responsibilities of the
individual. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors and employees are
eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual's performance
during the year.

The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management.
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Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details

E BH# £ 4 B

Basic salary To reflect the market value of each individual Cash payment monthly ~ Reviewed annually with market trend
EX%& RBEEAZTIHEE BARENK BERMHBEELRT
Allowance To attract and retain employees Reimbursement Market conditions

28 Ral KRB EES e EER

Discretionary performance

bonus of the Company and individual performance goals
BERIREAL HENEE AARABEL B KENKRANRK

ERBEARERR

To motivate employees to deliver high levels of performance

Cash payment - Individual performance
— Company performance
- AARER

—RAlRHE
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Two meetings were held during the Period under Review and the
attendance by each committee member is set out below:

REERHAR BT TMASH SUZEEKENH
BRI :

Attendance/

Number of meetings

Members of the Remuneration Committee FHZEERE HEREEERE

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairladly) H5RELLT (£EF) 2/2

Mr. Zhao Jidong (resigned on 29 November 2019) HERLE (R-T—NF 2/2
+—AZ+hBEE)

Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL 2/2

Mr. Xu Wensheng (appointed on 29 November 2019) BXBEE (RZT—NF (Note)

T—AZThBEEZE) (HI5E)

Note: The Remuneration Committee did not hold any meeting after the
appointment of Mr. Xu Wensheng.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee has discussed and recommended to the Board for approval
of the Directors’ and senior managements’ remuneration of the Group
for the year of 2019, the service contract and remuneration for the
appointment of Mr. Xu Wensheng, as an executive Director and the
bonus payments to the Directors and senior management of the
Company in 2019.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is committed to managing business risks and maintaining a
proper and effective system of risk management and internal control to
safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets. On
30 December 2015 and 20 December 2018, the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee have been amended to include risk management
as part of the internal control of the Company. During the Period under
Review, the Board reported the risks associated with the Company and
the Audit Committee was satisfied that the risks have been properly dealt
with by the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of risk management and
internal control covering all controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board is satisfied that the Group had fully
complied with the Code in respect of internal controls during the Period
under Review.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group during the
Period under Review falls within the following band:
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REBEHRRN AERESREEZENFHFMFEANTFT
5 g -

Number of individuals

AE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 1,000,000/ 7T 10
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 0
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7T 24,000,000/ 7T 0
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 7T 25,000,000/ 7T 1
12

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 15 November
2018 (the “Prospectus”), Mr. Li Cheng and Ever Thrive Global Limited
are the controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”). To protect the Group from any potential competition,
the Controlling Shareholders has given an irrevocable non-competition
undertaking (the “Non-competition Undertaking”) in favour of the
Company on 7 November 2013. Pursuant to the Non-competition
Undertaking, each of the Controlling Shareholders has, among other
matters, undertaken with the Company that each of the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates (other than the Group) shall
not engage in any business which will or may compete with the business
currently and from time to time engaged by the Group. Details of the
Non-competition Undertaking have been set out in paragraph headed
“Relationship with our controlling shareholders — Non-competition
Undertaking” of the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance with
the terms of the Non-competition Undertaking during the Period under
Review. The independent non-executive Directors, having reviewed the
aforementioned annual declarations and made reasonable enquiry, are
satisfied that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the terms
of the Non-competition Undertaking during the Period under Review.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

On 31 May 2019, Ms. Lo Lok Ting Teresa (“Ms. Lo”) resigned as the
company secretary of the Company. Ms. Yeung Wing Kwan (“Ms.
Yeung”) was appointed as the company secretary of the Company on
the same day.

Ms. Yeung plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring
efficient and effective information flow within the Board and that the
Board'’s policy and procedures are followed.

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the
Chairman and CEO. All Directors may have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board
on governance and regulatory matters and facilitates the induction and
professional development of the Directors.

The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures
of the Board meetings are observed and providing the Board with
opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures of
the Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company Secretary
had received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is fully involved in the selection and appointment of the
Company Secretary.

The biography of the Company Secretary is set out in the section headed
“Directors and senior management” on page 28 of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) by way of cash or by other means
that the Board considers appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in
recommending dividends, to allow the Shareholders to participate in
the Company’s profits, and at the same time, to ensure the Company
to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company’s decision
to declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount of such
dividends will depend upon, among other things, the current and future
operations, financial condition, liquidity position and capital requirements
of the Group, as well as dividends received from the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates, which in turn will depend on the ability
of those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend. In addition,
any final dividends for a financial year will be subject to the approval
of the Shareholders. The declaration and payment of dividends by the
Company is also subject to any restrictions under the laws of Cayman
Islands, the laws of Hong Kong, the Company’s Amended and Restated
Memorandum and Articles of Association and any applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will continue to
review this Dividend Policy from time to time and the Board may exercise
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify this
Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no
assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any particular amount
for any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that any dividend will be
paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders, at the date of deposit of the requisition, holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles of
Association for including a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting.
The requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed “Convening an extraordinary general meeting by Shareholders”.
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, no person (other
than a retiring Director) shall be eligible for election to the office of Director
at any general meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head
office or at the registration office no earlier than the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting
and the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least seven days. The procedures for
the Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director is posted
on the website of the Company.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company has established and maintained a dialogue with
Shareholders by conveying information to the Shareholders and investors
through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports);
annual general meeting and other meetings that may be held; and all the
information submitted to the Stock Exchange for disclosure, as well as
corporate communications and other publications which shall be posted
on the website (http://www.chinaysgroup.com) of the Company.

The Company undertakes to convey information to the Shareholders and
investors in a timely and effective manner at all times.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary who will direct the
enquiries to the Board for handling. The contact details of the Company
Secretary are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Unit C2, 29/F, Tower 1,

Admiralty Centre,

No. 18 Harcourt Road,

Admiralty, Hong Kong

Tel No.: (852) 2776 5228

Fax No.: (852) 2994 9699

The Company will handle both telephone and written enquiries from the
Shareholders from time to time. Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns
will be forwarded to the Board and/or relevant committees of the Board,
where appropriate, to answer the Shareholders’ questions.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Constitutional documents

During the Period under Review, the Company did not make any changes
to the memorandum of association and Articles of Association of the
Company, the current version of which is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

Number of shares
The total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December

2019 was 749,655,890. The Company will periodically announce the
total number of its issued shares in its monthly returns.
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Important schedule for the Shareholders - AGM

An AGM of the Company will be held at 5/F, United Centre, 95
Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong on 29 May 2020. A circular
containing, among others, details of the AGM has been despatched to
the Shareholders together with this annual report.

Information for Hong Kong branch registrar

Tricor Investor Services Centre
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel No: (852) 2980 1333
Fax No: (852) 2810 8185
Email:is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Website: www.tricoris.com
Office Hours: 9:00 am — 4:30 pm
(Monday to Friday, except public holidays)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of complying
and applying with the Code but also about promoting and developing
a healthy and ethical corporate culture. The Company will continue to
review and, where appropriate, improve the current practices on the basis
of the experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views
and suggestions from the Shareholders to improve and promote the
transparency are welcomed.

On behalf of the Board

Li Cheng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised) of the
Cayman Islands on 19 April 2012. The registered office of the Company
is at 2/F Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman
KY1-1103, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in Hong
Kong is at Unit C2, 29/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt
Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong. The principal activity of the Company
is investment holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i)
production of differentiated polyester filament yarn (“PFY”) and trading
of PFY, which had discontinued as at November 2019); (ii) dyeing and
processing of differentiated polyester filament fabric; (iii) provision of
renovation, maintenance, alteration and addition services (‘RMAA
services”); and (iv) property investment.

Further discussion and analysis of the business activities of the Group,
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Business Review” as set out on pages 6 to 8 of this annual report. These
discussions form part of this report of the directors.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company and each member of the Group as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group and the financial conditions of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 98 to 254 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimise the Group’s environmental impact by
water-recycling initiatives, sewage treatment implementation, energy
saving and wastage reduction, and encouraging recycle of office supplies
and other materials. The Group also requires its factories to operate in
strict compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules
and possess all necessary permission and approval from the relevant
PRC regulators.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognise that employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to the sustainable development of the Group. The
Group is committed to building a close and caring relationship with its
employees and business partners and improving the quality of services to
the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The Group ensures all staff is reasonably remunerated and
its workers are provided with regular training courses on operation of
different types of machinery, as well as work safety. The Group strives
to motivate its employees with a clear career path and offer them
opportunities for advancement and improvement of their skills. The
Group also rewards its employees for their work performance through
incentives, such as bonuses and options, to motivate their continuous
contribution.

The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers and
has ongoing communications with its customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and physical
meetings to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the Mainland China while the ordinary shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The Group’s establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Group’s operation has complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong in all material respects.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the financial year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on
page 101 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately RMB892,932,000 (2018: approximately
RMB129,972,000) available for distribution to the Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share capital and share option scheme are set
out in notes 31 and 32 to the financial statements and the paragraph
headed “Share option scheme of the Company” below, respectively.

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend (the
“Final Dividend”) of HK$0.03 per Share for the financial year ended 31
December 2019. This, together with the interim dividend of HK$0.02
per Share that was paid in 2019, amounts to an aggregate dividend
payment of HK$0.05 per Share for the full financial year of 2019. The Final
Dividend, if approved by the Shareholders at the AGM, will be paid to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 5 June 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the financial
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 14 to the financial
statements.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the percentages of
major suppliers and customers of the Group of the purchases and sales
for the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

The aggregate purchases

Five largest suppliers accounted for 38.0%
The aggregate sales
Five largest customers accounted for 31.9%

So far as known to the Directors, other than those disclosed in the
section headed “Continuing connected transactions and related party
transactions” below, none of the Directors, their close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or substantial shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the above major suppliers or customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of approximately RMB396,000
during the financial year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB1,060,500).

BANK BORROWINGS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had bank
borrowings of approximately RMB95.5 million, which was mainly used for
the properties investment.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and up
to the date of this annual report were:

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman)

Mr. Zhao Jidong (resigned on 29 November 2019)
Mr. Li Conghua

Mr. Ma Qinghai

Mr. Xu Wensheng (appointed on 29 November 2019)
Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. Shiping James Wang

Dr. Wang Huaping
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Mr. Li Conghua, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Dr. Wang Huaping and Mr. Xu
Wensheng will retire as Directors at the forthcoming AGM. Being eligible,
they offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. None of the retiring
Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation). Details of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM are set out in the circular of the Company which had
been despatched to the Shareholders together with this annual report.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from 7 November
2016 (except for Dr. Wang Huaping, whose service contract commenced
on 19 August 2014 and Mr. Xu Wensheng whose service contract
commenced on 29 November 2019) subject to termination, among
others, by giving not less than three months’ notice in writing. Each of
such Directors will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the AGM every three years. Mr. Li Conghua, Mr. Xu Wensheng, Ms.
Wong Wai Ling and Dr. Wang Huaping are entitled to an annual director’s
fee of HKD100,000, as proposed by the Board and approved by the
Shareholders. Director’s fees are payable on a pro-rata basis for any non-
full year’s service. The remuneration of the Directors is determined with
reference to their duties, responsibilities and experience in the Company,
and the prevailing market conditions. No Directors have waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with the
Directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Period under Review or at any time during the Period
under Review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Period under Review.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance had
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of their subsidiaries
during the Period under Review.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save for the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during
the financial year ended 31 December 2019 was the Company, its
subsidiaries or its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary of that
ultimate holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the Period under Review and up to and including the date of
this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and based on the confirmations received, considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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ESSRES
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERBESTHRAERK®S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN HEROREESNEZRAE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, interests or short positions in the Shares, RZZE—NF+ZA=+—HB EFRARANES
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and any of its THRAERARARSEEMEE EZB (EXRLEH
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities ERIESTIEB A RBEGN (RERBESKRS])

and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Law of Hong Kong) (“SFO”) EXVER) B D - FEEERMOD R EEEDR - IF ﬁ E BIEE
held by the Directors and chief executive of the Company which have H R EIEFIEXVEET R8N BAE AL A R

been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to e EmX e (BEREBES MBS 1|7|<1F‘J ZEl RS
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short Y?ﬁi—r%ﬂi”‘{”ﬁjﬂﬁi%%ﬁm%m KB HINAK
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of NEBRES KB G EGRTFHELZMA
the SFO) or have been entered in the register maintained by the Company KR A B - RIE E AR A KT 81 0IR E<FRIE
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to PEIR= NN 7 NI ZFTMERIOAB T

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are as follows:

(A) Long position in the Shares and underlying (A REORAEEROGNEE
Shares
Number of
Shares and
underlying Approximate
Shares held/  percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature interested shareholding
i
BERBROR BAORE
BEEpR 5138 HEARGEE Bt
Mr. Li Cheng (“Mr. Li") (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 479,132,990 63.91%
FMuAE (TZRE]) (K1) R EE R
Mr. Ma Qinghai (“Mr. Ma”) (Note 2) Beneficial owner 7,075,677 0.94%
SEB/EE(BERE]) (Hit2) BB A
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Note 1:  Mr. Li beneficially owns 90% of the issued share capital
of Astute Horizon Limited which in turn, beneficially holds
272,661,290. Mr. Li also beneficially owns approximately
95.71% of the issued share capital of Ever Thrive Global
Limited which in turn, beneficially holds 206,471,700
Shares. Therefore, Mr. Li is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the Shares held by Astute Horizon Limited
and Ever Thrive Global Limited for the purposes of the
SFO. Mr. Li is also the director of Astute Horizon Limited
and Ever Thrive Global Limited.

Note 2:  As at 31 December 2019, share options to subscribe for
4,400,000 Shares were granted to Mr. Ma. Besides, Mr.
Ma beneficially owns 2,675,677 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Ma
was interested in 7,075,677 Shares in aggregate.

Note 3:  As at 31 December 2019, the total number of issued
Shares was 749,655,890.

(B) Long position in shares of associated
corporation

Bttt ZERABZBEAESER R FI0%H
BEIRAN MESARATERFEA
272,661,2900% B& 17 » 2= Sc £ IV E =
BEBIRIRER A R 495.71%H) B
IRA MERRKERARESFE
206,471, 7000% 8517 - At - RIBEFEFH K
HEKY TEERBANEERES
ERARMERIRRBRARFAEN
2HROPEERZ - FTEENAES
BERARMEBRIRRBRARINES -

Wite: RZZT—-—hF+ZA=+—H 5%
A JE P 1] 3R B 4,400,0000% I 1 # BB A%
Mok B A E RS HEB2,675,677%
B&5 o AL - B EA £ 7,075,677R%
RO HEE#ERS-

K3 RZZE—NF+=—A=+—H BT
& 17 42 8k 5749,655,8000% f& 15

(B) RIBEEERHDHFA

Number of
Name of Associated Shares held/  Percentage of
Name of Director Corporation Capacity/Nature interested shareholding
s EEER R
BEEHE LB SR B & BROEE BoH
Mr. Li Ever Thrive Global Limited Beneficial owner 446 95.71%
oA EREIREBR AT EmEAA
Astute Horizon Limited (Note 7) Beneficial owner 100 90.00%
ERERAA (HaE1) EREEAA

Apart from those disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2019,
none of the directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any of the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) that is required to be
recorded and kept in the register in accordance with section 352
of the SFO or any interests required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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FTERREHEAMATRRS R EER
DHEER AR

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

2
K

RZB-AF+ZRA=+—H BESFHA UATA
T (BEEFRARFANKRBTHRABRIN) HEHER
REAEERBROIEEROPEEREESMGE
fERBIFEXVER 2 52370 BB BV IR XA M AN A R K B 32 P
WENEDZIAR REEXMEFAMBENT
REABERTRAREEMNEMKERARRRAE
FRFOEMBRR AR E(ES %A RS

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
other member of the Group:

Number of Approximate

Shares held/  percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature interested shareholding

i HEER BAORE

BRRERHHE 270 3= KRG EE BOL

Astute Horizon Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 272,661,290 36.37%
ERBRARF (AFF1) BEnEAA

Ever Thrive Global Limited Beneficial owner 206,471,700 27.54%
HEIRIKAR A A EnlAA

Ms. Chen Fangqin (Note 1) Interest of spouse 479,132,990 63.91%
BRIS A2zt (#faEt) fe B ey R a5

Halcyon Finance Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 272,661,290 36.37%
R BAR LR (AiF2) EnEAA

Halcyon Holdings Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 272,661,290 36.37%

Halcyon Holdings Limited ( #7:£2) REEEE R
Alpha Strategy Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 272,661,290 36.37%

Alpha Strategy Limited ( #/72£2) SRR ERE R

Note 1: Ms. Chen Fangqin is the spouse of Mr. Li. Therefore, Ms. Chen Bt - BRFEARTATRENRE Bit 3EHFRE
Fanggin was deemed, or taken to be interested in all the Shares BERNME REFRXITHBERBIEENRTE
which are interested by Mr. Li for the purposes of the SFO. SHRBRENEEROTHEEER -

Note 2: To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief, Halcyon Finance Ko . BESBFAKAE &M I5HE R A 5 AApha
Limited was wholly-owned by Alpha Strategy Limited, which in turn Strategy Limited® & # & * M Alpha Strategy
was wholly-owned by Halcyon Holdings Limited. Therefore Halcyon Limited Fg Halcyon Holdings Limited % & # & °
Holdings Limited and Alpha Strategy Limited are deemed, or taken It - Bt 7B 5 R HAE (&6 1 F -+ Haleyon Holdings
to be interested in all the Shares which are interested by Halcyon Limited % Alpha Strategy Limited#& #3 & 3k & V£
Finance Limited for the purpose of the SFO. ERMBAERAREEERNZMROPHES

T o

Note 3: As at 31 December 2019, the total number of issued Shares was a3 RZE—NF+_A=+—8 BEETRNHE
749,655,890. H 5749,655,890/% I 17
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 7
November 2013 as to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to provide additional incentive to the eligible participants under the
Scheme. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board is authorised, at its absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to
subscribe the Shares to any employees (full-time or part-time), Directors,
consultants or advisor of the Group, or any substantial shareholder of the
Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business
partner or service provider of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on 7 November 2013,
subject to early termination provisions contained in the Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share
in respect of any particular option granted under the Scheme shall be
a price solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and
shall be at least the highest of: (j) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which an
option is offered to a participant; (i) the average of the closing prices of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date on which an option is
offered to a participant; and (i) the nominal value of a Share on the date
on which an option is offered to a participant.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the listing date
of the Company (i.e. 27 November 2013).

The Company may at any time refresh such limit, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance with the
Listing Rules, provided that the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue unless approved by the Shareholders in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not
exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, no share options
were granted (15,000,000 share options and 16,300,000 share
options were granted on 6 January 2015 and 30 December 2015,
respectively, under the terms of the Scheme (collectively, the “Grants”),
representing approximately 4.18% of the issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2019). Details of the Grants are disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 6 January 2015 and 30
December 2015, respectively.

Up to 31 December 2019, the following set forth the summary of the
changes in share options granted, details of which are set out in Note 32
to the consolidated financial statements:

Report of the Directors
SFBHRS

BRETREZAEGINETSE TN HR AR
BITE-EARERTSELBRER LD B BES
T WARZBHREL L IGRXARR -

HE-Z-NF+-_A=+—HLIPREE VEF
HPERE(AER-_T—AF—A~BE=-ZT—1
F+Z A=+ BIREZT M &R 15,000,000
7 B8 N 1 216,300,000 BE A% 4 (#4f8 [ ]) - 48
ERARAIRZZE—AE+_A=+—HEBHTR
P%4m%wﬁﬁmﬁ%ﬁ§%m RIBES R A
T —RFE—ABABR-_ZE—RAFE+-_A=+HH
NG

HE_ZT-NAF+ZRA=+—H BERELEREN
ZEHHRBMT  FEHRNE OB RRMES2

Number of unlisted share options
FLmBREHA

m
Share price of
Cancelled/ the Company
Name and As at Granted forfeited Exercised As at as at the date of
category of 1 January during during during Exercise 31 December Date of grant of ~ Vesting period of End of exercise grant of share
participant 2019 the year the year the year price 2019 share options share options period % \o tagrg
N
H=g-1E ew:ﬁs/ i R=8-1F ) RERERD
SRERERER -B-H EREH bt ERTE 8 t-A=t-B  BRERLEE BRESED EBERAH BHNER
//-/KD pe/Sﬁa/e/ (/-//(D peré’hare)
(BR#ET) (#fEr)
Directors
%
Mr. Zhao Jidong 2,200,000 - - - - 2,200,000 6 January 2015 50%: 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025 $148
(resigned on 29 5 January 2025
November 2019)
HEREE —%-1% 50%:—F-7EMA-HAE Z—Z-1f
(R=F-h% —R~A “E-R%§-RERA —-REA
T-A=thA
BE)
50%: 1 April 2017 to
5 January 2025°
50%: ~E—t§MNA-AZ
kS ﬂi AR
3,500,000 - - - - 3,500,000 30 December 2015 50%: 2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025 $1.52
30 December 2025™
—2-1% 50%: —$—t¥MA-RE Z—ZT-If
+=ZA=1A “E-RETZRZ+A" TZR=1H
50%: 1 April 2018 to
30 December 2005
50% : = ,7 —\¥mA-BZE
ZZZRETZAZHR”

XEEFRERAT 201965 ST



Report of the Directors

EEE8WRSE
Number of unlisted share options
FLmBREHA
Share price of
Cancelled/ the Company
Name and As at Granted forfeited Exercised Asat as at the date of
category of 1 January during during during Exercise 31 December Date of grant of  Vesting period of End of exercise grant of share
participant 2019 the year the year the year price 2019 share options share options period % \o tagrg
NG
H-E-1E ERig,/ . it SO -~ HAEREY
SEERERER -B-H FREH bt ERTE k8 t-A=t-B  BRERLEE BRESED fEBERAH BNER
(/-/KD pe/S/ra/e/ (/-//(D peré‘ﬁarey
(BRET) (BKE)
Mr. Ma Qingha 2,200,000 - - - - 2,200,000 6 January 2015 50%: 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025 $148
. 5 January 2025*
SEARL —2-1% 50%: —5—~ENA-AE Z—Z-1f
-A”A “ZCRE-ARRY —-AnA
50%: 1 April 2017 to
5 January 2025
50% ’*—tﬁﬂ]ﬂ E!E
“2_n%-R
2,200,000 o S o = 2,200,000 30 December 2015 50%: 2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025 $1.52
30 December 2025™
—2-1% 50%: —F—t¥MA-RE —ZT-1f
TZA=tA “E-Rf+ZA=TR*  +ZR=1AH
50%: 1 April 2018 to
30 December 2026™
50%: —%— ‘\E@ﬂ AE
“E-RETCR=tE
Other employees 3,672,900 o = 1,400,500 §1.212 2,272,400 6 January 2015 50%: 2 Apri 2016 to 5 January 2025 $148
) SJanuary 2025
EftES —%-n% 50% : _7 -A§MA-AE —E-R%
—ArA —ZCRE-AERY —REH
50%: 1 April 2017 to
5January 2025
O% ‘t FMA-HE
-F— ﬂ H ﬁ E *
7,337,600 - - 1,106,600 §1.312 6,231,000 30 December 2015 50%: 2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025 $1.52
30 December 2025
—2-1f 50%: =% tﬂqﬂ AE ZZZ8%
TZR=t1H “E-RET-R=tE TZR=1H
50%: 1 April 2018 to
30 December 2026™
50%: —5—-\§MA-HZE
ZECRETIA=TEY

Total

&t 21,110,600 o = 2,607,100 18,603,400

Notes: Kt -

o The vesting and exercise of the options granted under the Scheme on . $E'< %F ZEERZE—RF—AXNARL 2 BRE
6 January 2015 are subject to the performance conditions set out in BEBNTE BABETANTHBPA-_ZT—RHF—
the announcement of the Company dated 6 January 2015. H NEABNABARRENRIRGE-

o The vesting and exercise of the options granted under the Scheme on . BEZHZN _ZE—RHE+_A=+HELZ ﬁﬁ
30 December 2015 are subject to the performance conditions set out RIER B &ﬂﬁ BEBTFAANTIHEHAE-ZT—
in the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2015. FE+ZA=1+THHNAHBARENRBIEE-

58 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2019



Report of the Directors
SFBHRS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS HEBEXZNBAELXRS
AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(A) Continuing Connected Transactions (A) BFEBRERS
During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Group BHE_Z-—NWF+ZA=T—BLUBEFE"
entered into the following continuing connected transactions which AREBETSZATABS EMRAIF14AZ A
are subject to the reporting and annual review requirements set out RELFEEMHRENFEAERS -

in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions are set out below: HEBREXZIHNFRBIEN X :

Master Procurement Agreement EHRE S

Prior to the Disposal (as defined below) as Huvis was a substantial REE (E&ER TX) A BRHwisA AR A &
shareholder of Yongsheng Chemical Fiber, a non-wholly owned FE2EMBRARKBCEHEZRE  BRIE L
subsidiary of the Company, Huvis was a connected person of the MHRA Huvis B AR R BEE AT o

Company under the Listing Rules.

On 30 December 2015, Huvis and Yongsheng Chemical Fiber RZZE—AF+=A =18 HuvisEBK K&
entered into an agreement pursuant to which the Group agreed Rl —IEmE Bt AEERERERES
to purchase textile-related products for trading and production of BB I T R G B M Huvis & s B 8 A
differentiated PFY from Huvis and/or its associate(s) from time to HBMBAEEERNETE S REEZR K
time for a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2016 R4 RBM=F B —-—HA—H&
and ending on 31 December 2018 in accordance with the terms EZE-NFTA=T AL ([EHRBH
and conditions stipulated therein (the “Master Procurement ) RZZE—tF=AtRH AEEREEZ
Agreement”). On 7 March 2017, the Group adjusted the above PICEH BE T —tF R —N\F
annual caps for 2017 and 2018 from RMB50,000,000 and 2 FE EBREES AR A RMS50,000,0007T A
RMB60,000,000 to RMB80,000,000 and RMB100,000,000, K #60,000,0007T #% & A R #80,000,0007T
respectively, based on actual operating needs. & AR #100,000,0007T °

As of 31 December 2019, the Group’s purchases from Huvis were HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—H1 Fx5£EMRA
approximately RMB26.24 million. HuvisZ SREEFEX A AR KE26.24B5 8 T ©

On 28 November 2018, Yongsheng Advanced Materials (HK) RZE—NF+—AZ+NRB KEFHH
Limited and Huvis entered into a master procurement agreement, (BB)BR QR EHuvisis] 3 — 1D EXEH
pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase PFY products FHoB AEBRERHuwis kS EBE A
for production of differentiated PFY from Huvis and/or its BEKGRAERUEEZIL KRG - 8
associate(s). The annual caps under the master procurement EFZE—F+ZA=T—HLE=ZAFES
agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December 2021 F EIRBHBEETZ2FELRSBIAARE
are RMB100,000,000,RMB130,000,000 and RMB160,000,000, 100,000,0007T * A R #130,000,0007c & A R
respectively. #160,000,0007T °
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Technology and Brand Licensing Agreements

On 27 August 2018, Nantong Yongsheng and Huvis entered
into a technology and brand licensing agreement (“Nantong
Technology and Brand Licensing Agreement”), pursuant to
which Huvis agreed to grant to Nantong Yongsheng, among other
things, the exclusive right (except as to Yongsheng Chemical Fiber)
to use certain licensed technology and certain brands in the PRC.
Nantong Yongsheng is required to (i) pay royalty fees for the use
of licensed technology ranging from 3.625% to 6.5% of the profit
before tax generated from the sale of licensed products, depending
on the type of licensed technology used in the licensed products;
(i) pay royalty fee for the use of new technologies developed by
Huvis at a royalty rate to be determined upon categorisation of
such new technologies into the licensed technology by mutual
agreement of Nantong Yongsheng and Huvis; and (iii) pay royalty
fees for the use of the brands of 0.1% of the revenue generated
from the sale of the licensed products, exclusive of value-added
tax.

On 27 August 2018, Yongsheng Chemical Fiber and Huvis
entered into a brand licensing agreement (“Hangzhou Brand
Licensing Agreement”), pursuant to which Huvis agreed to grant
to Yongsheng Chemical Fiber, among other things, the exclusive
right (except as to Nantong Yongsheng to use certain brands in
the PRC. Yongsheng Chemical Fiber is required to pay royalty fees
of 0.1% of the revenue generated from the sale of the licensed
products.

The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the
Nantong Technology and Brand Licensing Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and each of the two years ending 31
December 2020 are as follows:

B 1 2 a3 JE & 7 165 o

RZZE—NFENAZ+LER  BEilEKEHEHuvis
uTi—T’ﬁHZTTIEEi hEET A i e ([ 7O 38 i B2
MAERF AR ) - B Ik Huvis[F B M B ok B
B (ERaE) R BEERE TR
”:Fuuﬁé"'iﬂ’ﬂiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé ORBACERRIN) - iR
KBANRERATIRNMHTESE &8
I 85 5 7 BT 2 an P 1S BR B AT 6 R #93.625%
£6.5% (ABEURR A EREANZT TR
MTEER) 5 (i)BEE A Huvis Bl 2 2 3 iy S - 4%
B WBRERERMEMSEETTR
ity B £ R 3@ ok B8 BRHuvis 2 R 1 5 ¢ R (i) Bt
ﬁﬁ%h‘?iﬁ%%ﬂ%% CSREAEETIESM
BREER0A1% (TBRIFLER) °

RZZB-—NFNAZ++EB  KELHKHuvis
RIS — 10 G KR R AT (140N &R B °F ATt
#&)  BUtHwisRBRKECERE (EPE
FE)RPEERSE T mE B E R (B8
KEERRIN) o KBACBAS NS 8 A
HEFFAEmAFKER0.1%

ﬁL&mﬁ VRN SIE TR T IR S E

R N\FTZA=ZT-RLEEEUREE
:§f§¢+fﬂ:+—5¢ﬁm¢g%¢2
FELRHAT:

Year ended/ending 31 December RMB’000
BE+-—A=+—-HLEE AR¥T
2018 —ZE-N\F 257
2019 —E-NF 4,500
2020 ZETF 6,782

As at 31 December 2019, there were no transaction under the
Nantong Technology and Brand Licensing Agreement.
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The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the
Hangzhou Brand Licensing Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2018 and each of the two years ending 31 December
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MM HEE THET IR SBES
—NE+-_A=1+—BUIFEUREBEE_F
—NWER_E-_EF+_A=+—HILMEF

2019 and 2020 are as follows: EEFZFELERWOT:

Year ended/ending 31 December RMB’000
BEt+t-A=+—HLFE AR®T R
2018 —E-)N\F 78
2019 —E-NEF 256
2020 T 281

The annual caps under the Nantong Technology and Brand
Licensing Agreements and the Hangzhou Brand Licensing
Agreement are determined based on the projected annual growth
in demand and selling price of the licensed products.

As at 31 December 2019, the amount of the transaction under the
Hangzhou Brand Licensing Agreement is RMBO0.46 million.

The Exclusive Agency and Distribution Agreements

On 27 August 2018 (after trading hours), Nantong Yongsheng
and Huvis entered into (i) an exclusive agency and distribution
agreement (“Huvis Exclusive Agency and Distribution
Agreement”), pursuant to which Huvis appoints Nantong
Yongsheng as an exclusive distributor of PFY products in the PRC
on behalf of Huvis; and (ii) an exclusive agency and distribution
agreement (“Yongsheng Exclusive Agency and Distribution
Agreement”), pursuant to which Nantong Yongsheng appoints
Huvis as an exclusive distributor of PFY products in South Korea
on behalf of Nantong Yongsheng.

Pursuant to the Huvis Exclusive Agency and Distribution
Agreement, the purchase prices for the PFY products supplied
by Huvis shall be agreed by Nantong Yongsheng and Huvis with
reference to the then prevailing purchasing prices of comparable
products in the market. Huvis shall pay Nantong Yongsheng a
commission of (i) 5% of the value of PFY products purchased
by Nantong Yongsheng from Huvis; or (i) 3% of the value of the
PFY products which are imported by and purchased by Nantong
Yongsheng on behalf of customers of Huvis located in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Yongsheng Exclusive Agency and Distribution
Agreements, the purchase price for the PFY products supplied
by Nantong Yongsheng shall be agreed by Huvis and Nantong
Yongsheng with reference to the then prevailing purchasing prices
of comparable products in the market. Nantong Yongsheng shall
pay Huvis a commission of (i) 5% of the value of the PFY products
purchased by Huvis from Nantong Yongsheng;or (i) 3% of the
value of the PFY products which are imported by and purchased
by Huvis on behalf of customers of Nantong Yongsheng located in
South Korea.

7 488 H 11 £ O R R 190 o S AL G R R I R
BT 2FELERTBREBEATERNEFTFES
RERREEETE-

RZEBE-—NAFE+TZA=+—H8 HmMNBEFA
HHEREATXZEER/ARKI6E T

BEftCHE R 73 85 16 o

RZE-NFNAZ+ELR(XHKRIZ)
R IR K B B Huvis()RT S — 2 BE B AR K o3 88
% ([HuvisHr b REB R 2 86t ) - Fuit
HuvisZ £ 7 38 7K % & (R R Huvis 10 P B B ke
RAMEmPFM D HE  R()7] L — 0P RE
Mot ([ RBEERER S #HIHBR])
Bt - EEKEE EHuwis R R EEKENE
BRI RAERD D 8-

R IE HuvisBE b (X 32 2 9 88 173 5% - Huvis AT &
B 5 4 IR 44 2 SR BB B (B B A 79 3 ok B% B2 Huvis
KR2EMBA L BRERNERETEEER
B IE ° HuvisfE M BB KT M EE  BEA()
MEXKEEHwisEE K EHERNEED
5% : Bk (i) B KR E O MR RHwisH P EE
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Annual caps : The annual caps for the transactions contemplated
under the Huvis Exclusive Agency and Distribution
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2018
and each of the two years ending 31 December
2020 are as follows:

FELER : HuvisHEth (032 K 2 S5 1 3 T8 N BUETTRR A
E_E-N\FT_A=+—BLEEFEUAREEZ
EoEET A=+ RALMEFERENER
ERWAT:

Sum of purchase payable by
Nantong Yongsheng to Huvis
BB IHWIST 1.2 BEE £ 88
Year ended/ending

31 December RMB’000
BEt+t-A=+-—H
HEE ARETFT
2018 974
—T-N\F
2019 95,000
—E-NE
2020 100,000
—ECEE

Commission collected by
Nantong Yongsheng from Huvis
8 K B (A HuvisHC R 2 1
Year ended/ending

31 December RMB’000
BE+t-A=+-—H
HEE ARETFT
2018 551
—T-N\F
2019 5,298
—E-NE
2020 5,863
—ECEE

The annual caps for the transactions
contemplated under the Yongsheng Exclusive
Agency and Distribution Agreement for each
of the three years ending 31 December 2018,
2019 and 2020 are as follows:
KEHMRERDHBAB TRETNRS
REBE_Z-\F _Z-NEFR_ZT_TF
TZA=+-BLE=REFERFHNFE LRI
T:

Sum of purchase payable by
Huvis to Nantong Yongsheng
HuvisIR BB K B3 112 fE B % 55
Year ended/ending

31 December RMB 000
BE+t-A=+-H
LEE ARETFT
2018 584
“E-N\F
2019 11,705
—ZE-NE
2020 17,189
—Z-TE
Commission collected by

Huvis from Nantong Yongsheng
Huvis/a] 38 K B 2 18 %
Year ended/ending

31 December RMB'000
BE+t-A=+-H
i:3:54 AREFT
2018 35
“E-N\F
2019 702
—E-NEF
2020 1,031
—E-EE

The annual caps under the Exclusive Agency and Distribution Agreements are determined based on the
projected annual growth in demand and selling price of the PFY Products through the exclusive agency

and distribution arrangement.

HRERDHEBRBTNEE LR IBBERGRAERNTRREBNERFEREEBI DA

BROELHERE
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As at 31 December 2019, the amount of the transactions under the Huvis Exclusive Agency and

Distribution Agreement.

RZFB-NFTZA=+—H HwisHtt KBRS HBAE TR R T :

Sum of purchase payable

by Nantong Yongsheng to Huvis
Sum of purchase payable

by Huvis to Nantong Yongsheng
Commission collected by Nantong

Yongsheng from Huvis

Commission collected by Huvis from

Nantong Yongsheng
Confirmation from the independent non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions had been entered into:

0} in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

(i)  either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there is no
available comparable terms, on terms no less favourable to the
Company than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Confirmation from the auditors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board had engaged
the auditors of the Company to perform certain assurance procedures
on the continuing connected transactions. As of 31 December 2019, the
annual transaction amount of the continuing connected transactions was
approximately RMB76.1 million in aggregate, which did not exceed the
proposed maximum annual transaction amount for 2019. The auditors
of the Company has provided the Board with a letter, confirming that
they were not aware of any matters that cause them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions disclosed have exceeded the annual
cap set by the Company.

RMB’000
ARMEEF T
9 38 K B A Huvis S - 2
BES® 46,888.13
Huvis[) B i 7k B8 S+ 2
BETH 193.40
9 38 K B A Huvis U B 2
A 2,699.89
Huvis[r) & 1/ 7k 25 U ER 2.
Be 14.60
BUFBITEENER

RIE EMARBIFE14AG BUFATERCEH
PRBERER I ERZERHEE TIIETL:

() MWAKBEBEEXEKBRRESD:

(i) ¥Z(a)IE % 7 R 5K (o) fi I & 7] & Hb BRIk
FORMERAEEBILE =TT EFREE TR
NETEORE S /3

(i) WEREZXZEXZNEEHHRLRAIFA/ELN

2R RE BT 2 40 (3

BB B TE T

RIF ETRAE14A661K EF R REB AR A%
MU EWERFETETRERF -BE_F
—hEFTZA=Z+—RB HEWERHZFERS
BHAANR/ARBT6ABEL URBEREN T
—NEFERSGBLR -ARARHBMEANESTE
RE—D R BRESHEIZINETERSRK
EHREMRENFEREXZFIEBBARRRMRE
MEE LRS-
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On 26 July 2019, Hangzhou HUVIS Yongsheng Dyeing and
Finishing Company Limited (“Hangzhou HUVIS”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the equity
transfer agreements (“‘Equity Transfer Agreements”) with Mr. Li
Cheng (“Mr. Li"), pursuant to which Hangzhou HUVIS conditionally
agreed to sell and Mr. Li conditionally agreed to purchase the sale
equity (“Disposal’) (i.e. (i) 70% of the equity interests in Hangzhou
HUVIS Yongsheng Chemical Fiber Limited* (47 M| #& - 5k A% 1L
#AER AR, (i) 67% of the equity interests in Nantong Yongsheng
HUVIS Fiber Advanced Materials Co., Ltd.* ( 7 i 7k &% JE 4 {+
WA E AR A F) ; and (i) 70% of the equity interests in
Jiangsu Yongsheng High Polyester Advanced Materials Research
Institute Company Limited* (T & ok B & 5 F # M EH 5T AT A IR
A7)) (together “Target Companies”), at a total consideration of
RMB173,916,400 (equivalent to approximately HK$197,726,000).
The disposals are inter-conditional upon each other.

On 16 August 2019, Hangzhou HUVIS, Mr. Li and Hangzhou
Yongsheng Lituo E-commerce Company Limited* (# J1 7k 2%
NIMEFES AR AT (the “New Purchaser”) entered into
supplemental agreements to the Equity Transfer Agreements
(“Supplemental Agreements”), pursuant to which Hangzhou
HUVIS, Mr. Li and the New Purchaser have agreed to make certain
amendments (the “Amendments”) to each of the Equity Transfer
Agreements, among other matters, the change in purchaser
and the payment terms of the considerations for each of the
transactions contemplated under the Equity Transfer Agreements.

On 29 November 2019, all conditions precedent under each
of the Equity Transfer Agreements (as supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreements) have been fulfilled. Immediately upon
completions, the Company no longer holds any equity interests in
any of and each of the Target Companies ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Company. Upon completions of the Disposals, HUVIS
ceased to be a connected person of the Company. Thus, the
abovementioned transactions are no longer continued connected
transactions of the Group since the completions of the Disposals.

64 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2019

RZE—NFELAZ+ B AARMEEEZE
MEB AR IMNERET KEELEERAR ([H
MEHEAL | ) B2 ([ZSE4E]) AT AR
e ((RESEGE]) B MNE
BEEREREHEMZLEETEGERE K
BHERE (THEEE]) (BN E# T
KERAL B R A R IRRE 270% (i) 8 ok B
ERETHETMEERARREZ67% &
(i)yTERXKBEBD THMEHETER R A
B270%) (SiTEEELQATF]) BREABA
R#173,916,4007C (HHE 7 #1197,726,00074
TL) cZEXREFIEE RigHE-

RZZ-—AFNATRA -MMESL FE
ERMMNKENREFEEBERAR ([HE
BRIV EESERZ 2R ([HRH
BB UNEST FEERFESY
REHEREEEGS (EPRE)BETNE
HRBEERGERE TRETZIER S 2RE
B FIRSE & THERT (18RI )) »

RIE-AF+—A-+hA BEREEE
W& (KEMABZEMIT) B LRIEHEAE
T BREER L AR RN BRE A E AR
REBBRABDTBER/ARRZMBEAR - R%E
REEFEEE ERCTBRAEARRZEEA
TRl BERREHEFHEE LARST
BAAKEZEERERS -



(B) Connected transactions

Issue of remaining consideration shares for the First Intelligence
Share Purchase Agreement

On 1 November 2018, the Group together with Astute Horizon
Limited (as the vendor) and First Intelligence International Limited
(as the target company) entered into a share purchase agreement
(the “First Intelligence Share Purchase Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase
and the vendor has conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued
share capital of the target company for a total consideration of
RMBB800 million, which was satisfied as to (1) RMB200 million in
cash paid by the Company to the vendor upon completion; and
(2) RMB600 million by the allotment and issue of the 272,661,290
new Shares of the Company. The acquisition was completed on
4 January 2019, upon which all of the conditions precedent for
cash consideration and first allotment have been fulfilled for this
acquisition. Please refer to the announcement dated 1 November
2018 of the Company for details.

On 17 May 2019, the remaining consideration Shares were issued.
Please refer to the announcement dated 17 May 2019 for details.

Financial assistance

Pursuant to the terms of the Equity Transfer Agreements
(as supplemented by the Supplemental Agreements), upon
completions of the Disposals, Mr. Li shall procure Hangzhou HUVIS
Yongsheng Chemical Fiber Limited (“Yongsheng Chemical
Fiber”) and Nantong Yongsheng HUVIS Fiber Advanced
Material Co., Ltd. (‘Nantong Yongsheng”) to settle in full the
outstanding amount owing to the Group within a repayment
period (i.e. six months after the signing of each of the Equity
Transfer Agreements). In the event of failure on the repayment of
the outstanding amount by Yongsheng Chemical Fiber and/or
Nantong Yongsheng, Mr. Li will undertake to repay the outstanding
amount in full to the Group.

(B)
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As at 29 November 2019, approximately RMB40,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$45,600,000) (“Remaining
Amount”) remained unpaid by Yongsheng Chemical Fiber.
Immediately upon completions of the Disposals, Yongsheng
Chemical Fiber becomes a subsidiary of the New Purchaser,
which is ultimately controlled by Mr. Li. As Mr. Li is a controlling
Shareholder, an executive Director and the chairman of the
Company, Yongsheng Chemical Fiber becomes a connected
person of the Company upon completions. Thus, the advance
of the Remaining Amount to Yongsheng Chemical Fiber (the
“Connected Transaction”) shall constitute a connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29
November 2019 for details.

(C) Related party transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in
the normal course of business of the Group are provided under
note 38 to the financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a connected transaction as defined under
the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed, except for those
disclosed above, in respect of which the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been
complied with.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the best knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has maintained appropriate Directors’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2019.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

There is neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company or any of Its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2019.

AUDITORS

The financial statements now presented have been audited by Ernst &
Young, Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE
OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 26 May
2020 to 29 May 2020, both days inclusive, for the purpose of determining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend the forthcoming AGM to be held on
Friday, 29 May 2020, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending the AGM, the Shareholders
should ensure that all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms are lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on 25 May 2020.
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The Board recommends the payment of the final dividend of HK$0.03
per Share to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 5 June 2020. The payment of the
final dividend is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the AGM. If
the resolution for the final dividend is passed at the AGM, the register of
members will be closed from 4 June 2020 to 5 June 2020, both days
inclusive, and the final dividend is expected to be paid on Monday, 29
June 2020. In order to qualify for the final dividend, the Shareholders
should ensure that all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms are lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on 3 June 2020.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the financial results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 223 to 224 of this
annual report.

By Order of the Board

LI Cheng

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiR - 8REGHRS

INTRODUCTION
About this report

This is the 4" Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG”) report
published by the Company for the purpose of disclosing the initiatives of
the Group in relation to its ESG development.

As per the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
(the “Reporting Guide”) published by the Stock Exchange, the Board
has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting.
The Board is responsible for assessing and determining the risks in
relation to the ESG of the Group, as well as ensuring the establishment
of appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems by the Group. The management of the Group is responsible for
confirming to the Board of the effectiveness of these systems.

The ESG report aims at improving the stakeholders’ confidence and
understanding of the Group’s environmental and social performance
as well as the sustainable development strategies of the Group. The
Board of the Company has reviewed and confirmed the ESG report has
contained material, complete and balanced contents.

Preparation standards

The report is prepared based on the principles set out in the Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

The ESG report covers the Group’s three main businesses: (i) dyeing and
processing of differentiated polyester filament fabric, (i) RMAA Business,
and (iii) properties investment .

This report covers the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT
Build a sustainable ecosystem

In response to the national requirement for accelerating the development
of “conservation-oriented society”, the Group complied with relevant
laws and regulations in relation to emissions and pollutants control, and
implemented the “Quality and Environmental Management Manual”
in association with the management procedure manuals in relation to
waste water treatment, gas emission, waste handling and resources
management process to monitor the treatment and disposal of waste
water, gas emissions and waste disposal. The Group has been
accredited with the ISO 14001 environmental management certification
since February 2015 and has completed the external audit and renewal
related to ISO during the Period under Review.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A1. Emission policies

Gas emission policy

The Group has formulated the “Gas Emission Management
Procedure” in order to effectively and efficiently manage its gas
emission and ensure the Group’s compliance with the relevant
rules and regulations regarding gas emissions in the PRC.

The Group primarily produces the greenhouse gas (‘GHG”) due
to energy consumption in the production process. Pursuant to the
GHG Protocol (an international standard for measuring emissions
from private and public operations) in translating the GHG emission
resulted from energy consumption under Scope 2 Guidance
of the GHG Protocol (an international standard regarding how
corporations measuring emissions from purchased or acquired
electricity, steam, heat and cooling), the Group has a total GHG
emission of approximately 100,783.44 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalence during the Period under Review.

Waste water treatment policy

The Group has formulated the “Waste Water Management
Procedure” in order to effectively and efficiently manage the
treatment and disposal of waste water and comply with the rules
and regulations regarding waste water disposal.

The Group adopted measures to separate waste water produced
during its production from other uses. Waste water segregation is
adopted in the production sites in order to facilitate segregation in
treatments for different types of waste water.

The Group’s waste water is mainly produced in the dyeing facilities.
In order to comply with the local government requirements to
ensure waste water was pre-treated (i.e. reducing the Chemical
Oxygen Demand (“COD”) level of the waste water) before entering
the municipal drainage system, the Group built a waste water pre-
treatment facility on the dyeing production site in 2015 with further
enhancement in 2018.

During the Period under Review, the Group installed the Distributed
Control System (“DCS”) central control system and ammonia
nitrogen automatic monitoring system for wastewater treatment
process in its workshops. The DCS central control system is
designed to monitor the whole process of wastewater treatment
by continuously monitoring sewage inflow, inflow temperature, PH
value, operating condition of circulating water pump, discharge
amount and other real time indexes on a 24-hour basis. With such
system, wastewater treatment was under global monitoring and
steady control, ensuring discharged wastewater after treatment
met environmental requirements, such as COD under 200mg/
L, PH value within the range of 6 to 9, ammonia-nitrogen below
20mg/L and total nitrogen below 30mg/L.
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In September 2019, the Company invested RMB2.24 million to
entrust Zhejiang Huanshi Technology Co., Ltd.* I TR AR A
R A &) to install four sets of exhaust gas emissions monitoring
systems for our stenter machines. Such systems could monitor
the total hydrocarbons, methane, non-methane total hydrocarbons
and other indexes in the exhaust of the stenter machines on a
real-time basis, and are subject to the supervision of government
departments through the monitoring platforms of Hangzhou city
and Zhejiang province on a real-time basis. Through such systems,
the Company can discover the change of each index in the exhaust
emissions timely, which has effectively prevented the excessive
emission of each index.

Waste management policy

The Group has formulated the “Waste Management Procedure”
in order to effectively and efficiently manage the treatment and
disposal of solid waste.

Hazardous waste produced by the Group during its production
process mainly includes dyeing sludge and waste oil from stenter.
The Group stores such hazardous waste separately by their
classification and adds labels on each depositary to specify the
type, quantity and deposited time before they were transferred to
professional third party for disposal.

Non-hazardous waste produced by the Group mainly derived
from packaging materials in production and domestic wastes
from staff dormitory and office. The Group strives to reduce the
packaging materials of the products. The Group maintains optimal
design for packaging materials in accordance with environmental
protection requirements, for example: to reduce product size,
minimise packaging and save storage space. Given the needs to
meet customer expectations and logistics requirements, the Group
strives to cut down the usage of packaging materials. The main
packaging materials for the Group’s PFY products include carton
boxes, paper cones, foam boards, plastic bags and plastic fiims,
while the packaging materials for dyed fabric products include
paper cones and plastic films. Wooden supports are used for
product storage and auxiliary transportation and will be disposed of
as general industrial waste only when damaged. The new wooden
supports are those recyclable old wooden supports. On the other
hand, domestic wastes are handled by municipal cleaning service.

*

for identification purpose only
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A2,

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

2019 A1 Emissions KPI

The following table sets out the gas emission and waste disposal
data of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019:

RIS HERERRS

2019F A1) B 52 43 5 1512

TRIBAREEBE_E-NFT_A=+—
BIEFEMERPER M ERYEESIER:

KPI Specific indicator Emission Intensity
KPI BHEgER e "R
AlA Waste water 612,480 tons 622.1 tons/RMB million sales
FEK 612,480MF 62211, BB T ARKIHER
Al1.2 GHG 100,783.44 tons 102.4 tons/RMB million sales
BERE 100,783.4411f 1024 W,/ BETARBHERE
A1.3 Hazardous waste 1,240 tons 1.82 tons/RMB million sales
BEREEY 1,240 1.820,  BETARKHER
A1.4 Non-hazardous waste N/A N/A
BmEREEY) T iE A TEA

Use of resources

The following table sets out the consumption rate of electricity,
water and packaging materials for the year ended 31 December
2019:

A2. ERfER

EHE N KERBEMEEERE:

KPI Specific indicator Resource consumption Intensity
KPI EEgiEE BIRERES BHE
A2.1 Electricity 179,308MWh 182.1MWh/RMB million sales
E 179,308k FLBF 1821k B, BB TARKHESE
A2.2 Water 692,027 tons 702.87 tons/BRMB million sales
K 692,027 702.87H /BB T ARBHER
A2.5 Packing materials 4,342.7 tons 4.41 tons/RMB million sales
BEME 4,342, 78 4410 BETARBIHEHE

Please refer to paragraph A3 below for description of energy
use efficiency initiatives adopted by the Group and the results
achieved.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiR - 8REGHRS

A2

AS.

The Group’s RMAA services fall under the construction industry
which may generate some hazardous waste due to the business
nature. Widely Construction endeavors to take all reasonable
measures to minimize the impact on the environment during
its operations and has been seeking ways less harmful to the
environment. The control measures include: (i) spraying water
when dusty construction activities (such as demolition, drilling or
excavation) are carried out; (i) transferring waste to other sites for
reusing; and (jii) sorting waste for recycling.

Widely Construction

REBEHRMAARRTS B ARSI TS M ST 1 & Al
EEE—LEEEY ENEERHEKN—)
SRR TEERETRERLHRENTE
k—ESFEREEERINTH EHIEEE
B (VETZREMNE T)EE (IR - EiRsk
?z%F)h TR ()SEMER S H i Tih
TTEMA : Ki)EEY o E R E e

EF)iE s

GHG Emissions

BEMER B
Direct Emission (Scope 1) (tonnes) HEHEW (BET) (M) 20.61
Direct Emission (Scope 2) (tonnes) BEEHR(EE2) () 21.47
Direct Emission (Scope 3) (tonnes) BEEHER (8E3) (ME) 6.01
Construction and Demolition Waste BERYIFTIIRED 1,846.60
Non-hazardous waste disposal (tonnes) EEREMEE (M) 1,187.87
Non-hazardous waste intensity E|EBEYTE (W, ZELEE) 20.61
(tonnes/construction project)
Use of resources A2. ERERA
The following table sets out the consumption rate of electricity, TRIFBE_Z-—NE+_A=+—HILF

water and packaging materials for the year ended 31 December
2019:

Please refer to paragraph A3 below for description of energy
use efficiency initiatives adopted by the Group and the results
achieved.

Environment and natural resources
Environmental protection measures

The main types of energy which the Group used in production are
electricity and steam; all were supplied by the municipal facilities.

The Group aims at increasing energy efficiency through proper
equipment maintenance and replacement of factory equipment.
The Group has reduced electricity consumption from production
by upgrading and replacing air compression systems. The Group
adopted the “coal-to-steam” system which uses steam as driving
force of stenter machines. Such system significantly reduces gas
emission.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the Period under Review, Nantong Yongsheng, for the
purpose of power saving, has replaced its high pressure air
compressors with low pressure air compressors that could
secure production needs. Besides, it has replaced all piston
air compressors, featuring heavy noise and high electricity
consumption with screw-air compressors featuring low noise and
low electricity consumption, and has adopted converters to control
all fans and water pumps. Upon the implementation of above
improvement measures, workshops of the Group achieved more
than 10% electricity consumption saving and reduced the impact
of noise on the environment.

During the Period under Review, Yongsheng Dyeing and
Yongsheng Chemical Fiber successfully passed the test on the
enterprise’s electric energy balance conducted by the Government
of Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province. The test
mainly focused on the following two major parts of the enterprise:
(i) electricity consumption and (ii) power balance test, including
power load, daily load rate, main electricity consumption per day,
high-and low voltage output line three-phase current and other
parameters; and ii) the actual operating conditions test on on-site
electrical equipment to understand whether electrical equipment
operates smoothly and whether there is power-saving potential.

Based on the above test data in two aspects and combined with
the comprehensive analysis of the current status of equipment
operation, the Group proposed a related rectification plan for the
production process. Through rectification, Yongsheng Dyeing and
Yongsheng Chemical Fiber finally saved energy by over 7%.

The Group has a circulating cooling water system in place to
reduce the consumption of water for cooling down during this
Period. Furthermore, Yongsheng Dyeing has installed a water
recycling system to recycle dyed water generated from its
production and reduce water consumption.

The Group strives to recycle all recyclable industrial resources,
primarily by (i) re-using leftover materials resulted from production;
(i) selling sub-standard filaments to downstream manufacturers;
and (iii) collecting and re-using packaging materials of raw
materials. All these initiatives have significantly reduced packaging
wastes. During the Period under Review, the sub-standard
filaments recycled were approximately 1,819 tonnes, representing
approximately 3.99% of production volume.

RIS HERERRS

R EEEEAA - B oK B R BN = R O 22 SRUBR A 74
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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During the Period under Review, Widely Construction advocated
to reducing the consumption of fuel, electricity, and improving the
resource efficiency by: (jencouraging its employees to switch off
the lights and electronic appliances before they leave the office; (i)
encouraging its employees to set the temperature of the office’s air
conditioner to 25.5 Degree Celsius; (iiijencouraging its employees
to use double-sided printing instead of single-sided printing; and
(iv)arranging the surplus materials on the construction sites to be
re-used in other construction sites instead of dumping. During the
Period under Review, the electricity consumption and total water
consumption of Widely Construction were 14,657.00 kWh and
3.00 m? respectively.

Environmental friendly products application

During the Period under Review, the Group continued to use
environmental products that were granted with two national
invention patents. The “Nylon Ultrafine Fabric Filament and
Leather-Feel Velvet Fabric” are manufactured with lower
temperature printing and dyeing methods, which significantly
reduced energy consumption and emissions, as compared with
the manufacturing of regular polyester ultrafine fiber. Meanwhile,
the microfiber filaments of “Ultrafine Fabric Filament and Naked
Shammy Fabric” require less or no dyestuff in production result
in less or no sewage being discharged during the production
process. These two patented products achieve energy-saving and
environmental protection at the same time.
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Evaluation of the environmental performance:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIBRBAFE

RIS HERERRS

Yongsheng Dyeing Yongsheng Chemical Fiber Nantong Yongsheng
KB KBELE BEKE
2019 2018 Changes 2019 2018 Changes 2019 2018 Changes
“EFE ZERNARF % —T-NFE ZERNAF % —EEF ZEAR 2]
Milion Milion Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Production volume metres metres tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes
EE 488EEBXK 5058 &K (3.3)% 11.2F M 10.4F W 7.7% 35.51F M 241F B 47.4%
Water Immaterial Immaterial
usage-tonnes/per meter 0.0139% 0.01226 13.81% RE REk
FARAKE /1
Electricity
usage- kwh/per meter 0.36 0.31 16.14% 955.63 1,135.29 (15.83)% 2,056.89 2,008.89 2.39%
SKAEE/THE
Steam
usage-tonnes/per meter 0.00192 0.00178 7.77% N% 1;3%(1 N%;s}%d
BABEAE/ WM
Water treatment Immaterial Immaterial
usage-tonnes/per meter 0.01234 0.01162 6.18% RE REk
FRKREE /1

2018 Initiatives
“T-\F2HEH

o Water recycle initiatives
KR E

* Sewage pre-treatment facility

BKERERE

o Shift from coal-to-gas to reduce exhaust emission

RRRBTRIR D BRI R

¢ Increased the overall efficiency in
electricity usage
REAE ERNE

* Analyse measuring data of electric energy balance
to improve the overall efficiency in electricity usage
SHELTEAHBE REAEZRBAE

Replace high pressure air compressors with low
pressure air COMpressors

BEEERERENAEEZRERY

Apply frequency conversion control to all fan pumps
HARANEEKRERE AR

XBFEERAT 20199k TT
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SOCIAL ASPECTS
Care for the employees
B1. Employment

The management of the Group believes that “cooperation” and
“reciprocity” are the key success elements in a harmonious
employment relationship. Hence, the Group strictly complies
with labour laws, regulations and industry practices in relation to
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare. The Group participates in the
social insurance schemes operated by the relevant local PRC
government authorities which include: retirement pension,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, industrial injuries
insurance and maternity insurance as required by the relevant PRC
regulations. Apart from competitive salaries and incentives such as
bonus and share options which is based on the evaluation of their
contributions to the Group, the Group also provides promotion
prospects and training opportunities to staff.

The Group also provides a series of facilities and benefits for its
staff and their families. The Group is committed to equipping its
staff with all-rounded skills and developing the full potential of its
staff. Most of the senior management worked over five years for the
Group.

Gender equality and diversity

The Group promotes equal opportunity and advocates diversity.
All recruitment and promotions are based on meritocracy and all
candidates will be considered during the recruitment procedures.
Selection of candidates will be based on a diverse range of
criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience, skills and knowledge.
Necessary procedures are also exercised to ensure fair and non-
discriminatory recruitment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIB-HEBREISKRS
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 600 employees RZZE—NE+ZA=1+—H8 ~5EXERE
and all of them are full-time employees. During the Period under T600A ' 25 AZBEM - REBEBERN K&
Review, the Group’s overall average employee turnover rate is B ERBIYEERAEAL5.16% °
approximately 5.16%.
The Group’s employee profile by gender is illustrated as below:
AEEEERMEMSMAET
=+ ()
St
Female
2z
I I I I I I
0 100 200 300 400 500
The Group’s employee profile by age is illustrated as below:
AEBERERFRESMBT
8
>year 60
>607%
166
year 18-30
255 18-30%%
year 41-60
41-605%
171
year 31-40
31-40%%
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Staff activities ET)%%

The Group has organised various leisure activities and festival AEEEAETHABZEENREIEBRETAE
celebrations for its staff. During the Period under Review, the Group Mmoo AL EMEN AEBCAM —RINENE
organised a series of activities to celebrate festivals like Chinese 8 IR B EN BES) o NEE JMARS S TIRTT
New Year, Women’s Day, etc.. The Group also organised staff MEMEBEEE BEARES I FEHIERLE
travel and other sports activities, in order to encourage work-life o NEEEEE MR IETEERE A B TEERK
balance among its staff. The Group arranged thanks giving gifts to By -tfir—Mrami@Enan AEBSR
its staff during Chinese New Year, Mid-Autumn Festival, etc.. As a ERETHESEMENERT WIRHAB2E
caring company, senior management of the Group regularly visit Bo

staff under inferior living conditions and assist them with sincere

gratitude.

Company Training Take part in street blood donation
AREH 20478 EER M

® Take part in the street
fighting competition
2 nETE P R
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Health and Safety
Emphasis on Production Safety

The Group strictly abides by the local laws and regulations related
to employee health and safety, such as the Production Safety Law
of People’ Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
and the Measures for the Supervision and Administration of
Occupational Health Surveillance. The Group regulates the work
regarding production safety and prevention of occupational
diseases in a standardized way and strengthens the protection
of female employees through a series of internal rules and
regulations.

In addition, in accordance with the requirements of systems
such as the Safety Production Management System, the Group
enhances accident and non-compliance management, supervises
production safety, and carefully analyses and reflects on the
lessons learned from non-compliance or production accidents to
prevent further non-compliance. The principal of “four prohibition”
on incomplete cause investigation, incomplete disciplinary action
for responsible staff member, incomplete rectification measures
and incomplete training for relevant staff member is upheld to
improve safety education and implement rectifying measures.

The Group has installed comprehensive fire alarm systems and
fire-fighting equipment at each workplace to reduce potential fire
risk. All of the Group’s new staff has to attend the safety trainings.
Apart from the basic safety training, the Group also has focused
on implementing the “6S” lean management system in daily works.
The Group also requires proper safety training to be conducted
before new equipment or techniques being employed or being
operated.

Emphasis on occupational disease prevention

In accordance with the relevant local laws and regulations, the
Group offers health and safety education to employees and
provides induction safety training and arranges safety retraining for
senior employees.

Yongsheng Chemical Fiber and Nantong Yongsheng regularly
distribute protection gears, such as earplugs and masks, and offer
staff proper training on how to wear it in a right way.

B2.
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To promote a safe working environment and protect employees
from occupational hazards, the Group has formulated
Management Procedures on Chemical Products and Management
Procedures on Production Machinery.

The Group posts notices and warning signals at workplaces where
occupational hazards may occur in order to raise employees’ self-
protection awareness.

B3. Development and training

Communications are keys to the success of the Group. Internal
management meetings of the Group were held regularly, such as
management monthly meetings, periodic meetings for ad-hoc
projects, functional meetings and daily team briefings. Also, in
order to promote a safe production environment, efficiency and
uphold the quality of the Group’s products, systematic trainings
were provided to staff, such as new staff induction program, fire
prevention seminars, work safety seminars, seminars on technical
topics, managerial skills, rules and regulations updates, etc..

B3.

ARELZETHERELRERERE#RBENLR
T AKECHE LB2mEERRF | R [EER
WERERF] -

FERAREEENMNETENNER 125
BTEHMESE-

BERE

AEEAEBRINNESE - NEBEERETA
ERgR WEEAEER FERTHER U
EERMAREREE - HHIN BEALREEE
BRI WERRSASEERLGE ARECA
B TRHEAGEI - a3 8 T ARSI T 08
I TEZ2MN e RMEENT S §EK
BRENEEHSE-

Efficient process for talent development
BMEAT B R RAZ

Objective setting
BERE

Establishing clear performance
targets to create value for
achieving the Company’s
business objectives
REBFMEOEEER  BRA)
*BERERAEEE

e Communicating with the
responsible personnel to
confirm the short-term and
long-term performance
output objectives
undertakings
HEE SR AR
R PR R A E
BiR

e Setting development
targets to ensure the growth
of organisational capability
RRALFERABRE KR
BERART

Competency Development
BEHEBRE

Conducting in depth analysis
and formulating a targeted plan
for performance development,
so as to ensure performance
optimization

IRADHT - HIE B E I AE
MR MRFEED &
N4

e Clarifying the content
and direction of our
trainings and ensuring their
implementation
RIS IRAE T - R
by

e Carrying out training and
capability improvement
work with a focus on core
competence development
RO NBRE  FRIS

|E28E iR A THE

* Improving the management
skills to support the
achievement of a high
performance process

BRRIZHER
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Performance Appraisal

RRFE

Conducting systematic
assessment and evaluation

on the results of performance
targets

A B BT AR R
ERZEE

e Establishing performance
assessing standards for
performance targets
HEBEME R REFET
fEimE

e FEvaluating the effectiveness
of the employees’ learning
and development program
FHEE TR BMERIAR
iyifiokeRiqd

e Careers development and
guidance for emp]oyees
BTHERRES

* Design and implementation
of performance incentive
system
BB RRTEE S

Vocational Development
BEBR

Proposing a clear plan that
provides a path to career
success for employees

AR A& BB TRE—&
BEMKIN BB

* Aflexible career
development system that
allows inter-departmental
transfer, vertical promotion
and cross-grade promotion
BENBERRRR BN
e EEEA BBEA

* In-house mentor program
AR 8 A&t &

e Task training program
ERIE I B

® Internal job rotation
w2

e Internal project program
AIEBIE B 5 &
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Labour standards

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations
in relation of the prohibition of child and forced labour. The Group
strictly prohibited employment of any staff under the age of 16.
The human resources department of the Group strictly implements
measures to prevent any violations thereof, for example, identity
cards, certificates of skills and graduation certificates of each staff
member are verified before signing formal employment agreements
with the candidates. The Group also has measures in place to
reconfirm whether the newly recruited staff meets the recruitment
criteria. The Group will pay minimum salary on a monthly basis
which is no less than those required by local government in
accordance with the government regulations during the probation
period. It will determine staff salary in accordance with the skills and
technical requirements of the position.

OPERATING PRACTICES

B5.

Supply chain management
Corporate certifications, qualifications and awards

The Group promotes the concept of “innovation” with strong
research and development capabilities. The Group has obtained
certifications in quality and environment management aspects
(ISO9001 and 1ISO14001). In addition, the Group has obtained
a series of corporate certifications, qualifications and awards as
listed out in the “Certifications and Qualifications” section above in
recognition in its effort in promoting “innovation”.

Procurement reliability and relationships with suppliers

The Group monitors its procurement procedures closely as raw
materials directly affect products quality. During the Period Under
Review, the major suppliers of the Group were mainly located in
Zhejiang province, Jiangsu province and other regions of the PRC
and had over 5 years of relationship with the Group on average.
When liaising with new suppliers, the sourcing department of the
Group is responsible for evaluating the potential suppliers with
reference to the criteria set out in the “Stakeholders Environmental
Management Procedures”, for example the compliance of relevant
statutory requirements, product quality, production stability,
compliance with safety and environmental protection rules and
regulations and pricing. The Group only engages the suppliers
which have passed the evaluation. Subsequent to the engagement
of the suppliers, the Group performs regular evaluation of its
suppliers in order to monitor product quality.

B4.
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B6.

Emergencies management

The Group formulated the “Emergency Management
Procedures” and “Fire Prevention Management Procedures”
and other production safety management systems to cope with
emergencies. In addition, the Group has designated personnel to
conduct safety inspections on production facilities and conduct
instant follow-up when any exceptional situation was found.

In order to minimise the environmental and social impact due to
emergencies, the Company will set up a central team to manage
emergencies and designate relevant personnel to formulate
evacuation plans, conduct post-incidental repair and investigations
in order to avoid the re-occurrence of similar incidents in
accordance with the “Ratification and Prevention Measures
Management Procedures”.

Product responsibility
Product quality

The Group is committed to offer quality products to customers and
complying with the requirements of relevant standards in relation
to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters of
its products. The Group has formulated the “Product Monitoring
and Measurement Management Procedures”, the “Defective
Product Management Procedures” and the “Data Analysis
Monitoring Procedures” in order to strictly manage product quality.
The following chart illustrates the quality and environmental
management system framework of Yongsheng:
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RIS HERERRS

The quality and environmental
management system framework of the Group
FEBEEBRREEE

e Customer
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e | aws and regulations
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Products

EE A

EEED Continuous improvement on
quality and environmental
management system
EERREEERRAY
FENE
Patents Eyl

As one of the leading manufacturers of differentiated PFY and
dyeing and processing of differentiated polyester filament fabrics
in the PRC, product quality is the top priority of the Group. The
Group owned 53 utility model patents and 2 invention patents.
The number of patents owned by each member of the Group is as
follows:

1E R BB ST 0 Z R R ik & Z R iR
ERAERNTHNEERZ —EmEERAE
B EEFE - NEEHEF3RERMLERNK
QEBAFN - ARBEEKE R A 2 A ENE
LI
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B7.

Number of

Invention Utility model patents

patents patents being owned

BHEAER BERMAEF BEEEME

Yongsheng Dyeing KB R EE 2 11 13
Yongsheng Chemical Fiber K ER A A - 21 21
Nantong Yongsheng EZREEINE - 21 21
2 53 55

The Group sets “innovation” as the top priority for its business
growth. The Group pays great attention to the protection of
intellectual property and product secrecy in order to safeguard
the fruit of its innovation. The product information department
is responsible for managing the patents and projects of the
Group. The Group will cooperate with intellectual property service
companies to improve the quantity and quality of future patents
applications. The Group will continue to develop a sustainable
innovation model through internal research and development,
industry-university-research cooperation and others research and
development efforts.

The Group will also perform periodic customer satisfaction surveys
in order to understand customer demand.

Anti-corruption

The Group emphasises on transparency and responsibility in
order to fulfill the corporate motto of “integrity”. The Group strives
to achieve zero occurrence of incidents that are detrimental to
the interests of shareholders, investors, customers and other
stakeholders of the Group. The Group had formulated a set of
anticorruption policies to ensure compliance with all applicable
anticorruption laws and regulations in relation to bribery, extorting,
fraud and money laundering. All directors, staff, agents and
representatives and any individuals acting on behalf of the Group
are prohibited from directly or indirectly offering, giving, soliciting or
receiving any form of bribe, kickback or other corruptive payment
or anything of value, to or from any person or organisation,
including government agencies, individual government officials,
private companies and employees of those private companies
under any circumstances. During the Period Under Review, the
Group did not have any non-compliance with laws and regulations
in respect of anti-corruption, including but not limited to Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Criminal Law of the PRC.

86 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2019

B7.

AEEK [BIF | RBXBEREZF -2 X
SESEERRENAERENEMRRE  AMRE
BIFAR - EREEMPIAEERAEENERN
NIBR - AEEMEMBEEREARAE 12
BARRENFFZHEREE -FAEFEIBA
T ESHAER MR TIFREERA
FERIFEA -

REETSEHETEEREERS  UERE
FEX-
RES

REEZENRFEAERE ER - AETT [#1E]
MEERR -AEERNHBELFRAEE
BR-REE BEPREMNGERENG 2 S
o REBEEHIERESHE BERETHARE
RRESEEREEER BR BMEFRLRE
ZERFEEE BT RIEBRAKURRRE
AEBTEZEMNBEAARERBERLTETTE
Bl A M A A AR EH - REEL
WERAEI 7 RO B S - B0 s B A58 AR SRSk
MAEENY R BT BRBA#E  EABUS
ER NERATRZELEARER - R EEH
B AEEWAREREFNBRARES 2ERR
R BRETRRERENE201E0 1EHE
{1 Be o B IS o



BS.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Moreover, the Group had formulated a whistle-blowing policy to
increase employees’ awareness to uphold integrity. The chairman,
chief executive officer and the audit committee of the Company
will receive report of the whistle-blowing incidents and have
the discretion to initiate independent investigations according
to the nature of the incidents or refer the incidents to relevant
regulatory authorities. The Group communicated with investors
and stakeholders periodically by publishing quarterly financial and
business updates, organising visits to its factories and arranging
focus group meetings with institutional investors and stock
commentators. The Group also published announcements in
relation to its major development in accordance with the seven
“Principles of Responsible Ownership” published by the Securities
and Futures Commission (“SFC”).

Community investment
Community service

Management of the Group actively participates in the public
positions in community service. The chairman of the Group has
been elected as a representative of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan
District People’s Congress of the PRC since December 2016. The
chief executive officer of the Group has been elected as a member
of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference since December 2016.

The Group is keen on contributing to the society. During the Period
Under Review, the Group donated approximately RMB396,000 to
surrounding communities and social organisations.

Community care

During the year of 2019, the Group was once again listed as one of
the “Top Ten Enterprises (3812 %) ” and won the honorary title
of “Advanced Taxpaying Enterprise ( A% 5022 ) " released by
the government of Jingjiang Street of Hangzhou.

Apart from paying high attention to corporate developments, the
Group also cares about the development of the communities
where its factories and offices locate. The Group has not only
provided financial support to those who are in need in the
surrounding communities, but also organised community events
and encouraged its staff to participate.

BS.
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Ernst & Young TXKEETEISE# R Tel E3E: +852 2846 9888
§ i 22/F, CITIC Tower EBPIRAFEIR Fax 8 E: +852 2868 4432
2 1 Tim Mei Avenue S A B 2218 ey.com
Central Hana Knnn
To the shareholders of BKBRFHRAERAARRK

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yongsheng
Advanced Materials Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 254 which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
1 7% S EMER S

BRREXEER

ARBZERERBRMANFERHE BAHEH
MBRRNERRAREENETR - ZEFRRER
MEZEBAHVBRRRHAERERERE B
MreERSEFREHERBNER -RAYTLE
—EHRAEBRZPRIAEENREALBALERER -

BRMERBITABRERLUMAF LS I BB KB A
EHEL—SHAENEE BREAEZEEENE
Fo Rt HPINBEZRERATREYE KM BERE
BEXRERRAROTEMRNIZT -BREF (BERE
BUTEENER)NERDHMIBEENE S 6 8
BHRNEZ S RIBMHER-

XEEFMRERAT 201055k 89



Independent Auditor’s Report
BT %SRS

Key audit matter

RREELSHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERTNMEEREERER

Construction contracts revenue recognition

BEEHRATER

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has recognised revenue
from construction contracting and related business of RMB107,570,000.
the Group applying an input method which recognised revenue based on
the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage of
total estimated costs for each contract. The input method involves the use
of management’s significant judgement and estimates, including estimates
of the progress towards completion, the scope of deliveries and services
required, total contract costs, and remaining costs to completion. Because of
the significant judgement and estimates adopted in recognising construction
contract revenue, this is considered as a key audit matter.
REBE_Z-NF+A=+—HLLFE - BESHEBERKERESHR
BHEEBHKRAARKE107,570,000T . EEEDEREREBEREHK
E& KPS| BUK A PTG 484 5 A AN 89 Eb I BE R U a8 B9 88 AR A BR © 8 AUK
B RERERENE ARG Kbt BEMG T ITER  FTERNZN KR
BHE SNENERTINARTERA - AREREZESHRARERAERXR
I R b et R P AR AEREREE-

The accounting policies and related disclosures for the revenue recognition
on construction contracts are included in notes 2, 3 and 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BERESHWARERNETBER RAAB R EH N & 0 w2 -
35
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We performed the following procedures in relation to
revenue recognition of construction contracts:

HMBITERZESHINABREENTIIRT -

1)

We evaluated and tested controls over
the accounting process of contract costs,
contract revenues and the calculation of the
stage of completion;

B EAMAR - &AW kT T#ERZ T
HH G2 7 h TR RORBIR

We reviewed significant construction
contracts on a sample basis to check the
total contract revenues and other key contract
terms;

B EHNERRESY UREREY
Woas & Bofth 3 E A KRR

We checked the contract costs incurred on
a sample basis to check against supporting
documents such as delivery and acceptance
notes and invoices;

BB EE £ RENA - B
N R IR N 3 RS S SR

We evaluated management’s judgement and
estimates in the determination of estimated
total contract costs on a sample basis by
discussing the progress of the construction
contracts with those in charge of the projects
and by comparing actual contract costs
incurred with budgeted contract cost; and
HMEBEERAREATHELESNNE
B UREREORARBES HRAET
LB HEGHE B IR BN E R (A aT & 8K
ANES R H B K iR R

We re-calculated the revenue recognised
under the input method on a sample basis
and performed analytical review procedures
according to different construction contract
types.

PR E NG E R ORRERE W - I
RIETREES VRN TONERREF -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERTNAEEREERER

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECL”) of trade receivables and
contract assets

ESRKNAREHNEENARCEEE ([RAGEERE]) BE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade receivables and contract
assets of RMB38,859,000 and RMB18,456,000, respectively before
provisions for impairment of RMB2,347,000 and RMB989,000, respectively.
RZZ—NF+ZA=+—H BEBEZEFERFBERENEESD
Al & A R #38,859,0007T & A K #18,456,0007T (1 H 5 8 B 5 A R
2,347,0007 & A R #6989,0007T A1) °

The determination as to estimated credit loss involves management
judgement and estimates. Management considers specific factors to decide
the ECL such as the age of the balances, location of customers, existence
of disputes, recent historical payment patterns and any other available
information concerning the creditworthiness of counterparties. Management
uses this information to determine whether a provision for impairment is
required.

REEMAEEBESTEREELABREMAH -ERERETENE
BEEEEENABAROEESRNRES T ERAEME SR FEM
HOMHERSEFEAN AT EENEAEMAISER -BREER
ZEENETRE AL RERE-

Because of significant management judgement involved and estimates
adopted in determining ECL and the materiality of the amounts involved, this
is considered as a key audit matter.
HRECHERAGEEREEREEREFEE SR WIRAGTEM IS8
BR WEMEEESEREREER-

The accounting policies and related disclosures for the trade receivables and
contract assets are included in notes 2, 3, 21 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BB ZRYFIARAHNEEN S BEE MR ES N A 0 BlE
BizE2 +3-21%23 °

We performed the following procedures in relation to
the provision assessment for trade receivables and
contract assets:

B EZREFIARGNEENB BT HIT
ATRER

1) We evaluated the design and implementation
of management’s controls over assessment
of recoverability of trade receivables and
contract assets;

1) KM EREEUEIRRFBERENEE
B A] [l U B R A 1 R B SR AT R B e

2) We sent trade receivables confirmations and
checked bank receipts for the payments
received subsequent to year end, on a sample
basis; and

2) FHMHEEEESHEKFIERRE RzBR
FHEBBREMONFORITERS &

3) We also assessed the assumptions used
to determine the ECL of trade receivables
and contract assets by checking the ageing
of receivables and historical payment
patterns as well as evaluating the impact of
macroeconomic factors that management
considered affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables by
checking the correlation between such
macroeconomic factors and the historical
observed default rates.

3 EMIATEEEESERRIERGNEETE
HEEEBRMANGR  HERE B
HRRE MR R A R BB E %R
BRI AEOEEAL  SHHERER
REBEPEFRKIRR N RB S ER
ES0kZ X
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Key audit matter

RREELSHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERTNMEEREERER

Acaquisition of subsidiaries not under common control

W R K RIFEE)IR T BB /E 2 7]

On 22 February 2019, the Group acquired 100% interest in Summer Power
International Inc from third parties as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. When applying the acquisition accounting, the Group
was required to perform a purchase price allocation, and the process involved
the determination of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
including intangible assets and goodwill. Such process was complex and it
involved significant judgement. Assisted by external valuation specialists, the
Group adopted different approaches for the determination of the fair values of
different types of identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree. The process
also involved a number of assumptions such as discount rate and weighted
average cost of capital. The purchase price allocation resulted in goodwill and
intangible assets of approximately RMB101,181,000 and RMB64,900,000,
respectively.

BMINE A BRI T3P IR R TE—hEF_A=-+=-H " &%KHE
ME=FWEENEBRERAA100%KE REAKEETER &
SEBETEEER IR MZEFFPRABFIEEREE (BERFY
BEREE)RNTENETE -GHREFBRAEMI P KB KA - EINE
HEERNOBH T EXBEERAZEEETHRKEIOTRERE
MEERBBENRAFENAE ZIEFITYRE TERE (IR E RN
R ERKA) -BEERDESHELRERBEEENIINARE
101,181,0007T & A £ #64,900,0007T ©

Because of the significant management judgement involved and
assumptions adopted in determining the fair values of the identifiable assets
and liabilities including intangible assets and goodwiill, this is considered as a
key audit matter.

HRETA#MNEERAE (BRELEEREE)NATERTERE
EHERABMITRABRSR WRMEERAERSEZEE-

The accounting policies and related disclosures for the business combination
not under common control are included in notes 2, 3, and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BRAWIENHEFREFIE TR S ST BR BB ERN A 08
BIMERMF2 - 3%35
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Our procedures to assess the respective purchase
price allocation included :

BMFHEBEE KNEFRRE:

We reviewed the appraisal reports prepared
by the external valuation specialists;
B FRIN A ETREROTERE

We evaluated the competency and objectivity
of the external appraisers engaged by the
Group;

BMEFNE BERZEAIBEERMNBE
e REEM

We assessed the identification of assets and
liabilities based on our understanding of the
business of the acquiree and discussion with
the management;

BB RIBRPIE BT 0580 7 f J 82
EREH R A EERBENAEME
=88

We checked the forecasts prepared by
management by discussing the rationale
of key assumptions with management and
checking orders on hand on a sampling basis;
and
BMEERMEERENREEBRRNERR
BRMEZE FENGTERREERERY
BRI &

We involved our internal valuation specialist
to review the methodology and certain
assumptions (such as discount rates and
growth rates) adopted for the determination of
fair values of identifiable assets or liabilities of
the acquiree.
BMERASGESRENRECRWES
AHRNEERBEN A TEMENN T ER
HTEBE (AR ERIEREK) o
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERTNAEEREERER

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

BEAEHFRTEEELEERERZH

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recognised goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives of approximately RMB105,923,000 and
RMB58,347,000, respectively, which represented 6.4% and 3.5% of the total
assets of the Group, respectively.

RZB-NFE+ZA=+—H EBEEEH EIJEEWFﬁ;EW%ﬁHﬂETﬁE
EEE E X ARK®105,923,0007T & A R#58,347,0007T  H Al &
LB EERENG.4%5K%3.5% °

Under International Accounting Standard 36 Impairment of Assets, the Group
is required to perform annual impairment test for goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives. Management performed impairment tests on
these assets by using discounted cash flow models as at 31 December
2019. The assessment was complex, and it involved significant judgments
and assumptions such as long-term growth rate and discount rate.
REER G ERIEREERE BEEEAHMENERFR®
TEMEAEETFEREANR RT-—NF+_A=1+—H EBER
AMARSRERUZSEELETRENR T HRAEM PREUR
R R AL ER ) & E AT R A A

Because of significant management judgement involved and assumptions
adopted in performing the impairment test, this is considered as a key audit
matter.
HARETREARKREEEEELERAAE RRBRR  HEMEER
REAREZEIE-

The accounting policies and related disclosures for impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite lives are included in notes 2, 3, 17 and
18 to the consolidated financial statements.
EHERENERERTEERLEERENSHTBRIBAREHNE
PHEF TS R MIzE2 -3 1718 °

We performed the following procedures in relation
to the impairment assessment for goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives:
BMEAERENERFR I EEELEERE
AHERAOEFNT

1) We reviewed the appraisal reports prepared
by the external valuation specialists;

1) RAIEEHIBEEEREHNFEERS

2) We evaluated the competency and objectivity
of the external appraisers engaged by the

Group;
2)  EHMEE BEREZEOINIEEMEE
Fee I REBM

3) We reviewed the basis of preparation of the
forecasts used for goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives impairment test :

3) HMEHMBMENMERER I ETEETLERE
R EDRI S A R TEDRI 0 i L B

4) We involved our internal valuation specialist
to assist us in reviewing the methodology
and certain assumptions adopted in the
assessment of impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives : and

4) FMBRAMBEEZR GBI FRMEHATE
EEIE B FR AT B EEREMRA
BITERE TR

5) We reviewed management’s assessment
of the sensitivity of the Group’s impairment
model to reasonably possible changes and
considered the adequacy of disclosures
for impairment testing in the consolidated
financial statements.

5 EHMEEMHEREN BESEREEREAHE
& IR A pe F B B E AT - WE B S O
M mRFAEAHBERENR R -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
1B i% S EMER S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE ZEMRBRSHUTBEHRRAREN
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL B5E(E)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the . HHEEFMASHBERERE URESH
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures EHM S HMENEBAEEESEE-

made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going . @ %i ERANFELCE AERNSHERES
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence AR BB EZ%HXE’J%TZ BE BERST
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events fj ﬁ% ERHELCEMENENERARBNSE
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability HRIBREERTHBPEZR - WERMBER
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material RBEATHMERZ BMEEEZEAMGS
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s PRBITESHVBMEANNEREEREE
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial LM RBEEABBEIR A BRERIEERBE
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our BMEREEREEZHYAR S A Hﬂ Ffr -3
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained B %% BEE A RREHHIBAATEE
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or EETHAGRELENEN
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the . FHEA IR RAOEEY® EENAR
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, BERBEER UARafVBREEEEAT
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the R BR R F AR 5 R EIH o
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial . ?fﬁ EEEANSERBREKTDNTIEERE

information of the entities or business activities within the Group to BRMBEENEIZEE  URESHI B REE
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We 2% ER-ZMEABEESZ HEENHT &%
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of MEZIIE - BMERRMANETEZE RARE
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 2HEF-
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lawrence K. W. Lau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2020

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
SiHERRIHEMPHMRAE

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—ZT—hE+-A=+—HIEE

2019 2018
—g-h%E —T-N\#F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
h=s AR®T R ARMEF T
(Re-presented)
(&5)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELCEER
REVENUE Wz 5 306,539 206,420
Cost of sales SHE R (204,085) (116,433)
Gross profit ER 102,454 89,987
Other income and gains, net Hih U A K W et 558 5 15,382 15,801
Selling and distribution expenses SHE MDA (3,881) (4,440)
Administrative expenses T X (44,340) (28,277)
Finance costs B & AR 7 (1,005) (297)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM BEQEER 2 BB AN F
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 6 68,610 72,774
Income tax expense RS 10 (17,597) (15,252)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM BESEERTFERF
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 51,013 57,522
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS HmIEREER
Profit for the year from B TS FE R A
discontinued operations 84,035 29,157
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 135,048 86,679
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HiZ2mEUBA
Other comprehensive income that iR e ESEIEEN
may be reclassified to profit or loss Hih 2 EUA -
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign & /BINEFKEHIIE X Z£58
operations 9,187 608
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMZEBA
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (MBRBIE) 9,187 608
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEMBALTE
FOR THE YEAR 144,235 87,287
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SttERRHEtZ2EMRAZ

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_ZT—hE+_-_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—%-ne —2 N\
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ih=s ARMT T ARBTF T
Profit attributable to: AT G R A :
Shareholders of the Company ZAN/NS ) S 113,895 80,751
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR R 21,153 5,928
135,048 86,679
Total comprehensive income attributable to: LA T fE{f 2 1 UR A 42 %8
Shareholders of the Company ZiN/NE )33 123,082 81,359
Non-controlling interests e R 21,153 5,928
144,235 87,287
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE AARRRELBRER
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 13
Basic =N
—For profit for the year —FERA AEK¥RMB16.4 cents7 A K*¥RMB20.4 cents?
—For profit from continuing operations —FHEREES 2w AR™RMB7.3 cents? ARERMB14.5 cents/)
Diluted 1357
—For profit for the year —F R AR¥RMB16.2 cents? AR ¥%RMB19.9 cents?
—For profit from continuing operations —FHEREEB 2R ARMRMB7.2 cents? A RERMB14.2 cents?
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SHEFINRE

Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE=_—ZF

= ISFr=A =T — B E

2019 2018
—E-h#F —N\&F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
{hE=s AR¥T R ARBTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB L& E 14 81,615 234,055
Prepayments for property, Y B REES
plant and equipment TET A 208 3,405
Investment properties "EYE 15 654,698 -
Prepaid land lease payments AN T A ERIAE 16(a) - 27,121
Right-of-use assets FERREE 16(b) 11,408 =
Goodwiill GES 17 105,923 -
Other intangible assets HEtmEEEE 18 66,261 4,372
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE 30 536 -
Total non-current assets ERBEELT 920,649 268,953
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories & 19 3,796 85,205
Properties under development TERPME 20 198,524
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWRIA & e 1R 21 66,094 137,277
Contract assets EHEE 23 17,467 =
Prepayments, deposits and FENRE & &
other receivables b fE Y SRT 22(a) 16,365 41,051
Trust loan receivable ERETLER 22(b) 145,832 50,000
Financial assets designated as BT AEAFETA
at fair value through profit or loss B emEE 24 100,696 68,134
Amounts due from related parties e B E 5 BUE 38 43,259 3,190
Pledged deposits EEAEFR 25 - 2,743
Cash and cash equivalents HeERREeEEY 25 148,679 144,573
Total current assets MEEEBRE 740,712 532,173
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables B S EMNIE 26 53,861 78,556
Amounts due to a related party TR E R RUIE 38 - 38
Other payables and accruals H b e~ R &Fg FTEGE 27 28,475 49,991
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &1 S 8817 R E b &3 28 25,840 37,700
Government grants BT & B 29 387 1,225
Income tax payable FERFRSTR 24,209 12,206
Total current liabilities mEBaEeE 132,772 179,716
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 607,940 352,457
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBERS
LIABILITIES 1,528,589 621,410
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SHEFSIRRE
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—ZE—hE+-_A=+—HBILEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ih=s AR®T R AREFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5T B8R 17 M EAtb (&3 28 70,355 =
Government grants BT & B 29 7,290 11,285
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 30 13,904 10,211
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELETR 91,549 21,496
Net assets FEE 1,437,040 599,914
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to shareholders of the VNN G g
Company
Share capital A& A 31 6,217 3,121
Share premium f& 105 B 31 886,872 130,657
Other reserves HAth &1 33 543,951 422,420
1,437,040 556,198
Non-controlling interests AR S - 43,716
Total equity - Fny e 1,437,040 599,914
Li Cheng Ma Qinghai
=3 558
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
SHignZEaNE

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+_A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

RAARFES
Foreign Equity-
currency  Statutory settled Non-
Share Share  Retained translation surplus arrangement Other controlling Total
capital  premium earnings* reserve* reserve* reserve*  reserves* Total interests equity
NERE  EERH  BHEE
RE  ROEE RERW e B RERH  HEEE 4y FEREZE  BR4E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR
(note 31)  (note 31) (note33)  (note33)  (note 32)
(Wir31)  (HiEs1) (W&33)  (W&3)  (W&s2)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-hE-A-A 3,121 130,657 388,794 (2,178) 68,171 13,391 (45,758) 556,198 43,716 599,914
Profit for the year FREF - 113,895 - 113,895 21,153 135,048
Other comprehensive income for the year: EREMEERA:
Exchange differences on tranglation of BEFHERNELZR
foreign operations - - - 9,187 - - - 9,187 - 9,187
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEMALE - - 113,895 9,187 - - - 123,082 21,153 144,235
Acquisiion of assets and liabiites through BBNERBLREAEER
acquisttion of subsidiaries (note 36) Af (M3236) 2390 609,451 - - - - - e84 - 61184
Acqisition of subsidiaries not under common  WEAF £REHIHE L E
control note 35] (H335) 685 170455 . . . . - M0 - 71140
Disposal of subsidaries (note 11) HERBAR (K1) - - 13,656 - (13,656) - - - 61611)  (61,611)
Liquidation of a subsidiary BE-HHBAR - - - - - - - = (8,258) (3,258)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ~ BIAA BREZ[KE - (27,951) - - - - - (27,951) - (27,951)
Appropriation to statutory reserves PREEERE - - (17,408) - 17,408 - - - - -
Excerise of share options IR E 2 4,260 - - - (1,551) - 2,730 - 2,730
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-F=1-H 6,217 886,872 498,937 7,009 71,923 11,840 (45,758) 1,437,040 - 1,437,040
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NE-f—-A 3173 173,359 324,130 (2,786) 52,084 14,976 (46,130) 518,806 46,051 564,857
Profit for the year FREF - - 80,751 - - - - 80,751 5928 86,679
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMZEMA: - - - - - - - - - -
Exchange differences on tranglation of BEFNERNERER
foreign operations - - - 608 - - - 608 - 608
Total comprehensive income for the year ENEENALE - - 80,751 608 - - - 81,359 5928 87,287
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ~ MAAAIRE KA - (26,285) - - - - - (26,285) = (26,285)
Dividends paid to non-controling interests AEERER L ARE - - - - - - - - (21,315) (21315)
Appropriation to statutory reserves PREETRE - - (16,087) - 16,087 - - - - -
Disposal of partial interests in a subsidlary ERRABHIRNARTILE—
without losing control (note 34) BB AR ER
(M3t34) - - - - - - 105 105 17,556 17,661
Acquisition of addltional interests in a subsidlary ~ Z# 1 — B AR 2R - - - - - - 267 267 (4,504) (4,237)
Shares repurchased and cancelled (note 31) BRI R (M) 82) (22,299) - - - - - (22,381) - (22,381)
Exercise of share options TEBERE 30 5,882 - - - 2.110) - 3802 - 3802
Equity-settled share option arangements REFERRERH - - - - - 52 - 525 - 525
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1-H 3121 130,657 388,794 2,178 68,171 13,391 (45,758) 556,198 43716 599,914

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves

of RMB543,951,000 (2018: RMB422,420,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SHEEREE

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_T—hE+-A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
{h=s AR¥T T ARMEF T
CASH FLOWS FROM KETFHHRESRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: B 56 A A A -
From continuing operations REFERCEER 68,610 72,774
From a discontinued operations KB IE AT 107,283 32,676
Adjustments for: FATIEB EHMAR:
Finance costs Bl & R AR 7&11 2,889 1,537
Interest income FEWA (4,245) (4,942)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BB LR HEE
plant and equipment 6 172 48
Gain on disposal of a prepaid HEEMLEEREY
land lease payment Iz - (6,720)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ﬁ EME ARz W= 11 (24,432) =
Fair value gains, net: N B M A
Financial assets designated as BEEAFEFABRED
at fair value through profit or loss TREE 5 (2,737) (7,266)
Changes in fair value of investment properties & ¥ 3 N\ F(E & 5 (6,905) =
Depreciation of property, V¥ - HERBEEITE
plant and equipment 14 20,227 20,241
Depreciation of right-of-use assets/ FHEEENE TR
recognition of prepaid land lease payment TEfT T b & FIE 16 1,874 814
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b L 18 5,395 1,170
Impairment of trade receivables and Z 5 FEGRIE R
contract assets BHEERE 21823 3,190 34
Provision for write-down of inventories W?}iﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬂ@ﬁ%fﬁz
to their net realisable value B 3,223 =
Equity-settled share option expense RS E B ER - 525
174,544 110,891
Decrease in inventories &R 2,399 7,970
Decrease/(Increase) in amount due e BRE 5 RIER L
from related parties (1hn) 3,482 (390)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 PR IA Kk R R &
bills receivables (&), md (78,210) 12,675
Increase in contract assets = ,%’9 BEE N (15,135) =
Increase in deposits and other receivables & N Ath FE MR IE I AN (1,793) (3,912
Decrease/(Increase) in trade payables B S EMFER D, () 85,799 61,815)
Increase in other payables and accruals EohFE A RUE K FE AT E LG N 20,285 4,428
Cash generated from operations KBRS 191,371 69,847
Interest received SR &N 2,770 1,674
Income taxes paid ERATEH (30,715) (14,158)
Net cash flows from operating activities L TEBFTS e R 163,426 57,363
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

StHRERsE

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_ZT—hWE+_-_A=1+—HILEE

2019 2018
—2-nE —F—\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ih=s ARMT T AREF T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHFBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B U F & 4,850 9,151
Purchases of items of property, BEYE BEIEEEE
plant and equipment (16,389) (31,520)
Additions to an investment property NE—IRIREME (44,296) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEYE BEMLEEEDN
property, plant and equipment FriSsA 1,563 1,398
Proceeds from disposal of a prepaid HEBEM A ERBERE
land lease payment KIE 2,250 5,055
Additions to properties under development 7N & 2R R ¥ (10,825) -
Acquisition of assets and liabilities through BRWENBAREBABEKR
acquisition of subsidiaries A& 36 (179,948) =
Acquisition of subsidiaries not under W IE LRSI T Z B A A
common control 35 (1,138) -
Additions to other intangible assets AREEMEBEREE 18 - (35)
Proceeds from settlement of financial assets &M EIE A FEFT AIBZEY
designated as at fair value through SR EEMMTEHRIE
profit or loss 126,150 180,000
Increase in trust loan receivable FEUR & s T B FRIE N (152,241) (50,000)
Withdrawal of trust loan receivable Ol ERETLER 57,040 50,000
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWE QR 11 139,314 -
Cancellation of a subsidiary i — M E AR (458) -
Deposit paid for potential acquisitions mEBERENI N 2ES 20 - (20,000)
Purchases of financial assets designated as B B8 EIE AT EF AIBEM
at fair value through profit or loss SREE (160,000) (186,150)
Release of pledged deposits FEBR B IRTT R 45,461 26,712
Additions to pledged deposits G E TR (49,120) (19,305)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREFESFARESMEFE (237,787) (34,694)
CASH FLOWS FROM METBHMERERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRRD BT B 5K08 2,730 3,802
New bank loans HERITER 154,600 61,100
Repayment of bank loans EEIRITER (47,907) (38,400)
Proceeds from disposal of partial interests BRI R AR NHE
in a subsidiary without losing control —HMB R B S =R FT
1S58 34 - 17,661
Acquisition of interests in a subsidiary from A 3EFE IR RE RS U BE R
the non-controlling interests —RIf B ARz = (4,237)
Shares repurchased B D&% - (22,381)
Principal portion of lease payment MENREEZHH (1,046) -
Dividend paid EATRR B (27,951) (26,285)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests A FE 45 AR R 1 ST AN RS - (21,315)
Interest paid ERFE (2,381) (1,486)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activitiesgt & & &N AT 15, (FT )
ReREFRE 78,045 (31,541)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

StHRERE

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_ZT—hE+_-_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—%-ne —2 N\
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥F T ARBTF T
NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH HERBSSEYHE M
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS WA FEE 3,684 (8,872)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FURERREEED
of year 144,573 162,837
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SN [E R & Eha) 57 25 58 422 608
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRRASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 25 148,679 144,573
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RekReFEWERIIT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances HE RIBTES 55,679 81,483
Non-pledged time deposits with original UL EERS REIHI A
maturity of less than three months when R=E A ZEBERTEHFER
acquired 93,000 63,090
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in RIBRAKRZEI 2RE K
the statement of financial position ReEEY 148,679 144,573
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in RIREREXRZINZRER
the statement of cash flows BeEED 148,679 144,573
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SRR ZEMicE

31 December 2019

1.

e — A =

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 19 April
2012 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Second Floor,
Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1103, Cayman Islands.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:
o Development and manufacture of polyester filament yarns;
° Provision of dyeing services of differentiated polyester

filament fabric;

o Trading of polyester filament yarns in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC");

° Properties investment (new in 2019); and

o Renovation, maintenance, alternation and additional
services(‘RMAA service”) (new in 2019)

In the opinion of directors, the holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Ever Thrive Global Limited
(“Ever Thrive”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI") and controlled by Mr. Li Cheng (the “Controlling
Shareholder”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

31 December 2019

St AT IR Rl 5E

—T-hAEt+=—A=+—H

RAREEESR (&)

B L ARNER

ARBINBEAROFENAT

Particulars of
issued and
Place of incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name registration and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
BETR
£ BB/ ERREEHE SRS FAREGESZA L TEXY
Direct Indirect
B B

Yongsheng Advanced Materials (BVI)  Limited liability company incorporated US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited (“Yongsheng BVI") in the BVI

KEFHH (BV) BRAR RABRRHESEMRINHERAR E 100 - REBK
(Ika&pv) 1)

Yongsheng Advanced Materials (HK)  Limited liability company incorporated US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited (“Yongsheng HK’) in Hong Kong

KEFME (BR)ERDA RERTIMKLNERRAR (E - 100 REER
(IkEEE])

Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Dyeing  Limited liability company established RMB200,000,000 - 100 Provision of dyeing services in
and Finishing Co. Limited in the PRC the PRC
(“Yongsheng Dyeing")

MM ERLKERFEERAR KRB IHERAF ARE - 100 RAPBREAERE
(IKEAE]) 200,000,0007C

First Intelligence International Limited  Limited liability company incorporated US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
(‘First Intelligence”) in Hong Kong

BERBBERAR ([B7r]) REBTMELNERRAR 50,000% 7 100 - REER

Chang Sheng investment Holding Limited liability company incorporated HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Co. Limited in Hong Kong
(“Chang Sheng investment”)

MEREZRERAR REBIMRINERA A 1T - 100 REER
(MRERE])

Changsheng Property (Hangzhou) Limited liability company established RMB200,000,000 - 100 Property services in the PRC
Company Limited (‘Changsheng in the PRC
Property”)

HEWE (M) ERAH RHRERIHERAR AR - 100 RPERRENZERSE
(MeEm%]) 200,000,0007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

St AT IR R 5E

31 December 2019

—E-h&E+=-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

AFAREEESN (&)

BB A BN E R ()
AATMBLANFABEOT (&)

(Continued)
Particulars of
issued and
Place of incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name registration and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
BRTR
£ EMRL/ EMREEEE ERBRAFE ARRREGERAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B# B
Hangzhou Yonghao Investment Limited liability company established RMB50,500,000 - 100 Properties investment
Management Company Limited in the PRC in the PRC
(*Hangzhou Yonghao Investment”)
MMAEREEBERAA REBRIHBRAA AR - 100 RPERENERE
(MRMKERE]) 50,500,007
Philosojoy Investment Limited Limited liability company incorporated HKS$1 - 100 Investment holding
(*Philosojoy Investment”) in Hong Kong
BRREERAR ([FHRE]) REBIMAINERAT 1T - 100 REER
Summer Power International Inc. Limited liability company incorporated US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
(“Summer Power”) in Hong Kong
ENERBERRA(TENER]) REBIMRINERAF 50,000% 7T 100 - REEBR
Widely Construction & Limited liability company incorporated HK$10,000 - 100 RMAA services in Hong Kong
Engineering Limited in Hong Kong
(“Widely Construction & Engineering’)
BHRETRERRA REBAMKLHBERAR 10,0007 7T - 100 REBRERMAART

(MeMETR])

The financial statements of these subsidiaries above were not
audited by Ernst&Young, Hong Kong, or another member firm of

Ernst&Young global network.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which
include all International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets designated as at fair value through profit
or loss and investment properties which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in RMB
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

21 REEE

WEFBHRRDRIEER S ERNE RS ([E
e EAIREEE ) R BRI BREER
(TBERMBREER]) (BEMABEERYG
HEER - BFRSFER (TERSFER]) &
BR)UARBEARGINEEREMAESR
HERBHRREREELKAERE - HEE
BAFEFABRSNEREERREMEDR
RPEFE- EHBHRRAAREZN M
BRRBHRAN —YEECREEREANT
(VR

AHMBHRRBERNRARREMB LR (51
(ReEl | )BE-"E—AE+-—B=+—8IF
FENPBHRR -WBARBIEARREEK
REZRZEGHNER (BEREBLEER) - WAKE
BER2EPIRE T XK N F A LA RIUSKER
BITONTEELH BAEENTEERKET
MENFEARDS MAKEEEZEREN
2% (AR T AR B E SRR E T8k
RBEVREST) ©

EARANTEERREREENRRETRERES
BOEN A RKXYE AR AR RS HIRE T
EEHRARNE AEEEZEMARBEEE
RIER - B

p=ll3

ZWIRETHMREREERANER
E:

\

(a)

B

b) REEMEOLRHEMZENEN: K
© AEEMERERRBERERE-

BB A BB IHRR T AR BB R & B
ERER - BMNEFBRER - MEBARINE
BOBAKEREDZEGEZBFABESS
R VHEESEAREEXEZFAMEN#ZEZA
ALk

xmERaERAR 2010 109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
IFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

IFRIC-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Annual Improvements to  Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11,
IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle IAS 12 and IAS 23

Except for the amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 19 and IAS 28, and
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not
relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the
nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs are described
below:

(@ IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under
a single on-balance sheet model to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors continue
to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in IAS 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(@  (Continued)

IFRS 16 did not have any significant impact on leases where
the Group is the lessor.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application
of 1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard has
been applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initial adoption recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at 1 January 2019, and
the comparative information for 2018 was not restated
and continued to be reported under IAS 17 and related
interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under IAS 17
and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition
of a lease under IFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts
entered into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(@)

(Continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified
as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of lands
and buildings. As a lessee, the Group previously classified
leases as either finance leases or operating leases based
on the assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
to the Group. Under IFRS 16, the Group applies a single
approach to recognise and measure right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for all leases, except for two elective
exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected on a
lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12
months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of
underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group
recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-
of-use assets and interest accrued on the outstanding lease
liabilities (as finance costs).

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based
on the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1
January 2019 in the statement of financial position. The
right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised
in the statement of financial position immediately before 1
January 2019.

31 December 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 SERTBERREE (&)

AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(@  (Continued) (@)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified
as operating leases (Continued)

Impacts on transition (Continued)

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based
on IAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the
right-of-use assets separately in the statement of financial
position.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases
with a lease term that ends within 12 months from the
date of initial application

° Using hindsight in determining the lease term where
the contract contains options to extend /terminate the
lease

Financial impact at 1 January 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 at 1
January 2019 was as follows:

(#8)

ERABA-KERTEREER
EnHEE (&R

BENEE (K)
FAKSAESNKAREDR R

R3S ETREN G -NEBEER
MBEARKRDH2INEREEE -

R-ZB-NF—A—-BEARETBEER
EEAFE16RE  AEECEA TR
BURTEREDA:

FERE B MR B HE12(E A
MR IEZ R EEER R

s MAKNBEEH /KIHEEZEE
B AERETHEEN

S NF—H—AZHBZE

R-T—NF— A BRABEKRT R
EEIEMELEZRENT

Increase/
(decrease)
#mn CRd)
RMB’000
ARMFT
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets fEAEEELM 28,145
Decrease in prepaid land lease payments TE T M E R SO (27,121)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables and TERTRIE - A FEIGRIE &
other assets Hith & E=m 4 (83)
Increase in total assets & EBEE 941
Liabilities =R
Increase in lease liabilities HEABEEM 941
Increase in total liabilities B EBFEIE 941
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SRR IR R Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE— A&+ =-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 BEESHHEREE (F)
AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(@  (Continued) @ (&)
As a lessee - Leases previously classified EAABA-LRIDEAKER
as operating leases (Continued) EWHEE (&)
Impacts on transition (Continued) BEHZE (&)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (Continued) REZF-NF-—A—HZHBEZE (&)
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the R-_E—NF—A—BzHEAFEER
operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 are ZE-NF+ZA=T-—HZEEHEE
as follows: EEHERENT
RMB’000
ARET T
Operating lease commitments as at 31 December R=—ZE—N\&E+=-A=+—H2
2018 RERERE 1,137
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases and g : B2 58 HATE & & FIgr L E 5
those leases with a remaining lease term ended RZE-—NFF+ZA=+—B=%
on or before 31 December 2019 2 B4 R 910 & 48 B m iR (167)
970
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate RZZE-NF-A—B2Z
as at 1 January 2019 DO T353R 32 A5 BRI K 4.75%
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R-ZE—-hF—-—HA—BzHEEE 941
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5

31 December 2019 —Z&—

NET=—A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(o)

IFRIC 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of IAS 12 (often referred to
as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (i)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how
an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
Upon adoption of the interpretation, the Group considered
whether it has any uncertain tax positions arising from
the transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based on the
Group’s tax compliance and transfer pricing study, the
Group determined that it is probable that its transfer pricing
policy will be accepted by the tax authorities. Accordingly,
the interpretation did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 9
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

and IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 1

Definition of a Business'

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts?

Definition of Material'

Classification of liabilities as Current or
Non-current*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

e No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022

31 December 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 C MM 1B i R AR Z BB B 1% 3R

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Other than further information about those IFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group as described below, the Group
expected the adoption of the above new and revised standards
will not have any significant financial effect on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a
business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove
the assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided
to customers, investment income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to transactions or other events that occur on or after
the date of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address the effects
of interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge
accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships which are directly
affected by these uncertainties. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of
a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now and not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwiill
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

o)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

U

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group; (If the Group is itself such a
plan) and the sponsoring employers of the post-
employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2.25% 10 2.5%
Plant and machinery 6.4% to 9%
Vehicles 18% t0 22.5%
Office equipment, leasehold

improvement and others 18% to 45%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.
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S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Technical know-how

Acquired technical know-how of manufacturing processes is
shown at historical cost. Acquired technical know-how are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the know-
how and are amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10
years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software is shown at historical cost and is
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful
lives of 10 years.

Sewage pipe usage right
Acquired sewage pipe usage right is shown at historical cost and
is capitalised on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire the usage

right. The costs are amortised over the contractual lives of 20
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

Contract backlog

Contract backlog acquired as part of business combinations was
valued of fair value based on present value technique. Contract
backlog was amortised over the period up to the completion of
each of the contracts.

Brand

Brand acquired as part of business combinations was valued
at fair value based on the relief from the royalty method. Brand
was considered as the main attributes to the revenue and future
growth of the Group’s RMAA services in Hong Kong, and thus
are recognised as intangible assets with indefinite useful lines, and
tested for impairment annually.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 50 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

®)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset. The Group’s lease liabilities are included in
interest —bearing bank and other borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of office
equipment and laptop computers that are considered to be
of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are
accounted for as finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value
of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases,
including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate
of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESHBEME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments and other financial assets RERHMWERMEE (&)
(Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued) A ERARE ()
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are CREENMETHEEREERZFHH (A
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group AEBAEBEXLEZEEZH)ER &
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or REERNERFTEE —REERITIHED
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery BUYMNPBHABRREENSREEREE XL
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or o

convention in the marketplace.
Subsequent measurement #iETTE

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their CRMEEMBRENERTETISEME
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) BEBIEKATENEHEE (BEXKTH)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured REHKAFENEREERERETRERA
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. REHE VARSI AETE EEERILERE
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss R SRER  WERBEEREERPE
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. o

Financial assets at fair value through other BATFEFAEMEANANEHEE (&
comprehensive income (debt instruments) #TAH)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive MIEATFEFAEMAZEBRANEHBIREM
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and = FLB A - SMNE B f KORE B 18 S B B R
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of BERPER  WIRRIRE AR S 5
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial BEMRNAF IR - HBA EF@ BEN R H Ath
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value PEWARER R IEERR - REM2EK
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon AFERH R AFEE @J BEHTAEBR
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in other =o

comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of profit or

loss.

XxEFmpaRAT 20195Hk 135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are also recognised as other income in
the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for
as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be
classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(*ECLs”") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain
a significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during
the development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless they will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined by the weighted average method. Cost of
finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued) WatER (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EFEEH M (E)

(a)  Sale of industrial products @ HEITZXZESR
Revenue from the sale of industrial products is recognised at HE TEERMIRATELEEERZEHI#
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to WEBEREPRKR (BB ERXINIEE
the customer, generally on delivery of the industrial products. oh BB 2 ) FERR o

(b)  Processing services (b)  MTRH
Revenue from the provision of processing services is REREMIRG Z KRN E EE I
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset EBREZEFE (MR INTEmME)
is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the R e

processed products.

(c)  Construction services €  BERE
Revenue from the provision of construction services is A IR MR 2 W T B B R
recognised over time, using an input method to measure ReWFEREAETEERERRBEA
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, EE AREAEENEXELENERET
because the Group’s performance creates or enhances an PEAEABRIERKEGHMNEE &
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or NERBESOER KA ZRRER
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on T 1d AT 4B RS 89 b 7 T SR M & o
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services.
Revenue from other sources B ity R W 22
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the e U AR TH B 3R S ) L ) B 3R o NEUAR R
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an RS ENAEHENRNESEENSE
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period HMER BN -
in which they are incurred.
Other income B A
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the FIBWA IR EE FRERFEEER
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts BT ARRE W AR SR T EMTERF K
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the BEBE(ER) EETRE=eREERA
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the FEMF EER -
net carrying amount of the financial asset.
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to & B A TR A BR MR A Sk 0 A R e ST - AR AT B
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the HEERKREMABLCENZEALNEBEBRES

economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the B AT SRR = RFHER ©
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset
is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of
which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 32 to the financial statements.

148 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2019

24 TESTHHEME (&)

BHEE

AWEENDAEFERE QSRS T AR
A @R - AR ERES A R ERK
HE A D E S BT ERE SRR B%
BIHARB K BRRA WEE - ANAESE
TRETE - FEHASRAERENEHEK
Hep o

BHAME

HEFPRASEEHBEMIREERTER
AT B A5 SRS AS R B0 H - RIS A SRR 3R
A (UARRERE)ERENAEE -AHVA
BERAKERETE DR (AR AEERIRY
MEGIREBERP)ER/EA -

R4 B AR

RRBIRE-BBRAETE UAHAREED
EBLENKINELERNAGER2BERM
BB RE  AEEER (BEESE) URMHE
BT SRR T MR B B - T (B B DA SR AR 75 4
RBEATANRE (IREEERS]) -

AR —ZEE2_F+-ALtAREMEENEE
BERBEEEEX IR AZERHER QT
EFf 8- AFEHRIIMSEEMER _BAEE
BIET BRE - FFBRNMHRRME
32-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined
by the laws of the countries in which it has operations.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees
of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the Hong Kong SAR.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMBs, which is
the Company'’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain
or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
RMBs at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
RMBs at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Judgements (Continued)
Revenue recognition for construction contracts

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recognised
revenue from construction contracting and related businesses
amounting to RMB 107,570,000 (2018: Nil). The Group has
recognised revenue from the provision of construction services
over time, using an input method to measure the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of
the construction services. This involves the use of management
judgements and estimation uncertainty, including estimating the
progress towards completion of the services, scope of deliveries
and services required, total contract costs incurred and forecasts
in relation to costs to complete and profit margin.

Estimation uncertainty

Measurement of progress towards complete satisfaction
of performance obligation

The Group recognises contract revenue and relevant direct
costs according to management’s estimation of the progress
and outcome of a project. Estimated revenue is determined in
accordance with the terms set out in the relevant contracts or,
in case of variation orders, based on contract terms or other
forms of agreements. Estimated direct costs, which mainly
comprise of direct labour cost, subcontracting charges and costs
of materials, are variable and estimated by the directors of the
Company according to the amount of direct labour, subcontracting
charges and costs of materials incurred from time to time based
on quotations provided by the major subcontractors/suppliers/
vendors involved and the experience of the directors of the
Company. Notwithstanding that the directors of the Company
frequently review and revise the estimates of both the estimated
revenue and direct costs as the contracts progress, changes in
estimates or the actual outcome will affect the carrying amounts
of contract assets/contract liabilities with the corresponding
adjustments to future revenue and/or direct costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in note
21 and note 23 to the financial statements, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2019 was RMB105,923,000 (2018: Nil). Further details
are given in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives

The Group determines whether intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives. Estimating the recoverable amount requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The carrying amount of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives at 31 December 2019 was RMB58,347,245
(2018: RMB Nil). Further details are given in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Application of purchase price allocation

When performing purchase price allocation for subsidiaries
acquired in a business combination, the Group makes several
estimates in determination of the fair value of identifiable assets
and liabilities, including discounted cash flow projections based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows from RMAA services,
supported by existing constructions contracts using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows. Further details of the
business combinations are given in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties under construction carried at fair value
based on the appraised market value provided by independent
professional valuers. Such valuation was based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might differ
from actual results. In making the estimation, the Group considers
information from current rental prices in an active market for similar
properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of the year.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the fair
value of the completed investment properties include those related
to estimated rental values with references to the current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and condition,
and discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of investment
properties was RMB654,698,000 (31 December 2018: Nil).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three (two of
segments were disposed in 2019) reportable operating segments

as follows:
— Production: Production of polyester filament
yarns;(disposed in 2019)
— Processing: Dyeing and processing of differentiated
polyester filament fabric;
- Trading: Trading of polyester filament yarns. (disposed in
2019)
— Property Investment, development and sale of properties
investment: (new in 2019)
- RMAA Provision of construction services in building
Services: construction, building maintenance and

improvement works, renovation and decoration
works (new in 2019)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group acquired the
RMAA business in February 2019 - information about this newly
acquired business is disclosed in note 35. The operating segments
of production and trading were disposed of and discontinued
during the year ended 31 December 2019. Information about the
discontinued segment is disclosed in note 11.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on profit before tax without
allocation of interest income/costs and other expenses which are
not occurred directly for operating segments.

Segment assets exclude corporate cash and deferred tax assets
as these assets are managed on a group basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SRR IR R Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE— A&+ =-_A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RESTLER (F)
(CONTINUED)
Segment liabilities exclude corporate accruals, payroll payable, AHBETREARENRE -ENIE E
deferred tax liabilities and income tax payable as these liabilities are EREEEREMNER  RAEZEARED
managed on a group basis. & HERE -
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to DEEBEE RERI2ERERMIHIRTE
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then MAIE=FETHEMAEK-
prevailing market prices.
Operating segments G
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BREESER RIEBEEE
RMAA  Properties
Processing service* investment  Sub-total Production Trading Total
MI RMAARE* RENE gt EE g% o
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETR AR®TR AR®TR AREBTR ARETR AR%TR
Year ended 31 December 2019 HECB-NE
TZRZt-BLEE
Segment revenue (note 5) WS (KEs5)
Sales to external customers HEFHREF 198,545 107,570 424 306,539 593,132 82,505 982,176
Revenue Wi 306,539 982,176
Segment results FHEE 43,100 23,067 6,287 72,454 96,186 12,904 181,544
Reconcilations: %
Corporate and other unallocated expenses RRAREMAPERY (7,007)
Interest income FIBMA 4,245
Finance costs BERA (2,889)
Profit before tax B A& 175,893
Segment assets PHEE 480,048 216,939 897,322 1,594,309 478,627 - 2072936
Reconcilations: -
Corporate and other unallocated assets AAREMAIREE 67,052 67,052
Total assets BEE 1,661,361 2,139,088
Segment liabiliies Bas 7213 26067 81001 179201 267,532 - 683
Reconcilations: HE-
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties REREMANEEE 45,030 45,030
Total liabilities aafE 224,321 491,853
Other segment information HippHEs
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 6,339 230 57 6,626 20,870 - 27,496
Impairment of trade receivables and EORNTERENEAERE
contract liabilities - 3,190 - 3,190 - - 3,190
Capital expenditure* BRRX 3,512 65105 685735 754,352 11,349 - 765701

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease payments, investment properties
and other intangible assets including assets from acquisition of
subsidiaries.

*

BARX BIERNEYE BB REE ANL
WHENR RENEAREMBELEE

BEKEMREAR -

KB R ERAR 2019F#H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
Operating segments (Continued) eI (&)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BELEXE RIHEEEE
RMAA Properties
Processing senvice investment Production Trading Total
MI  RMAATR REME EE g5 @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREFT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARET:
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-EZ-\%
+ZA=+-ALEE
Re-presented L
Segment revenue (note 5) AHWE (KEs)
Sales to external customers HETHRERP 206,420 - - 440,085 33,675 680,180
Revenue g 680,180
Segment results AHEE 68,249 = = 26,934 7518 102,701
Reconcilations: -
Corporate and other unallocated expenses DAREMKAERR (656)
Interest income FIBMA 4,942
Finance costs BERE (1537)
Profit before tax FRBiATER 105,450
Segment assets FHEE 552,911 - - 406,741 = 959,652
Reconcilations: HE:
Corporate and other unallocated assets RAREMAPEEE 1,751
Elimination of intersegment receivables BEDBERERTE (160,277)
Total assets BEE 801,126
Segment liabilities AHEE 67,878 - - 252,850 - 320,728
Reconcilitions: %
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties RAREMARARAE 40,761
Elimination of intersegment payables BEDBEMERNTE (160,277)
Total liabilties BafmE 201,212
Other segment information HibAHER
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 6,148 - - 16,077 = 22,205
Impairment of trade receivables BN ERE 34 - - - - 34
Capital expenditure BARY 5,715 - 44,723 - 50,438
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Operating segments (Continued)

No revenue from continuing operations with a single external
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.

Geographical information

(@  Revenue from external customers
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resBER (F&)

RE D (&)

HE MR EITIHELEERIELEZIW
AT EAEBURAZI0% KA E o

(@ REIMEFEPZEA

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RELEEY RIFREER
2019 2018 2019 2018

=2-nE -T-\E ZEB-AF -FTN\E
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFRE ARETT ARBFR ARETR

(Re-presented) (Re-presented)

(&31) (&5)

Hong Kong BB 107,570 - - -
Mainland China RE A, 176,078 192,725 625,877 454,225
Other Hit 22,391 13,695 49,760 19,535
306,539 206,420 675,637 478,760

The revenue information above is based on the locations of
the customers.

ERWABRTIRBEFAELZ
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RESTLER (F)
(CONTINUED)
Operating segments (Continued) eI (&)
Geographical information (Continued) WIEER (&)
(o)  Non-current assets (b) FERBEE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BREEER RIEEEER
2019 2018 2019 2018

“®-0FE —T-\F ZB-NE —T)\%
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR AR®TR ARET:

(Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(E31) (E371)
Hong Kong aE 63,949 70 - =
Mainland China B A 856,164 76,641 184,373 192,242
920,113 76,711 184,373 192,242
The non-current asset information above is based on the L ERBEEERUNEEMELAE
locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets. E - ATBREERBEE-

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA Hftlh AR W=

An analysis of revenue from continuing operations is as follows: RHEREEBHRASITOT
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AR®FTT
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Revenue from contracts with customers HE PRI A8 2 WA
Revenue from other sources H b Uy 25 2RI - 306,115 206,420
Gross rental income from investment KEMERTHREDE
properties under operating leases: BESWA - 424 =
306,539 206,420
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA -Ht AR K= (&)
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers BEFEEHWE
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) #IKRFEEH
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREF T
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Continuing operations: FHERE 5T
Type of goods or services EmEREER
Processing )1 198,545 206,420
RMAA service PR 7% 107,570 -
Total revenue from contracts with customers E R FFTa] & #) 2 WA 4258 306,115 206,420
Geographical markets BiE W5
Hong Kong B 107,570 =
Mainland China H B A 175,654 192,725
Other countries/regions HaBR il 22,891 13,695
Total revenue from contracts with customers EEFFTa] & #) 2 WA 4258 306,115 206,420
Timing of revenue recognition WA TR A
Goods transferred at a point in time RE-—RHEBE 198,545 206,420
Services transferred over time 48 B RS B 75 AR 7% 107,570 =
Total revenue from contracts with customers & F Fis] & 42 WA 4858 306,115 206,420
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue from

continuing recognised in the current reporting period that
were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning

5. WA HMWARKE (&)

EFEH WS (&)

(a) AIURZEHR (F)

TREBINNAH SRR ARSE
HYANABENRKERLEEBREAR
PIBEMBEANEITHENEERERNK

of the reporting period and recognised from performance wmZER
obligations satisfied in previous periods:
2019 2018
—E-hE ZE—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBTT
(Re-presented)
(E5))
Revenue recognised that was included B R ARE B
in contract liabilities at the beginning of ERHEEHE:
the reporting period:
Processing i1 210 297
210 297
(b) Performance obligations (b) BEHEF

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Processing
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
processed products and payment is generally due within 30

to 90 days from delivery, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA -Ht AR K= (&)
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHWE (&)

(Continued)

(b) Performance obligations (Continued) (b)) BHEE (&)
RMAA services RMAAR 7%
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services JE 49 & 1 70 17 4 IR 75 By B RE R R - T
are rendered and payment is generally due within 14 days B ERIRE B EEET14H 290 A
to 90 days from the date of billing. A certain percentage B - FRZ— TP BEEFRBER
of payment is retained by customers until the end of the BEAAE IR - B A 7 5 B U S AR R
retention period as the Group’s entitlement to the final EAAEPRAYMFI ZESREARE
payment is conditional on the satisfaction of the service RSB E RGN -

quality by the customers over a certain period as stipulated
in the contracts.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining R+ A=+—HoREEFAKEHRT
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) (RERIIDREK) R FERSE
as at 31 December are as follows: wm
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARMFT
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Amounts expected to be TEHRERABNEN SRR
recognised as revenue:
Within one year —FR 54,168 210
After one year —Fi& 81,251 -
135,419 210
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b) Performance obligations (Continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be
recognised as revenue after one year relate to construction
services, of which the performance obligations are to
be satisfied within two years. All the other amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations is expected to be recognised as revenue within
one year. The amounts disclosed above do not include
variable consideration which is constrained.

An analysis of other income and gains from continuing

WA B AR W (&)

EFEH WS (&)

(b) BEHEME(HF)

FEHER —FRER /RN DA
ERTENEENRZBERERE
EERKER EENEEKIRE
FREX -FIBEMOEEHRTE
HEENRHERSEHEHN -
FRER/ WG - EXFIRENS
BATBREZB G ATRNLE -

FELLEEBOEMBA KRR S

operations is as follows: AT
2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AREFIT
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Other income and gains, net EMA K Yz FER
Bank and other interest income RIT R E AL F B UA 4,168 4,837
Fair value gains on financial assets BATEGFAEEDN
designated as at fair value through TREENQFERE
profit or loss 2,737 7,266
Fair value gains on investment properties WEYEZ A ERE 6,905 =
Gross rental income from plants WEMEe K ALSE 628 486
Government grants BT & B 708 2,914
Foreign exchange differences, net ME R ZRFE (159) (43)
Others HAh 395 341
15,382 15,801
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBLANZF
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived N5 B 45 B A B S TS RO BR B AT 5 R A H00R
at after charging/(crediting): (BF A AT RIEEEL:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T ARBFT
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Cost of services provided ERE R KA 204,085 116,433
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BE MR EITE
equipment* 4,490 5,076
Depreciation of right-of-use asset/ FEHELSENE TENHEE
recognition of prepaid lease payment*  FRIEHER* 1,379 315
Amortisation of other intangible assets * £ b £ /2 & 7= 5 4+ 757 757
Minimum lease payments under KERE s REBEENK
operating leases - 708
Lease payments not included in T rst AHEBGEN2
the measurement of lease liabilities ZHERK 156 =
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B 37 A 1,250 950
Employee benefit expense (including & 8 #& 75 52
directors’ and chief executive’s (BRREER
remuneration) *: BETBABHM) *:
Wages and salaries I&kF® 38,433 30,065
Pension scheme contributions (defined &K 5t 22X
contribution schemes) (EEMEREED) 4,958 5,187
Equity-settled share option i e 45 H BB AR R o Bt
arrangements - 525
Foreign exchange differences, net ME N ZFEFE 159 43
Impairment of trade receivables Z 5 W IE R E 21 2,218 34
Impairment of contract assets BHEERE 23 972 =
Research and development costs I EE R AR 5,254 4,481
Fair value gains, net: N EWRFEE
Financial assets designated as EERIERATEFAEBZEN
at fair value through profit or loss TRMEE (2,737) (7,266)
Fair value gains on investment WEYE 2 N ERE
properties (6,905) =
Bank and other interest income RITREAMF B UA (4,168) (4,837)
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE BREREEZ
property, plant and equipment, net B8 F 5 172 21
* Part of the depreciation, the amortisation of other intangible * AEEHE HthEFLEESE BN LM
assets and prepaid land lease payments and employee HERBHERESENRAIN—HER
benefit expense for the year are included in “Cost of sales” AGHEBEEEEMEERARAN [HEKX
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ] o

comprehensive income.
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31 December 2019

—E-h&E+=-A=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as

ELE= 22N

FEREEBRERANDFTIT

follows:
2019 2018
—g-nE —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBEFT
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 2,515 297
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 65 =
Total interest expense FERISNE S 2,580 297
Less: Interest capitalised B BAEF B (1,575) =
1,005 297
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. BEEREREITHAEFHM

REMUNERATION

EENERTRABRFTANITMEE ETR
Bl & F CRRMER) 5383(1)@) - (b) * (c) X (f)
R ARE (HBRESMZER) R FE28

Directors and chief executives’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, BEMT
is as follows:
2019 2018
—ZE-NF —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREFIT
Fee we 642 620
Other emoluments: H b
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He R REWEF 2,272 1,783
Performance related bonuses FERAGE RAEAL 6,279 4,345
Pension scheme contributions RIRS IR 181 125
Equity-settled share option arrangements 1% 1 45 S B AR A 2 B - 217
9,374 7,090
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERBRETHRAEREHM (&)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

In the prior years, certain directors were granted share options, RBEFE BEARFNBERESTS BT
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option EERHAAREERHAORBERBERE &
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note —SHBEHRNE B RERNTI2 - ZFER
32 to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such BHATFEARLASEE BREBHNE
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit or mREMEEYARER-

loss and other comprehensive income over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant.

(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FA RMBVHERTESIENES T
the year were as follows: T:
2019 2018
ZE-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Mr. Shiping James Wang FitFEAE 88 85
Ms. Wong Wai Ling HFEBRLT 114 110
Mr. Wang Huaping TEFLEE 88 85
290 280
There were no other emoluments payable to the FR-BEEMEBEMNEN TELIERTT
independent non-executive directors during the year (2018: EE(ZE—NF:8E)-
Nil).
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive

8. EER

(b) BITESMHEHITES

= =/

B =1

THRAEHM (&)

directors
2019 —B-AF
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension Equity-settled
and benefits related scheme  share option
Name of Directors Fees in kind bonuses contributions arrangements Total
B 2ER BYUER  RAEHE RELEE
BEspg ik ENER PN 3% REZH @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®Trn ARBTR ARETR ARETR AR%Trn
Executive directors; HiTES:
Mr. Li Cheng FHEE 88 915 2,050 17 - 3,070
Mr. Zhao Jidong® HERLED 88 876 2,650 84 - 3,698
Mr. Li Conghua TEELE 88 - - - - 88
Mr. Ma Qinghai BESLE 88 301 1,579 68 - 2,036
Mr. Xu Wensheng? BXELEY - 180 - 12 - 192
352 2,272 6,279 181 - 9,084
Independent non-executive drectors B JFHITES
Mr. Shiping James Wang THFEE 88 - - - - 88
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERRT 114 - - - - 114
Mr. Wang Huaping TEVEE 88 - - - - 88
290 - - - - 290
642 2,272 6,279 181 - 9,374
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERBRETHRAEREHM (&)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) BITESHHEHTESE (&)
directors (Continued)
2018 —E-)N\F
Salaries,

allowances  Performance Pension  Equity-settled

and benefits related scheme  share option
Name of Directors Fees inkind bonuses  contrioutions  arrangements Total

B 2ER vl Ehe R

EEiA ik ENET e AR BRERHE &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARETR

Executive directors; BiTES:
Mr. Li Cheng THnk 85 880 800 15 - 1,780
Mr. Zhao Jidong® HERLED 85 602 1,560 47 133 2,427
Mr. Li Conghua TEELE 85 - - - = 85
M. Ma Ginghi EEEtE 8 301 1985 6 84 2518
340 1,783 4,345 125 217 6,810
Independent non-executive diectors B IFHITEE:
Mr. Shiping James Wang THFEE 85 - - - = 85
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERTL 10 - - - = 10
Mr. Wang Huaping TEIRE 85 - - - - 85
280 - - - - 280
620 1,783 4,345 125 217 7,090
There was no arrangement under which a director or the FA WEAMNESIHZRTHRAER
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration ERRAERETMHFHAOTHE-
during the year.
M Mr. Zhao Jidong resigned on 29 November 2019. 0 A R T i RZF-—AF+—HA
—TNBEE-
@ Mr. Xu Wensheng was appointed on 29 November 2019. - BXBRER_FT-HNFt+—A
—t+hBEEZE-
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. TR FMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included 3 FR IA R MEEBR=ZRHUTES
executive directors (2018: 3 executive directors), details of (ZE—N\F: ZBRTES) FENEHMNF
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the BEREXHAS - HTME (ZE—N\F: M
remuneration for the year of the remaining 2 (2018: 2) highest paid BT MEERFANTMEFBOT

employee are as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T AREFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e SRR EMER 1,540 615
Performance related bonuses EFEBIEAT 4,530 1,684
Pension scheme contributions RIKESETEIHER 113 27
Equity-settled share option arrangements IS 4t B R AR 2 - 20
6,183 2,346
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid N T T EERFEEFNIERSITHRAR
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as MExe#HES ASmT:
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £1,500,0007% 7T - 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,000/%8 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,000 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,0007% 7T £5,000,0007%8 7T 1 -
2 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(CONTINUED)

In prior years, share options were granted to one non-director
highest paid employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Pursuant to the applicable rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI.

All of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are
subject to profits tax at a rate of 16.5% (2018:16.5%).The
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year,
except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the year
of assessment 2018/2019. The first HK$2,000,000 (2018: Nil)
of assessable profits of this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

All of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC having
operations only in Mainland China are subject to PRC enterprise
income tax on the taxable income as reported in their PRC
statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with relevant PRC
income tax laws. The PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law introduces
a wide range of changes which include, but are not limited to,
the unification of the income tax rates for domestic-invested and
foreign-invested enterprises at 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and with
approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of the Group’s
subsidiaries, Yongsheng Dyeing, qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprises, are entitled to the preferential enterprise
income tax rate of 15% for three years from 2018 to 2020.

10.

S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

hEBREHNES (&)

RBEFE —LFEEHZFFMEESHEY
REBIRHUORGERBERE £ FFBH
REHPBERRMA2ZWEER - ZFEBK
ENAFERRHANET CREBHNIE
R EMEERARER -

P& BRI

REFASEHERRBELESNERRR X
BAREBARHESHERRABRZESH
AT PSR -

AEEMEEESTMR VK BRARHYAE
LREBRE16.5% (ZZF—/\F 1 16.5% ) B
TRIE - WE NN EBELE 2T ERRCEF M
T OHRAKEEN—BHBARKRIN ZRAA
REAB-Z— )/ - ABBEEEESDN
MBI FESHERESENER - ZB RS
%2,000,0008 L (ZE—N\F:T)NERT
i F 128,25 % K B 3K B B1 - H eR FERR TR I A
1216.5% ) T R BT o

REBEMAN T B ER T BE R ZEN
MEARARERTBIEERE (RIFEET
B EPOAEL AR ) N2 MABRBTLA
MPBIREMEN PEEEMEHRIASIA—
RO E  BREMRREEARE RINE R
EHFTBH RS — R25% °

RETERBBIFEIEZANAREARRBEHE
Mt AEEES -BNBARKRAES
BERRRRHRMEE AR _F—/\F=
R RE-FREHI%NERLEMEH

xeEmeaRaT co9Em 173



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10. PRSI X (&)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on the dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore
liable to 5% withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of their earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totaled approximately RMB96,720,000 at 31
December 2019 (2018: RMB96,720,000). In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future.

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 are:

BEFBECEMSHRE EPEKIHIINE
TERBINEEESTIKAREEHBMI0%BE
MK -BERATH_TTENF—A—BEELE
BoBEAR—ZEELF+_A=+—HENEA
Flof P BB GINEEENREERITEM
B B EARENTENH R - AEE
EmBrI g BRZ S AT RK LM B A R
BT )\FE— A — BEBREWN AR %
AR BB 5% BIFH -RZ=ZT—NLF+=ZA
—T—B EERBEEYSYRBERARNS
MPBERMHBARENEREZEAS LY
B ARY96,720,000t (ZFE—\F: AR
96,720,00070) ~EERAZSEWB AR KA
BARRETEDRZSZAEF -

BE_Z-NFER_ZE-N\E+-A=+—H
LEFE ERAXHEIRAREIMT

2019 2018

—E-NEF —ZE-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBFT

Current tax BIEARE IR 37,632 13,281
Deferred tax (note 30) BT (MFE30) 3,213 5,490
Total tax charge for the year FAMBEL K5 40,845 18,771
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10. FIEHMAX (&)

U I8 B 2 B2 & 5 A SR IA AR 2 7] ] HOK % Bt
BRBAMEBRRMEERENHKRMT

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the tax expense and the accounting profit
multiplied by the statutory rates for the countries in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled:

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Profit before tax from continuing operations RELEE 2 BRBIANR T 68,610 72,774
Profit before tax from discontinued operations £ 11 45 % ¥ 75 2 B Bt i1 5 £ 107,283 32,676
Profit before tax B 355 B g A 175,893 105,450
Tax calculated at statutory tax rate of & BUE TE B R (25%)
the PRC (25%) FTEABIE 43,973 26,363
Effect of difference for MEBMEREZENTE
Hong Kong income tax rate (3,394) 546
Effect of preferential enterprise income tax rate EBEPEEM RN T E (14,110) (10,877)
Expenses not deductible for tax IR 10,042 100
Tax losses not recognised RIERH IS KB 2,246 1,581
Tax losses utilised from previous periods BT EERIEEE (15) =
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the RASEREMEATZ
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC Al R E 5%t BB 2
subsidiaries ze 5,624 3,467
Additional deduction of research and T 2 K AN O BB SNURL
development cost (3,521) (2,409)
Tax charge at the effective income REBREHE23.2%
tax rate 23.2% (2018: 17.8%) (Z2—N\F:17.8%)
FTEMBEXH 40,845 18,771
Tax charge from continuing operations REBEMERTED
at the effective rate B EEBNTIE 17,597 15,252
Tax charge from a discontinued operations REBRMERGTED
at the effective rate RIS EETIES 23,248 3,519
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 11, RIERE XK

On 18 October 2019, the Company announced the decision R-ZE—hhFE+A+N\B ARREMEES
to dispose of the entire interests in subsidiaries engaged in SZRE HEREAZXREERGRLS A
developing and manufacturing of polyester filament yarns and MRS THMBRHNHE AR 2 23
research of high polymer advanced materials. The Group has HRAEEFE ST EERRICRE D L
decided to cease its polyester filament yarns business because it mea E RN EEARREERKES AEEE
plans to focus its resources on its dyeing services segment and AERIEERGRAEB - HE=FATER
strengthen its liquidity for future investment opportunities. The ZE-NF+— AT o BEEMUINE 4 KB
disposal of three companies had been completed in November {LBERRAR ([N E])  mEkEES
2019. With Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Chemical Fiber Ti@é%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ Al ([ 4] ) RIE
Company Limited (“Hangzhou Fiber”), Nantong Yongsheng Fiber KE® D FIFM ﬂﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁ PRAAE (kR
Advanced Materials Company Limited (“Nantong Fiber”), Jiangsu DFIIWDEERIEEER-

Yongsheng High Polymer Advanced Materials (“Yongsheng High
Polymer”) Research Institute Company Limited being classified as
discontinued operations.

The results of the three companies for the year are presented “HARFANEEZYWNT
below:
2019 2018
—ZE-NEF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETT
Revenue & 675,637 473,760
Expenses Fx (590,902) (439,844)
Finance costs BbE A AN (1,884) (1,240)
Profit from the discontinued operations RERIHEEEE R T 82,851 32,676
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations & 4 |- 48 & EFK U 24,432 =
Income tax FriS i (23,248) (3,519
Profit for the year from F A5 A
the discontinued operations (RERILREET) 84,035 29,157
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SRR IR R Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE— A&+ =-_A=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11, RIEREEK (&)
(CONTINUED)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share from the REKIEEEER 2 BRERRE SR O
discontinued operations operation are based on: BER:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFT
Profit attributable to shareholders of the RATIRRIELRE
Company from the discontinued operations S TSR s 62,882 23,229
Weighted average number of ordinary shares A &H & 5 IR R 2 R HY
in issue during the year used in the basic FRBBITEAERDY
earnings per share calculation (note 13) nEFE (HEE13) 696,415,013 396,339,902
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ AR E S#EE T8
used in the diluted earnings per share TR Y N T 2
calculation (note 13) (FF7E13) 704,725,618 406,160,925

xmEmpaRan covem 177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

The assets and liabilities of the three companies at the disposal

11. RIERE K (&)

“HARRHERSNEERBENT

date were as follows:

Hangzhou Nantong  Yongsheng
Fiber Fiber High Polymer TOTAL
BN & HEAE KBELT @t
2019 2019 2019 2019
“EZ-AE ZE-RAE ZB-hE ZB-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AR®TT ARETR
Net assets disposal of; FHENEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment NE BERRE 31,712 134,923 271 166,906
Other intangible assets HuEWEE 495 85 = 580
Prepayments for property, M BE KRB
plant and equipment BAHE - 1,052 = 1,052
Right-of-use assets CREEAE 7,343 8,492 - 15,835
Deferred tax assets ERBIEEE 1,158 3312 = 4,470
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeZEY 33,859 490 253 34,602
Pledged deposits BHEAER 350 6,052 - 6,402
Trade and bills receivable BIHRKTIERERRE 11,085 143,495 - 154,580
Prepayments, other receivables and BITHIE - EtEMEE R
other assets HtEE 30,610 13,552 8,589 52,751
Inventories 7E 33,651 42,136 - 75,787
Interest-bearing bank and FERATREMER-TE
other borrowings-current (10,000 (40,190) - (50,190)
Trade payables 2 HENIA (6,938) (116,244) &) (123,185)
Other payables and accruals HA BT 08 KB A (6,296) (67,126) 3,013 (76,435)
Amount due to a related party FERTBE R 0B (40,000) - - (40,000)
Income tax payable BT ETE R (1,170) (2,394) = (3,564)
Interest-bearing bank and FERTREMER-ERD
other borrowings-non-current - (32) - 32)
Government grants BFE (1,689) (6,775) = (8,464)
Non-controling interests FiERR R (23,714) (37,933) 36 61,611)
60,456 82,895 6,133 149,484
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR M 17,034 4,151 3,247 24,432
77,490 87,046 9,380 173,916
Satisfied by: PARIVES K
Cash Be 77,490 87,046 9,380 173,916
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 1. RIEREEK (B)
(CONTINUED)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in ENBARZEERREEBEM I RAFRE
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: AT
Hangzhou Nantong  Yongsheng
Fiber Fiber High Polymer TOTAL
MM EREE KBS0 T 5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTT  ARETR ARETR ARET:R

Cash consideration RerfE 77,490 87,046 9,380 173,916
Cash and bank balances disposed of HEKEE LRTES (33,859) (490) (253) (34,602)
Net inflow of cash and cash HERBRRIZEE R
equivalents in respect of ReSENZRANFE
disposal of a subsidiaries 43,631 86,556 9,127 139,314
The net cash flows incurred by the three companies Limited are as “HERAREEMNRESREFEAT
follows:
2019 2018
—%-nE —E N\
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREF T
Operating activities KR ES 24,339 42,904
Investing activities KEES (28,045) (39,335)
Financing activities &S 30,967 1,577
Net cash inflow RERMAFRE 27,261 5,146
Earnings per share: BRAF
Basic, from the discontinued operations BER(RERIEEEHER) 9.1 cents % 5.9 cents?
Diluted, from the discontinued operations g (RERIEEEER) 9.0 cents % 5.7 cents?
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12. DIVIDENDS 12. KE
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AR F T
Interim — HK$0.02 (equivalent to RMB0.0181) A1 Hi — & A% & @ A%0.02/8 7T
(2018: HK$0.033 (equivalent to RMB0.0293))  (HHE R AR #0.01817T)
per ordinary share (ZZE—N\F:0033%FT
(HE R AR0.02037T) ) 13,530 11,496
Proposed final — HK$0.03 (equivalent to kAR H — SR ERR0.03%8 T
RMBO0.0274) (2018: HK$0.022 (FHE R AR0.02747T)
(equivalent to RMB0.0188)) (ZZE—N\F:0.0228 T
per ordinary share (HHE N ARKO.0188L) ) 20,235 12,053
33,765 23,549

The Board resolved to propose a final dividend of HK$0.03
(2018:HK$0.022) per ordinary shares amounting a total of
RMB20,235,000 (2018: RMB12,053,000). The proposed
dividends are based on 738,191,890 (2018: 641,353,746) shares
issued as at 31 March 2020.

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

13.

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the
profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, plus the
weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued
on the deemed exercise of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares
into ordinary shares.
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

St AT IR Rl 5E

31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

13. ARFARREEESRER (&)

(CONTINUED)
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic LTREBARSFTESRERAREERFHBA
and diluted earnings per share computations: KRt S
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARMEF T
Earnings: EZF:
Profit attributable to shareholders of the PA/NGIE &Y Xyl
Company — basic and diluted —EARREE
From continuing operations SIEICEETE 51,013 57,522
From a discontinued operations BRI E R 62,882 23,229
113,895 80,751
Number of shares
ROHE
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
Shares: B4
Weighted average number of ordinary HEAEIRENmE 2
shares for earnings per share calculation LB e 19 2 696,415,013 396,339,902
Effect of dilution — weighted average Bere-TaRkz
number of ordinary shares: IR
Share options BE AR A 8,310,605 9,821,023
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  {& IE 5% 5/ 22 )
adjusted for the effect of dilution TR I 704,725,618 406,160,925
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SIS IRZEMEE
31 December 2019 —ZF—NAF+-_HA=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥ -BERRE

Office Construction
Plant and equipment Leasehold in
Buildings machinery Vehicles and others  improvements progress Total
BAERBER
BF  HEREH RE Hit HEEE ERIR @
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wiz ARETT  AREFT  ARETR ARETn AREFT  ARETR  AR®ETR
At 1 January 2019, RZZ-N§—A—-H"
net of accumulated depreciation BB ZHNE 72,871 117,851 1,365 1,759 572 39,637 234,055
Additions NE - 5,071 | 66 178 11,935 17,321
Acquisttion of assets and liabilties ~ BRMERBARKEEER 36
through acquisition of subsidiaries & & (Fit5£36)
(note 36) - - - - - 18,980 18,980
Acquisttion of subsidiaries not BB W IE R LRI TR 3%
under common control (note 35) W8 AR (HizEss) - - 85 34 - - 119
Disposals hE - (1,656) (53) (26) - - (1,735)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HERBAR (FiEH1) 11 (48,054) (113,647) (1,100) (536) - (3,569) (166,906)
Depreciation provided during the year % Izt R EV T & (3,496) (16,259) (151) (321) - - (20,227)
Transfer a5 6,922 38,706 - = = (45,628) -
Exchange realignment EHRE - - 2 4 2 - 8
At 31 December 2019, net of RZZ2-n&+-A=+-A"
acoumulated depreciation BABREZHNE 28,243 30,066 219 980 752 21,355 81,615
At 31 December 2019: R-E-NE+-A=1-A: 49,569 68,505 1,951 3,137 2,767 21,355 147,284
Cost KA
Accumulated depreciation ZHE (21,326) (38,439) (1,732) (2,157) (2,015) - (65,669)
Net carrying amount EHFE 28,243 30,066 219 980 752 21,355 81,615
At 1 January 2018, R=Z-N\§—A—-H"
net of accumulated depreciation BHNRRGIE 74,536 85,295 1,667 2,166 215 41,460 205,339
Additions NE 16 7178 2 152 573 42,482 50,403
Transfer & 1,765 42,540 - - - (44,305) -
Depreciation provided during the year £ REFRHHE (3,446) (15,716) (304) (559) (216) - (20,241)
Disposals HE - (1,446) - - - - (1,446)
At 31 December 2018, W=E-N\E+-A=+-R"
net of accumulated depreciation BHNRRGIE 72,871 117,851 1,365 1,759 572 39,637 234,055
At 31 December 2018: RWZE-\&+ZA=+-A: 104,748 212,261 6,429 8,423 2,567 39,637 374,065
Cost KA
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (31,877) (94,410) (5,064) (6,664) (1,995) - (140,010)
Net carmying amount BETE 72871 117,851 1,365 1,759 572 39,637 234,055

At 31 December 2019, certain of the construction in progress with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB21,355,000 (2018:
Nil) were pledged to secure long-term loan facilities granted to the

Group by a bank.

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s buildings with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB22,597,000 (2018:
RMB31,309,000) were pledged to secure short-term loan facilities

granted to the Group by a bank.

At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB23,383,000 were pledged
to secure letter of credit facilities granted to the Group by a bank.

There was no such pledge as at 31 December 2019.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

15. REW

Under
construction Completed Total
B BT Bt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT AREBTET

Carrying amount at 1 January 2019

R-E—-—hF—A—B0NEEE - = =
Acquisition of assets and liabilities through & B ULEEHT B A R EBE E &

acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) & 1& (M43536) 558,320 38,800 597,120
Additions Wi 50,673 - 50,673
Increase in fair value recognised in REEPERN A EEE N

profit or loss 5,305 1,600 6,905
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H

K EREE 614,298 40,400 654,698

The Group’s investment properties consist of two commercial
properties in Hang Zhou, the PRC. The Group’s investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2019 based on
valuations performed by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited
(“Avista”), an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
RMB654,698,000. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s finance manager and the chief
financial officer have discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed
for financial reporting.

The completed investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 16 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s investment properties with a
carrying value of RMB614,298,000 (2018: Nil) were pledged to
secure long-term loan facilities granted to the Group by a bank.

AEENRENEBERERTEMMNOY
X -REENREVER_ZE-—NAF+ R
ST -HRBEBUREXAERMGEMNER
AR AARAR ([XER])RTHHEE
TE B AR 1654,698,0007T © % A Rl 8
BEhsAE BE BUERERTHFEER
o AEBEMBELEREFEMTE M5 R R
ETHERGEM WAERRRGES

ERTREVMERBLZHEHETFE =7
BERE - SRR FBHENY B RRME6 -

MN_E-AE+-_A=1+—8 A&=EEEE
B AR®EB14,298,000L (ZZE—N\F:ZE)H
BEMEETER LE—HBTEHAEER
HRPERBME -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWXE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy AEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy TERAAREEREMENRA T EFERBR

of the Group’s investment properties:

Fair value measurement as
at 31 December 2019 using
EANTHABBHR
“E-NAFE+ZA=t-ANATEHE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EERNS ABEH  FAUBEH
DERE SEBAEE EZBHAZE
(B-®) (=) (B=%) @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE ARETE ARETT ARETR

Recurring fair value measurement for: NTSERNEEHATEHE:

Completed commercial properties BTEENE - - 40,400 40,400

Commercial properties under construction EREENE - = 614,298 614,298
- - 654,698 654,698

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FR-EE—LANBE_LBLEBEATETEE

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 BomBEZHABECAEBBAREL (ZZE—N

(2018: Ni). Fom) e
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key

31 December 2019

15. REW* (F)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SRR IR R Bl 5
I ER=iEaE R g

AT REEMELEEERNGEERTRERS

inputs to the valuation of investment properties: AR BB -
Range of Relationship of
Significant unobservable unobservable inputs
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
AT
FTHBRE WAHEBHE
{8 B i THBENEEHAHE BWABENER ATENBEE
Completed commercial ~ Term and Term yields 3.5% The higher the term
properties reversionary method FHI R = yields, the lower the
S FHIRIERE fair value
FHlEERNS -
A EBIE
Reversionary yields 4.0% The higher the
BRI reversionary yields,
the lower the fair
value
EElEEER
NEBIE
Market rents RMB76 The higher the market
(RMB/square meter/ month) AR¥ET767T rents, the higher the
mizie fair value
(AR®/FHK/A) misHEels
AHEES
Commercial Residual method Market rents RMB87 —208 The higher the market
properties under BEE (RMB/square meter/ month) A R#87£2087T rent, the higher the
construction mizie fair value
TR EME (AR®/FHK/A) misHEels
AHEES
Reversionary yields 4.0% - 5.0% The higher the
ERkaE=E reversionary yields,

RMB2,626
AR #2,6267T

Budgeted construction
costs to be incurred
(RMB/sg.m)

1 Y TR B SR AR
(AR¥/TFFHXK)

Developer’s profit 10%
BERERN

the lower the fair
value
ERkRERE A

FEBE

The higher the
budgeted
construction costs
to be incurred, the
lower the fair value

TEEMNTEEREK
Aigm - AFE
MUK

The higher the
developer’s profit,
the lower the fair
value

BRI
AFEBIE

KB R ERAR 2019F#H
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31 December 2019

15.

16.

—E-h&E+=-A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

For completed commercial properties, fair value are generally
derived using the term and reversionary method. This method is
based on the tenancy agreements as at the respective valuation
dates. The rental income derived within the tenancy agreements
are discounted by adopting term yields and the potential
reversionary income are discounted by adopting appropriate
reversionary yields for the period beyond the rental period in
the tenancy agreements. Potential reversionary income and the
reversionary yields are derived from analysis of prevailing market
rents and valuer’s interpretation of prevailing investor requirements
or expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in the
valuation have reference to recent lettings, within the subject
properties and other comparable properties.

Fair values of the investment properties under development are
generally derived using the residual method. This valuation method
is essentially a means of valuing the construction by reference to its
development potential by deducting development costs together
with developer’s profit and risk from the estimated capital value of
the proposed development assuming completed as at the date of
valuation.

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of lease land and
buildings. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the
leased land from the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and
no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms between 1
and 2 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There are several
lease contracts with constant lease payments, which are further
discussed below.
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S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

16. LEASES (CONTINUED) 16. fHE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) EEEEREABEA (&)
(@)  Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January 2019) @ BENLHEEFKR(R=ZZT—-—LE—A
—HB#)
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 RZE—-—N\F—A—HNEEE 28,522
Disposal during the year REANLE (587)
Recognised during the year RERNE #ER (814)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+ZA=+—HHEEE 27,121
()  Right-of-use assets ) FHAEEE
The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and FALEEFAREENREAAERELE
the movements during the year are as follows: BT
Prepaid
land lease
payments Buildings Total
L
HERE gF st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTIT ARBTET ARBTRL

As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—-—NF—HA—H 27,121 1,024 28,145
Additions RE - 950 950
Depreciation charge wERX (766) (1,108) (1,874)
Exchange realignment ME 5, F8 B - 22 22

Interest expense FEREZ - - S
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HEWB AR (K1) (15,609) (226) (15,835)
As at 31 December 2019 R—E—h&F+=-_A=+—H 10,746 662 11,408
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16. LEASES (CONTINUED)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The Group’s land use rights are corresponding to the lands located
in Hangzhou of the PRC and the remaining lease periods ranged
34 years as at 31 December 2019 .

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s land use rights with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB4,139,000 (2018:
RMB11,585,000) were pledged to secure short-term loan facilities
granted to the Group by a bank.

At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s land use rights
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB3,072,000 were
pledged to secure letter of credit facilities granted to the Group by
a bank. There was no such pledge as at 31 December 2019.
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31 December 2019 —ZE— A&+ =-_A=+—H

16. LEASES (CONTINUED) 16. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) EEEEREABEA (&)
(© Lease liabilities ) MEBME
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under FAEERENREE (B SRT
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the REAMER) RESHIMT :

movements during the year are as follows:

2019
—E-NEF
Lease
liabilities
HESE
RMB’000
AR¥ TR
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—B/EREAEE 941
New leases FHEE 950
Accretion of interest recognised FRERMNEILE
during the year 78
Payments (NE (1,124)
Disposal of subsidiaries & I A A (223)
Exchange realignment P 5, =8 24
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+T—HBZKEE 646
Analysed into: DA
Current portion BNHAZE o> 577
Non-current portion JERNERED 69
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities (2018: Nil) is HEABZIBMAI M (ZT—N\F:
disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements. ) WENI R ERNFEL2 -
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16. LEASES (CONTINUED) 16. & (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) rEEEREABEA (&)
(d)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases d HEERERTEIRNSENT:

are as follows:

Lease liabilities

HEaE
RMB’000
ARMEFT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZHE 78
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEEZINERSY 1,874
Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases E1%E HiTHE R EIHAEHR —ZT— &
with remaining lease terms ended on or before T A=+ —HRXZAERD
31 December 2019 (included in cost of sales) HiBEREAORT (FFAEERA) 156
Total amount recognised in profit or loss NI P ERA AL 2,108
The Group as a lessor AEEEREHEA
The Group leases certain of its completed investment properties AEERELEHERHHAERTERTR
(note 15) and plants to third parties under operating lease BYE (ME15) EBETE=F - ERIKRE
arrangements. Leases for completed investment properties are MECHBZEANT —FE2ERAF MKEZ
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to 5 years and those for HE R —F-
plants are for terms of 1 year.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was FARNEEEERE S KAARE,025000
RMB1,025,000 (2018: RMB486,000), details of which are included T (ZF—)\F: AR¥486,00070) ' B

in note 5 to the financial statements. TBER BTSRRI 5ES o
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16.

17.

LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16.

At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

S IR R sE
31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=—A=+—H
HE (&)
EEEERAEHBEA (&)

NR-BE—-hhE+-_A=+—H BEXREER
BHERFZTAIRECEHENEIKRILIR
AERBWOT

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZET-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTT
Within one year —F R 485 186
After two years but within three years MFA EBZFLAR 1,901 211
2,386 397

GOODWILL 17. B8
RMB’000
ARBTT

Cost and carry amount at 1 January 2019
Acquisition of subsidiaries not

RIE-NF-AZERARKREHE =
Y B S KR ) T B BT B 2 7]

under common control (note 35) (FI3E35) 101,181
Exchange realignment e H AR 4,742
Cost and carry amount at 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+_A=+—HZEAX
MERHEE 105,923
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NFE+ZA=+—H -
Cost B 105,923
Accumulated impairment ZEHRIE =
Net carrying amount REDFE 105,923
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

17. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to
the following cash-generating unit (CGU) for impairment testing:

o RMAA service CGU;

The recoverable amount of the RMAA service cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 18.0%. The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the RMAA service unit
beyond the five-year period is 2.5%), which was the same as the
long term average growth rate of the RMAA service industry.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unites is as follows:

17. & (F)

[k AR

BEBEBAFUBNHEDIARETATREE
B AR E R -

o RMAARR 7538 € B A B8

RMAARRTS B4 7 2 0 ) AT B 2 B E 1R 18
EREGLEE RAENERLERERE
HEMAE SN BEEAKEN RS REE
Bl % B TR A 2 R R 518.0% « A
BB T4 B DL ERMAATR TS B0 5 7 4
B % 52.6%  HLERMAAR T T % & 5 19 18
EEIER -

PERERCELEMZHBREEMAT:

RMAA services Total

RMAARR 7% st

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREETF T AREFT

Carrying amount of goodwill EERREE 105,923 105,923

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
RMAA service cash-generating units for 31 December 2019. The
following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected efficiency improvements, and expected
market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used is before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Growth Rate estimates — Rates is based on common industry
practice.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IR R sE
31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H
18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HhERLEE
Sewage
Technical pipe usage Contract
Software know-how right backlog Brand TOTAL
akE
B BRI FRE AxIAH mhE b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETn ARt ARETT ARETn
At 1 January 2019, RZE-N§-A-R"
net of accumulated amortization BB 2EH 373 1,502 2,497 = S 4372
Disposal of subsidiaries(note11) LERBAR (Fr3E11) (205) (375) - - _ (580)
Acquisition of subsiciaries not WEFLREHTHRBAR
under common control (note 35) (Fir3£35) - - - 9,165 55,735 64,900
Amortisation provided during the year FREHRNEH (168) (741) (202) (4,284) = (5,395)
Exchange realignment EHHAE - - - 352 2,612 2964
At 31 December 2019, RZB-n4+-A=+-R"
net of accumulated amortization BiGRRAEH - 386 2,295 5,233 58,347 66,261
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=R=1+-H
Cost KA - 6,326 4,190 9,517 58,347 78,380
Acoumulated amortization RETEH - (5,940) (1,89) (4,284) = (12,119)
Net carrying amount REZE - 386 2,295 5233 58,347 66,261
At 1 January 2018, WZE-\E-f—-R"
net of accumulated amortization BB 2EH 550 2,260 2,697 = = 5,507
Addition "E 35 - - - - 35
Amortization provided during the year FREHRMEH (212) (758) (200) = = (1,170)
At 31 December 2018, RZZ-NFtZA=+-8B"
net of accumulated amortization EAREHEH 373 1,502 2,497 - - 4372
At 31 December 2018; RZE-N\E+ZA=1—-R:
Cost A 1,183 7,274 4,024 - - 12,481
Acoumulated amortization 2EEH (810) (772 (1527) = = (8,109)
Net carrying amount REFE 373 1,502 2,497 = = 4372
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5

31 December 2019

—E-h&E+=-A=+—H

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

(@)

Brand with indefinite useful lives acquired through business
combinations is allocated to the RMAA service CGU.

impairment testing of other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives

The values of Brand with indefinite useful lives are assessed
annually by using the relief from the royalty method
calculated based on a five-year cash flow projection
approved by senior management. The fair values of the
brand was equal to the future royalty savings resulting from
ownership of the assets.

The key assumptions, royalty saving rates, long term growth
rates and discount rates used in the annual impairment
testing of brand with indefinite useful lives in 2019 are as
follows:

key assumptions Brand (%)
Sales annual growth rate 3%-4%
Royalty saving rates 7.6%
Long term growth 2.5%
Pre-tax discount rate 19.3%

Sales annual growth rate is the average annual growth rate
over the forecast period, it is based on past performance
and management’s expectations of market development.

The royalty saving rates used are with reference to
comparable intangible assets and the related royalty rates
that the buyers typically pay for the use of such assets.

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific
risks relating to RMAA services CGU.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with
external information sources.
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18. HEFEE (&)

BREBAHBBE 2 BERERFHmE
Ti0 B TRMAARR TS 3R & B2 AR B8 AL o

EREAFHEMELEERENA

BEREAFHREZEESFRARL
FRFEER BRI EETRE HETD
ENKESREEBMHENTFRERE
B -mEAFEENEEEEMSE
MARRIFFREERE -

—E-NE BERERFHMEFERE
BEPARAZIEBRR BAEEA
BEAR REEERRRBBREMNT:

FERK ah hE (%)
HEBFRRER 3%-4%
B ABHNE 7.6%
REER X 2.5%
Br 7 AT AL IR & 19.3%

e I R R T A TR BRI P 0 T4
CEMRE ZRBEMRREREY
TSRRHES -

IRANEFRERBHOERTIZ2RA
BURBVEERETHRERBEREE
BEXNOEBSTRERE-

FITER B /9 85 3R 58 T R 56 AT G 3R 2R W (2 B
ERMAARRTSIR € FE 4 B TR -
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19.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IR R sE
31 December 2019 —T—NF+=-A=+—H
INVENTORIES 19. F&
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBTT
Raw materials Mk 2,564 31,560
Work in progress 1 8 622 3,360
Finished goods BURK i 610 50,285
3,796 85,205
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. HEEAHPYE
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 RZF-—NF—A—HZEHAEEAE - -
Acquisition of assets and liabilities through FEIBURFEN B A B AE &
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) BEKAE (M736) 186,140 -
Additions = 12,384 -
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 RZE—hF+=ZA=+—8H
REE 198,524 =

The Group’s properties under development are situated on
leasehold lands in Mainland China.

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s properties under development
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB
198,524,000 (2018: Nil) were pledged to secure long-term loan
facilities granted to the Group by a bank (note 28).The value
of properties under development is assessed at the end of the
reporting period. There’s no impairment, because the realisable
value exceeds its carrying value.

AEEBZBERPYELNTBEAMBE -

R-BE-HE+-A=1+—HB KAEEEREEZ
EAHARE198,524,0007t (=T — )\ :
TINBEBPYECELER  DARR—AER
THEAEEETFZREEHRE (HF28) -
BRPMENEBECRBSHRELTMH %
YELERE FEEAZEEEEAERE
@o
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S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE 21. EZERRIEREKRERE

2019 2018

= i —F-N\%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBTT

Trade receivables H 5 W GIE 38,859 19,685
Bills receivable e R & 29,582 118,763
68,441 138,448

Impairment BIE (2,347) (1,171)
Net trade and bills receivable B S RWEIAEN RN EEFE 66,094 137,277

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally 3 months. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivable and overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

AEBEZFRNEZRRAEERE - HEH
BEFE—REBBEMNKRIN -EEHBT RIME
H-B2EFPHRERSEERE -AEEK
77 B AR 42 i) R U [ W RO - T v AR R JE B
EHmE AR BN EXAT - I EARSE
EESEWHREEREDHEPER HAE
EXERRRETFNERL -BEZREFELR

B o
N

REEHR BHRNFTEIREZ B HNER
DWW

2019 2018

—2-NF —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T ARBTT

Within 3 months 3MEAR 30,502 16,848
3to 6 months 318 A =6fE A 1,921 1,479
6 months to 1 year JEREEIE:S 4,160 135
1 to 2 years 1526 652 51
More than 2 years BiE2F 1,624 1172
38,859 19,685
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE 21. ESEWFERERERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are EHORWZBBRERENESHNOT :
as follows:
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREF T
At beginning of year F9) (1,171) (1,137)
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BRI EEE (M5E6) (2,218) (34)
Amount written off as uncollectible WEEAEEREIN R 34 =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWE QA 1,048 =
Exchange difference PE N E (40) -
At end of year FR (2,347) (1,171)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using provision matrices to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical
region). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

FAEH 1% 38 45 B EER AR B 77 - B
SHETEMIE R BEEDEREE RS
BER (EBEERS) NS EESH BER
O HA B BT - S R R D A
B R T B R 15 40 A A 3R
B AR R AR RSB R TE RN SR R A EE
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE
(CONTINUED)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s accounts receivable using provision matrices:

21. EZRUAREREREE (F)

TREJAEEERBEEBFENE SR
RENEERRER

Past due
bk
Less than 3to12 Over
Current 3 months months 1 year Total
3EAZE

0H  PRIMEA 1288 #BBE-F st

GROUP A R
Expected credit loss rate BEEEEEX 1.33% 5.79% 8.90% 91.67% 12.00%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) EEmeE(ARBTT 10,953 1,538 4,560 1,764 18,815
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EHEEEE (ARETT) 146 89 406 1,617 2,258
Past due
i
Less than 3to12 Over
Current 3 months months 1 year Total
EAZE
Mg DREA 1288 BBE-F #@st
GROUP B z4
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBREE 0.04% 0.07% 0.40% 72.32% 0.44%

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FEZE (AR TT)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) TEHEEEE (AEETT)

The Group categorised its customers by making reference to their
geographical regions into the following groups:

° Group A: Geographical region in Hong Kong
° Group B: Geographical region in the Mainland China

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying value of trade receivables.

The bills receivable were due within 3 or 6 months,the Group has
closely monitored the credit qualities and the collectability of these
bills receivables and consider that expected credit risks of them are
close to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

St AT IR Rl 5E

31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22, EMNRMIE - RERH A EUYFIR L

RECEIVABLES AND TRUST LOAN REWZETEER
RECEIVABLE
(a) Prepayments, deposits and other (a) BRRE RERHEMEWRIE
receivables
2019 2018
—ZE-NF —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARMEF T
Deposit paid for a proposed MERERN—BEEFELH
acquisition from a related party* WEgmZ Hieex - 20,000
Prepayment to suppliers At B P S ST TR A FRIE 50 11,634
Deposits and other receivables e R H A KGR 2,860 5,410
Prepaid expenses AR RS 193 510
Interest receivables JEUUF B 710 69
Value-added tax recoverable AT U el (E 12,552 3,428
16,365 41,051

On 1 November 2018, the Group entered into the
share purchase agreement with Astute Horizon Limited,
ultimately controlled by the Controlling Shareholder, Mr.
Li, to acquire 100% equity interests of First Intelligence
International Limited. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group made a deposit of RMB20,000,000 pursuant to
the terms agreed. The acquisition was completed on 4
January 2019.

The above balances are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of
deposits and other receivables approximate to their fair
values.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default
and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018,
the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of
the reporting period is the carrying value of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables.

* RZE—NE+—A—B %8
HESERAR (BRHAERKE
o A PR ) BT S AR AR B A 1 s LA LK
BATEBRERARZ M E-
RZZE—N\F+—A=+—8 &%
EEREBERRIN RS ARE
20,000,0007c - ZMEEHER =T
—hE—AMBRERK-

s EER - 28 REETEEK
Hoim e K H A0 FEWRIE ) BRI (E 82 H
RNFERE-

AT bt st 2 & B A 2E BT A AR 5
R FE 52 J 380 B AR IR 2 FE MR IR B o 0
—ENAFRZF-NFFTZA=1—
A B R BB E R

RBEMRNKAEERRBEMNRK
B e REMREFRRREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND TRUST LOAN
RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

(b) Loan receivables

22, FEF

RIR - RS R H A FEURIE B

REWETEER (HF)

(b) EWRER

2019 2018

o —E—\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBF T

Loan receivables (a) - (d) JEWE (@) - (d) 145,832 50,000

(@ The Group entered into a six-month trust loan
arrangement with a commercial bank on 23
September 2019, pursuant to which a trust loan of
RMB50,000,000 was lent to an independent third
party through bank. The balance is unsecured, bears
an interest rate of 6.5% per annum and is repayable
on 22 February 2020.

(b)  The Group entered into a six-month trust loan
arrangement with a commercial bank on 13
November 2019, pursuant to which a trust loan of
RMB60,000,000 was lent to an independent third
party through bank. The balance is unsecured, bears
an interest rate of 6.5% per annum and is repayable
on 12 May 2020.

(0 The Group entered into an arrangement on
6 December 2019, pursuant to which loan of
RMB26,874,000 was lent to an independent third
party. The balance is unsecured, bears an interest rate
of 5% per annum and is repayable on 7 December
2020.

(d)  The Group entered into a one-year loan arrangement
on 20 December 2019, pursuant to which loan of
RMB8,958,000 was lent to an independent third party.
The balance is unsecured, bears an interest rate of
5% per annum and is repayable on 18 December
2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SRR IR R Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE— A&+ =-_A=+—H

23. CONTRACT ASSETS 23. EHEE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NF —T—N\F
+=HB=+—H F=R==E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT

Contract assets arising from: ATEBEEENEHNEE:

Construction services (a) ZiERRTS () 16,973 =

Retention money receivables (o) FE U 1R B8 & (0) 1,483 -

18,456 -

Impairment EE (989) =

17,467 -

(@)  Unbilled revenue is initially recognised for revenue earned (a) FAAERZTIMREZEREATRINZ
from the provision of construction services as the receipt Wzsm Pl F R AWEREAEUKD
of consideration is conditional on successful completion ERIREREH RIBTKRERR
of construction. Upon completion of construction and BENE BRARAZRSZSZEEEE
acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as FoBERBEER-
unbilled revenue are reclassified to accounts receivable.

()  Retention money receivables are part of the consideration b) EHRREBEEABEFLREFHFNI TR
that the customers retain which is payable on successful FEMZErRE URABEFREARE
completion of the contracts in order to provide the BREGHNSARELTRERT:
customers with assurance that the Group will complete its mIEmMBFIRERME -

obligation satisfactorily under the contracts, rather than to
provide financing to the customers.
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S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

23. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 23. EHNEE (&)
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets RTZA=+—HERHNEEZEHKESEE
as at 31 December is as follows: BT
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBEFT
Within one year —FN 17,148 =
After one year —F1& 1,308 =
Total contract assets BHEERTE 18,456 =
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract ANEEMREGEREZSH N T

assets are as follows:

2019

—E-NF

RMB’000

AR¥ TR

At beginning of year F1) -
Impairment losses, net (note 6) BEE B FRE (MF6) 972)
Exchange difference PE 3 = %E (17)
At end of year FR (989)
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St AT IR Rl 5E

31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

23. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 23. EHNEE (&)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a REREDHARBBEERETRES T K
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision HEEPEEERE IEANEEEYREER
rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the B RBREEDNERESBEWHB 2 BEE
contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables as RENEERBESERRBELIRERA—FF
the contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same AR - ANEBEECBEBERNDEANREBEMUESE
customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are based BXNZEREF 5 AR (AR E - EmiE
on days past due of trade receivables for groupings of various Al BREBERRFHFUAREAESEMEER
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical SR ANREGRES D )HE SRR E S E
region, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by AHET ZirERMMENELER BER
letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation BEMRBREAHASNE@ABTSH B850k
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money R ARREEARATERNEERATEER -
and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on TR FERABREEEFEAREEGNEER
the Group’s contract assets using a provision matrix: ER e E R -
2019 2018
—E-hF —Z— )\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFT
Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEEX 5.36% =
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) EERE(ARETIT) 18,456 =
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) EHEEEBEE (AR®ETIT) 989 =
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S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

24. BEERBEAFEFTABRENEH

BE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTFT
Asset management agreement, at fair value BEEEW® KATE
(note 42) (Pif5E42) 100,696 68,134

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, Yongsheng
Dyeing entered into certain asset management agreements with
the corresponding asset managers, pursuant to which Yongsheng
Dyeing agreed to participate in the asset management plans
operated by these asset managers and to deposit investments to
the designated accounts maintained by the asset managers. The
asset management plans mainly invest in inter-bank deposits and
bonds. The financial assets at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were
classified as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition,
designated by the Group as financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit or loss.
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SRR IR R Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE— A&+ =-_A=+—H

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT 24. EERBRAFEFTABREZNSH

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BgE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The detalils of the investments at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are RZE-NFRZZE-N\F+TZA=+—HEK
set out below: BWFIEESIOT
Investment Fair value at
Assets Manager Custodian amount  Agreement date year-end
RERH
BEEEA EEA REWE HEAH AYE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
2019
—E-NF
Minsheng Wealth Investment Management Co., Ltd  China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd 25,000  14-Nov-19 25,230
REREREERERLA PEESRNERAT —NE+—A+TmA
China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust Co., Ltd Beijing Chaowai Street Sub-Branch of 25,000  13-Nov-19 25,181
FREIMEEE SR BRAT China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. —NE+—A+=H
BERARNARAT
R ERAT
Everbright Xinglong Trust Co., Ltd China Everbright Bank Co., Limited, 50,000  6-Dec-19 50,285
KAERETERET AR Beijing Branch —-hE+=-AXH
REEABITRHDAEBRARLRATT
100,696
2018
—E-N\&
Minsheng Wealth Investment Management Co., Ltd  China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd 20,000  17-Jul-18 20,627
RENEREERBRAF TREFROBRAA —N\FtA+tH
China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust Co., Ltd Beijing Chaowai Street Sub-Branch of 46,150  17-Ju-18 47,507
FREIMEEE SR ERAT China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. —N\EtRA++tA
BBERARNAERAT
R AT
68,134
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25 RERREEZEYURBCEREF
PLEDGED DEPOSITS A

2019 2018
—E-NF ZZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREF T
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTH % 55,679 81,483
Pledged deposits EEBFER - 2,743
Time deposits TEHfF R 93,000 63,090
148,679 147,316

Less: Pledged as collateral B EREITEREERA
for issuance of letters of credit @ - (200)

Pledged as collateral for bank borrowings ERBITEHELERE
R o - (2,543)
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 148,679 144,573

At the end of the year, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB were RMB100,088,000 (2018:
RMB143,233,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between 3 to 45 days depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposits rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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RER REBUARBTENR S RIRTTE
A AR¥100,088,0000T (ZE—NF: AR
#143,233,0007T) - ARBETBeER AR AR
b EHE o ST - ARIE AR B (OMNEE RG]
K (4EIE - ERRMNESERTE) @ NEEEHE
BRERERTHBAREASEMERIIET
SN FE S

RITRSLRERRITERME - LUZBF X
REOANB -EHMEMERFHRLI— RFAE
BEORREFRME N F=ZE2@+HAXT
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S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=—A=+—H
26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. ESEFIE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARET T
Trade payables =) AE e 53,861 78,556

An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the year,

based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RER BHRERNFBEREBEZBHNORE D

M

2019 2018

—ZE-hF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBFT

Within 6 months 61E AR 50,525 76,682
6 months to 1 year e ENES 1,939 40
1to 2 years 1E24F 1,177 1,751
More than 2 years B iE2F 220 83
53,861 78,556

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled on 60-day terms.

S RNFARTE B R —RERCOEHRA

B
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27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

27. E B IR R BT ROR

2019 2018

—2-NF —TN\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T AREFIT

Contract liabilities EHaE @) 5,717 15,072

Accrued payroll [EETTE 13,213 16,700

Accruals et R E 1,883 812

Interest payable FERTRE 454 51

Value-added and other taxes payable — JE{- 18 {E T & E 0 77 18 4,959 7,972
Payables for purchase of property, BEYE BER&EN

plant and equipment &3R8 285 5,666

Others A, 1,964 3,718

28,475 49,991

All the amounts interest payable, value-added and other taxes
payable, payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment
and other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average

term of three months.

Notes:

(@) Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

FERNANE BNEERMEMKEIE BE
WE - R Ko iR O B AN R IR A B EL At 8 5 3K
BRI ERFEFHAR=MEA -

i :

@ AHNAENFBEWT:

2019 2018
—Z—-hF - N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT

Short-term advances received from %5 P R )5S HR TR U R IE

customers

Processing T 27 210
Production and Trading SERES - 14,862
RMAA service RMAARR 7 5,447 =
Properties investment E$ 243 =
Total contract liabilities BHEERRE 5,717 15,072

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
industrial products, processing service, RMMA service and

operating leases.
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. Gt ERITREAMMERK
BORROWINGS

2019 2018
—E-RE “E-0\%
Effective Effective
interest Effective interest Effective
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BRAIZ(%) BRISA ARETR ERFIE %) ERISA AREFT
Current bk
Lease (note 16) HE (Miz6) 4,75% 31-Dec-20
k- 3:2
+-A=t-H 577 = = =
Bank loans - secured ROEF-BHER 4-Dec-20 4-Dec-19
ft- 13 -NE
451% +=AWmA 15,000 457% TZAmA 15,000
Bank loans - secured ROER-HER 22-Jun-20 20-Jun-19
ft- -3 —-nE
475% A~A-tZH 10,000 4.75% ~A=tH 5,000
15-Jan-19
-NE
4.79% —A+HA 2,700
16-Mar-19
—NE
4.79% =R+5H 15,000
Current portion of REBTER 31-Dec-20
long term bank loans-secured HiRBEs - BHER 23
425% t-B=1-H 263 - - -
25,840 37,700
Non-current Ek)
Lease (note 16) HE (F16) 4,75% 9-Sep-22
—ZEnANR 69 - - -
Bank loans - secured ROEF-BER 9-May-23
4.25% LANE 686 - - -
Bank loans - secured ROER-HEA 31-Jul-%$5
i)
660% +tA=t-H 39,600 - - -
Bank loans - secured ROEF-BER 31-Jul-%$5
i}
6.60% +tA=+—H 30,000 - - -

70,355 = = =
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31 December 2019

—E-h&E+=-A=+—H

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) The Group’s bank loans are secured by:

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

mortgages over the Group’s buildings, which had an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting
period of approximately RMB22,597,000 (2018:
RMB31,309,000);

mortgages over the Group’s land use right, which
had an aggregate carrying value at the end of the
reporting period of approximately RMB4,139,000 (2018:
RMB11,585,000);

the pledge of certain of the Group’s bills receivable
and deposits amounting to RMB1,850,000 and
RMB2,543,000, respectively as at 31 December 2018.
There was no such pledge as at 31 December 2019.

mortgages over the Group’s properties under
development with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB198,524,000 (2018: Nil) which were
pledged to secure long-term loan facilities granted to the
Group by a bank;

mortgages over the Group’s investment properties with a
carrying value of RMB614,298,000 (2018: Nil) which were
pledged to secure long-term loan facilities granted to the
Group by a bank;

mortgages over the Group’s construction in progress with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB21,355,000
(2018: Nil) which were pledged to secure long-term loan
facilities granted to the Group by a bank.
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28.

SFRBITREMMER (F)

GEX

(@)

REEZRITEFREB TISBEREER:

)

(i)

(i)

RBEHRAEERENARE
22,597,000 (ZZE—NF: ARKE
31,309,0007T ) Z AN EEF 21218

RFEEHREEEREOARE
4,139,000t (ZZE—N\F: ARK
11,585,0007T ) Z AL E L F Ak
%

RZE-N\FE+ZA=1+—HB4F4%H
2RI REA R E1,850,0007T kA R
2,643,000t 2 & TRERERFRZ
BEH-R-_FE-AF+-A=+—H
A b IR 4R

A HEmENHARE198,524,0007T

ZE-N\F EIZAEEERTY
¥7IRBETEM UE-BERTA
AEBBETRHBETRE

BREME A R%614,298,000T (=&
— N\ \) ZAREREMEZ2IZE
ETER UE-—HRTAREEK
FTREERRE

BRE F B A A KR %21,355,0005T (=
T-N\F B ZAEEEETRZE
BETER UE-—RHRTANEE
RTRHEFRRE -



29. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

St AT IR Rl 5E

31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

29. T &EB

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AR®TT
Government grants BT & B 7,677 12,510
Less: current portion R BVERER (387) (1,225)
7,290 11,285

Movements in government grants are as follows: BT EBEFHMOT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFT
At the beginning of the year F9) 12,510 13,735
Grants received during the year FRNERED) 5,032 =
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HEHBRR (K1) (8,464) =
Amortised as income i P TON (1,401) (1,225)
At the end of the year FR 7,677 12,510

The grants were related to the subsidies received from local
government authorities for the purpose of compensation for
expenditure on certain facilities and were credited to a deferred
income account. The grants were released to profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant assets.

The Group also received certain financial subsidies from local
government authorities to support local business. There were no
unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies relating to these
government grants. These government grants were recognised in
profit or loss when received.

SEEEERE TRIENH M ERE R
IHAESHMRE R Lt AREWAR
B-ZEEPNHHEERBERFHRGRE

fa35e o

REE TR A E BT RS S T M EBRmRL A
SEE MR - 5% FBUT & B I B A ] RERK
BV IR R B A B IR - ZF R E B ER
RrfEtE s P RERR -
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30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 30. EEBEBEEE BFE
Movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without BEMSMEERBEZS (KRG RIKHERA
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same —BERERRAMNER) T

tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

The movements in deferred tax assets: BEIBE Em#

Provision for

impairment of

Write down of trade

inventories receivables

to their net and

realisable ~ Government contract
value grants Accruals assets Tax losses Total

ESER

RER

FEMAZ AHEE
HU2RFE BREs JEctsE AERE HEsE @t

RMBIOOD  RMBOOD  RMBO0O  RMBOO0O  RMBOOO  RMB'00
ARETE  ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2018 RZE-NF-A—H 430 2,060 3,770 185 370 6,815
Deferred tax credftec/(charged) to FRRBEAN/ (1K)
profit or loss during the year MEERE (157) (184) (1,110) 5 (370) (1,816)

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE+ZA=+-Bk

“E-NF-A-H 273 1,876 2,660 190 = 4,999
Acquisition of assets and liabilties through BRLBEHBARKBEER
acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) Bt (F1336) - - - - 1,373 1373
Deferred tax credited /(charged) to FRRBRIAN/ (HB)
profit orloss during the year WERERE 483 545 1,560 526 515 3,629
Exchange differences ERER - - - 9 - 9
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HERBAR (FEF11) (756) (1271) (2272 (171) = 4,470)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1—H = 1,150 1,948 554 1,888 5,540
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30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

The Group has tax losses arising from Hong Kong of
RMB12,133,000 (2018: RMB6,424,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.

The Group has tax losses arising from mainland China of
RMB7,565,000 (2018: RMB521,000) that will expire in one to five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
losses of RMB12,146,000 (2018: RMB8,508,000) as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for continuously
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

30. EEMIBEE &E (&)

AEBRBEREANBTEBEARE
12,133,0007T (=& — )\ : AK#6,424,000
TC) P AR ER B EEEBE R RN RRE
R g ) o

AEBRTPEALEELEORBEBARE
7,565,0007T (=& — \F : AR¥521,0007T)
MEHARERBREFMEBER—ERFANE
o

MERLEEARK12,146,000 (=T — N
F: AR¥8,508,0007T) BRELERBEE
AAZEBEBRIREFERNBERENN B
~aEl AR BT AT e FERR T s 7 7] F LA 8
FRIgEE -

EXERBABENESHMT

Temporary

difference
between Fair value
accounting  adjustments

basis and arising
Unrealised Unrealised  tax basis of from the
interest fairvalue investment acquisition of ~ Withholding
income  adjustment properties  a subsidiary tax Total
REME

GHREEE  UWE-H

RABEE  WELR
RRH ARE  ZBNEE EEN
NERA  AVERE EE  ATES#E JERIL &t
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB000
ARBTR ARETR ARMTR AR%TR ARETR ARET:R

At1 January 2018 W-E-\F—F-7 (10) %) - - (12,786) (12,886)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to FRRER (NB) /AR
profit or loss during the year EREHE - (207) - - (3,467) (3,674
Withholding tax paid BERENH - - - - 1,350 1,350
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZZ-N\E+ZA=+-RHEK
“E-A\5-F-A (10 097) . - (14.903) (15210)
Acquisttion of subsidiary (note 35) WEEMB AR (Mi335) - - = (1512) = (1,512)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to profitor loss ~ ERREE (k) /3t AR
during the year ETHE @) 193 2,026) 707 (5,624 6842
Withholding tax paid BREMH - - - - 4,714 4714
Exchange differences ELES - - - (58) - (58)
At 31 December 2019 W-E-AE+-A=+-8 (102 (104) 2,02 (863) (15813 (18908
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30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 30. EERIEEE BE (&)
(CONTINUED)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and ABHEINR ATECHEEERBEBEERS
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial P AR R P EE - U T AR EEMIRLER
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of THERT IV BRE B OETES T :

the Group for financial reporting purposes:

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the REHT B RIERL
consolidated statement of financial position R IB A EF 5 536 =
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the REHT B R RIERL
consolidated statement of financial position BT IEE EFE (13,904) (10,211)
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. kA&
Shares vl
2019 2018
—2-hE —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREF T
Issued and fully paid BEITRER
749,655,890 (2018: 394,487,500) 749,655,890R%
ordinary shares (ZZE—N\%F:
394,487,500% ) & @R 6,217 3,121
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
Shares (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as

St AT IR Rl 5E

31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

31. ’RA (&)
B (48)

ARRARBRAEHERBEEMT

follows:
Number of Share
shares Share premium
inissue capital account Total
BRI
REHE BE  ROBER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AR®TT ARETR
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—\F—H—H 400,925,600 3,173 173,359 176,532
Share repurchased (o) BERRH b) (9,940,000) 82) (22,299) (22,381)
Share options exercised (3) BTERERER 3,501,900 30 5,882 5,912
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company [ 2 Al A3 52 Ak 8. - - (26,285) (26,285)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R=ZE—N\F+-A=1+—HEK
—E-NE-A-H 394,487,500 3,121 130,657 133,778
Share options exercised (a) BITEERER 2,507,100 22 4,259 4,281
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company RZA &R 3 (AL & - - (27,951) (27,951)
Issuance upon acquisition of Subsidiaries T B I 8 1 AR 347 (M 3E35)
(notes 35) 80,000,000 684 170,456 171,140
Issuance upon acauisition of assets and RBRKEREARREEE
liabilities through acquisition of subsidiaries ~ }2 & f&14 %47 (Fff5536)
(notes 36) 272,661,290 2,390 609,451 611,841
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AETZA=+—-H 749,655,890 6,217 886,872 893,089

(@) The subscription rights attaching to 2,507,100 (2018:
3,501,900) share options were excised at the weighted
average subscription price of HK$1.251 (2018:HK$1.252) per
share (note 32) resulting from in the issue of 2,507,100 (2018:
3,501,900) ordinary shares for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of approximately RMB2,731,000 (2018:
RMB3,802,000). An amount of approximately RMB1,550,000
(2018: RMB2,110,000) was transferred from the share option
reserve to share premium account upon the exercise of the
share options.

(b) In 2018, the Company repurchased 9,940,000 of its ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for
a total consideration of HK$27,129,000, which amount to
approximately RMB22,381,000. The repurchased shares were
cancelled during the year and total amount paid for the purchase
of the shares of has been charged to share capital and share
premium of approximately RMB82,000 and RMB22,299,000
respectively.

(@)

2,507,10013 ( =& — J\ 4 : 3,501,900% ) i&
R M RIERIEER1251E T (ZF
—NF 12028 L)WM INETFHREERE
170 (M7E32) N BB S RE (B E
R AT # AR #2,731,0007T (ZF — \F:

AR #3,802,0007T ) % 472,507,1008% (=&
—\4F : 3,501,9000% ) iM% - AR
1,650,0007T (=& — \&F : AR¥2,110,000
TL) B R B AR AR 1T B R B IR R i e R

=R EER-

R-ZT— \F K2 a AR {E27,129,000
BT (BEHARE22,381,0007T) RE B
AR5 R A R B H9,940,0000% & &
- BERBERMDNFEATHEMRERRDE
NrEezEE A RA LG HERS B0k
# A\ R 82,0007 & A R #22,299,0007T °

KB R ERAR 2019F#H
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 32. BBRESTE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company'’s directors and other employees of the Group. The
Scheme became effective on 7 November 2013.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme is limited to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
on 27 November 2013, the day since which the Company’s shares
have been listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 7 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a vesting period of no shorter than 12 months and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options.

The exercise price of share options is determined at the highest
of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (i) the
par value of shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 32, BBIRETTE (&)
R_ZE—AF— A B 39REECER
15,000,00017 B #E - FEEHBAN F =2 — <
FNA-_HAE-_ZE_RAF—ARAHRKEITEEAE
1488 - ERHERENTEA AR T
HEE o

On 6 January 2015, 15,000,000 share options were granted to 39
employees with vesting dates falling from 2 April 2016 to 5 January
2025 and an exercise price of HK$1.48 per share. The expiration
date of the options granted was 10 years after the grant date.

RoE-HE+-A=18 45HEACES
16,300,000 i - REEAMB —F —tF

On 30 December 2015, 16,300,000 share options were granted
to 45 employees with vesting dates falling from 1 April 2017 to 30
December 2025 and an exercise price of HK$1.52 per share. The MA—BEZZE-_AF+A=1+HRKTEE
expiration date of the options granted was 10 years after the grant BER12B T EREHERENIHAE AR
date. HEEETF-

FRZETEIBE T A TERENRITE:

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme

during the year:
2019 2018
= “B-NE

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options

mE¥H AT
THE BREHE TR EREHA
HKD ’000 HKD ‘000

per share per share
=1 T4 BRETT T3
At 1 January R—RB—H 1.503 21,110 1,503 24,612
Granted during the year FAKL = = - -
Exercised during the year FRTE 1.251* (2,507) 1.252¢ (3,502)
Forfeited during the year FRZIK - - - -
Expired during the year FREm = = - -
At 31 December RTZA=+—H 1.503 18,603 1.503 21,110

The weighted average share price at date of exercise for share
options excised during the year was HK$2.51 per share (2018:

HK$2.59).

*

The adjusted exercise prices were in line with the dividend issues

approved by the board of directors.

JT) e
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St AT IR R 5E

31 December 2019 —=&

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

~AF+—A=+—A

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019

Number of options

Exercise price*

Exercise period

32. BIREETE (&)

RBEER MARTEERENTEERITE
HAEN R -

—E-h%F

BREHE THEE* TR
‘000 HKD
per share
F15 BRAB T
3,336 1.48 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025
—E-RNFNA-HBHE-_ZE_AF—HAH
3,336 1.48 1 April 2017 to 5 January 2025
—E—+FMNA—HE=ZE-_RAF—AAA
5,950 1.52 2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025
—Z—+tFNMA-HE-_E-_RAF+=-A=1+H
5,981 1.52 1 April 2018 to 30 December 2025
—E-N\FOA-—BE-ZT-_RF+=A=1H
18,603

2018

Number of options

Exercise price*

Exercise period

—E—-N\F

BREZR TEE: 1T
'000 HKD
per share
T BRAET
4,036 1.48 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025
—E-RFNA-BRE-_ZTE-_RAF—AAH
4,036 1.48 1 Apl’il 2017 to 5 January 2025
—+FNA—HE-ZE-_RAF—ARH
6,504 1.52 2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025
—+tFMAZHE-E-_AF+=-A=1+H
6,534 1.52 1 Apl’il 2018 to 30 December 2025
—N\FOMA—RAz_E-_RAF+=-A=+H
21,110
i The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * FEAR HE BV TT 0 (B ] FE AR Sk AR BB 18+ 5k

in the case of rights or dividend issues, or other similar changes
in the Company’s share capital.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the share options granted were RMB8,556,000 for
15,000,000 share options granted on 6 January 2015 (RMB0.57
each) and RMB10,669,000 for 16,300,000 share options granted
on 30 December 2015 (RMBO0.65 each), of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of RMB525,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2018. No share option expenses
recognised during the year of 2019.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the
year was estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

15,000,000 share options granted on 6 January 2015:

S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

32. BRHEETE (&)

ERLMNERENATFTER - —HF—
A 75 B % H #915,000,00017 B #E A AR
8,556,0007T (B ARKO57T) K= F
—AFE+ = A=+ HEHH16,300,0001
AL A AR %10,669,0007T (B AR
0.6570) HAAEBERBEZ-T—\F+=
A=+ BLFEBRRERERIARE
525,0007T ° 1A = F — L 4F A\ £ e 2R B AR
e

FAMRL R EEERBENR L B LB

P e ) 35t SRR IR IR AF 1R 2 B — TR VIR AL T
ERFE TRIIGAAEL A AR

R-ZZTE—RF— ANBETA15,000,00015 i

%
Dividend yield (%) 1% B % (%) =
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 18 (%) 43.78
Risk-free interest rate (%) [ Bz ) 2 (%) 1.752
Expected life of options (year) AR TEHAERR (F) 10
Share price (HK$ per share) RE (BT 1.46

16,300,000 share options granted on 30 December 2015:

R-ZE—RF+-A=+HELH16,300,000

19 B AR
Dividend yield (%) 1% B 2 (%) =
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 18 (%) 52.30
Risk-free interest rate (%) [ B 1 2K (%) 1.57
Expected life of options (year) AR ERTEHAERR (F) 10
Share price (HK$ per share) RE (ZRBT) 1.52

The expected life of the options was the contractual life of the
options. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

BRENBEHFRABRENASOFR -AH
KIERRESLKBARRBEHEENRE
ARBETN—ERERER-
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31 December 2019

32.

33.

—E-h&E+=-A=+—H
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

About 2,507,000 (2018: 3,502,000) share options exercised
during the year end 31 December 2019 resulted in the issue of
2,507,000 (2018: 3,502,000) ordinary shares of the Company
and new share capital of approximately RMB22,000 (2018:
RMB30,000), as further detailed in note 31.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 18,603,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 18,603,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of approximately RMB167,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 18,603,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 2.48% of the Company’s shares
in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 102 of the financial
statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Group which are domestic enterprises are
required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the relevant PRC accounting standards, to their
respective statutory surplus reserves until the reserves reach 50%
of their respective registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions
set out in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the statutory
surplus reserve may be converted to increase share capital,
provided that the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations with a functional currency other than
RMB.
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32.

33.

BRESTE (&)

AR SR o 34 A B R AR A A EL
e

BOHASIE —SFL REE=-F—hF
+Z A=+—HIEFEE7#42,507,0001

—Z— )\ :3,502,00017 ) BB BT
2,507,000/% ( =% — J\ 4 : 3,502,000/% ) &
NAEIEBREFBRALHARE22,000T (=ZF
—N\F: AR¥30,0007T) °

RBEEHR A2 R&ZFEEBETE
18,603,00017 & A 17150 B IR #E - IR TR A A |38
B AR AN B0 4 - SR BT T 0 W R 1T (50 A B AR A ]
5 A N 1718,603,000% AN A 7 AR K
5B OMR AR 49 A R #167,0007T (0% 3175 X
A o

R EZ ST BRER A ARAREZLET
£18,603,00017 W RTTEBRE - HERAR
AR B E BT #42.48% -

(EA

ARBHBRATEERBETFEHSERA
FORUBREEI0EN A SHESBDES
5

BRE (hEARKMBERBE) - AEBET
MEBARERAEAME ARRABPEA
RAMBE & 52 RIFTEEE 2 B E10%BR B & 4
NEERBZEERBHHE BEEEBHBED
HEBEMEARNS0% - EET (PEARK
MBRRLE) BIIMETRHEBRAT  #0%
R FEFHE AT REBREINRA  FIiREEAR
EROBBENEIREMEARMN25% °

SNEEN HiRRRBRENEEERARBIAIN
MEBHBERREENMBELZR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SRR IR R Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE— A&+ =-_A=+—H

34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH M. BEERFEZEREZNIEZEMN
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING | == N
INTERESTS
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non- NEBEBBEAEZER BB A RFEH
controlling interests are set out below: FI0R
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Percentage of equity interest held by non- EERERTEN
controlling interests: RIEB DL
Hangzhou Fiber AR - 30%
Nantong Fiber B e - 33%
Yongsheng 3D Printing KB = HEFT ) - 40%
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREBT T
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to non- BT IEIERER Y
controlling interests: FRmEF, (FE) -
Hangzhou Fiber AL 3,563 4,931
Nantong Fiber gk 17,863 1,279
Yongsheng 3D Printing KB = #EFT ] (279) (237)
Dividends paid to non-controlling AN (A O FE 5 AR i 2
interests of Hangzhou Fiber SRR - 20,296
Dividends paid to non-controlling ) R R A A ) SRR IR 2
interests of Nantong Fiber TR R - 1,018
Disposal of Hangzhou Fiber ((a)&note 11) HEMMEE (@R ME11) (23,714) -
Acquisition of non-controlling WAt B e BB A FE P R R 2 ()
interests of Nantong Fiber (b) - (4,504)
Disposal of non-controlling o B A A JE TR R AR ()
interests of Nantong Fiber (c) - 17,556
Disposal of Nantong Fiber ((@)&note 11) HE @A (@ &ME11) (37,934) -
Liquidation of Yongsheng 3D Printing (d) B E KB = HEFTEN(d) (3,257) =
Accumulated balances of non-controlling RS A B IR AR i
interests at the reporting date: RET#EH:
Hangzhou Fiber N AL - 20,151
Nantong Fiber A A - 20,071
Yongsheng 3D Printing KER = #EFT ) - 3,536
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

(@) On 28 November 2019, the 70% equity interest in Hangzhou
Fiber, the 67% equity interest in Nantong Fiber and the 70%
equity interest in Yongsheng High Polymer been disposed to
the Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Li Cheng. with a consideration
of RMB173,916,000. The fair value of the net asset disposed
on the date of disposition amounting to RMB149,484,000.
The difference between the consideration received and the fair
value of the net asset disposed amounting to RMB24,432,000
was credited into profit and loss. Upon the completion of the
disposal, the Group no longer holding the equity of Hangzhou
Fiber, Nantong Fiber and Yongsheng High Polymer.

(b)  On 28 November 2018, the Group acquired 5% equity
interest in Nantong Fiber from the non-controlling with a cash
consideration of RMB4,237,000. The carrying amount of the
acquired non-controlling interests on the date of acquisition
amounting to RMB4,504,000. The difference between the
consideration paid and the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests amounting to RMB267,000 was credited
into the other reserve. Upon the completion of the acquisition,
the Group had 97% interest in Nantong Fiber.

(c) On 6 November 2018, the Group disposed 30% equity interest
in Nantong Fiber to a non-controlling shareholder with a cash
consideration of RMB17,661,000. The carrying amount of the
disposed non-controlling interests on the date of acquisition
amounting to RMB17,556,000. The difference between the
consideration received and the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests amounting to RMB104,000 was credited
into the other reserve. Upon the completion of the disposal, the
Group had 67% interest in Nantong Fiber.

(d)  On 6 August 2019, The Group completed the liquidation of the
Yongsheng 3D Printing.
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4. FEEARFEREZNIFZEMR
Baw (&)

R-ZZB—hAFE+—A=-+N\B MMLH
TO%MSAE ~ 73 B 46T W HE Kok B D T
T0%MED HE TR R H L RE
BAR#E173,916,0007T - B HEFEENH
ER#Z AFEARARE149,484,0007T ° B
WHzREMELEFEEZRAEY A5
AR ¥24,432,00075F ABR - R EFIE
TERRE  AEETBEEBEENIINCE BB
W ROKBEE D T2 IRE-

RZE—NF+—A=-+\B KEBEKE
R R P R s %A RS REA
AR #4,237,0007T ° AT U B8 FE1E AR A 25 A UK
8% B 8 2 SR B A A R #4,504,0007T ° B 1+
REEFEBRESXZEEEZEBARE
267,0007C 5 A H & - RUREE B IBSEAK
% NEBBBEEBHEITwES

R-ZBE—NE+—ARB ANEER—RIE
72 A% A% R R A 4 VB0 % AR I IR e K
BAARE17,661,0007T - RUEEBE O H
B2 IR iERREE A AR 17,556,000
TLo BRI REBERIEERER ZREEYZ
ZE A RM104,0007T 5T A H 5 - A
EEHEZTNE  NEEFE EBEHECTHIE

<o
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 4. BEEEARFEERERZWIEZEM
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING BATR (&)
INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information THRHPLEIINERATHNTIEERBE - AT
of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any EeBAMKREMNARIMEHEER :

inter-company eliminations:

Hangzhou Yongsheng
2019 Fiber Nantong Fiber 3D Printing
—E-NF HMN{L & ek ¥ KERZ4ESTED
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR¥T T ARMT T
Revenue g 173,765 509,752 50
Total expenses #F > (161,889) (455,495) (746)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FRHEF, (BB R
income/(loss) for the year 2EWA (EIE) B 11,876 54,257 (696)
Current assets mMBNEE - - =
Non-current assets EMEBEE - = =
Current liabilities mE B & - - -
Non-current liabilities e IN=R - - -
Net cash flows from operating activities A& & E BN TSR & M2 F 58 23,021 2,178 (810)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing % &;&EFT1S, (FTH)
activities REREFH (4,647) (23,398) -
Net cash flows from financing activites B & E BN FTIS IR & M2 55 9,696 21,271 -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekAeEEY
cash equivalents #hn Crd) F58 28,070 51 (810)
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

4. ERERFEREZNIFZEM
Baw (&)

Hangzhou Yongsheng
2018 Fiber Nantong Fiber 3D Printing
—ZE-N\E Wb [FIREE KBS = HEFTED
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFT ARBFT
Revenue W= 180,642 296,931 235
Total expenses X (164,205) (286,793) (827)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FRHEF, (18 &
income/(loss) for the year ZHEBA S (BEB) B 16,437 10,138 (592)
Current assets MENEE 135,562 144,532 8,894
Non-current assets ERBEE 36,771 158,090 72
Current liabilities nBBE (100,308) (237,352) (126)
Non-current liabilities EnEatE (4,854) (4,450) -
Net cash flows from operating activities ~ #X & /E B TSR &R 2 F58 1,550 40,537 762
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEERE, (FTH)
investing activities BeRE ¥ 2,657 (41,992) =
Net cash flows from financing activities ~ B & /EBIFISIR &R E F58 - 1,577 =
Net increase in cash and Re MRS EEYIEINFEE
cash equivalents 4,207 122 762
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES NOT

UNDER COMMON CONTROL

On 22 February 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the equity
interest in Summer Power International Inc. and its subsidiary,
Widely Construction &Engineering Ltd. (collectively referred to as
the “Summer Power Group”) from an independent third party for
a total consideration of RMB176,274,200, which was satisfied
by HK$6,000,000 (equivalent to RMB5,134,200) in cash and
consideration of RMB171,140,000, which was determined by
reference to a total of 80,000,000 share of the company issued
for this acquisition and the closing price of the company’s shares
at the date of completion. The Summer Power Group is principally
engaged in providing RMAA services. The acquisition was made as
part of the Group’s strategy to expand the construction business.

S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

35. WY EARZFIEZHMEBE L

RZE—NFZAZ+=-H AEBAR LB
VYE=ZFWEENBEBEBERARLREKBAR
EFNEEIRERAB (ABEHER])W
IR RREAAREA176,274,2007T * LA
6,000,000% 7T (1 E M A R #5,134,2007T)
BE& RAREAREK171,140,0007T (K2 &K
N EI g WS E IR TR A $£80,000,000% B2
MRARNBROARTKBBHENRTEETE)E
o BENEEEERFIRERMAAIR - IS
BAAESENREBEEBN—HD-

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the Summer

ENEEREBRANARBRIEERAEBERF

Power Group as at the date of acquisition were as follows: BT

Fair value

Recognised

on acquisition

U BB B B TSR Y

~EE

RMB’000

AREFIT

Property, plant and equipment VI WS MR 119
Other intangible assets Ef ML EE 64,900
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEBEY 3,996
Amount due from related parties JE YR B8 5E 5 BUIA 1,968
Trade receivables 2 5 FEWFIE 7,817
Contract assets BHEE 6,150
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T8 15 FUE ~ 176 K E b & U 3018 798
Trade payables g 5 ENFIA (3,913)
Other payables and accruals b FE A SR IE M FEET R (360)
Income taxes payable FETEEIE (3,762)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHEBRIT R EMER (1,108)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIAAE (1,512)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEFENRH#AEEFELE 75,093
Goodwill on acquisition W E LR EE 101,181
Total consideration wRE 176,274
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
NOT UNDER COMMON CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$300,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are
included in other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Goodwill which arose on the acquisition included a control
premium. The consideration paid for the combination effectively
included amounts in relation to the benefit of synergies, revenue
growth, further market development of the Summer Power Group.
These benefits are not separable and therefore it does not meet
the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset under IAS 38
Intangible Assets. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to
be deductible for income tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary is as follows:

35, WA 2 A2 WA
IIE

A S B Bt 7% B IR E A R 5 A AN300,00078
TLeRERHRAC YAt AGHIBERE
fEEBRARNEMRA -

WEERELEZHEREENEERE RET
BRAEHMNzRERRERRRBENE -
WABRERENREZRKTSERABRZE
BoREMBmYRDF AUEI TS EER
ST EAFIRELEE T FRERR/ENLE
EZRE - BHHEC ER 2B A (EHR AT
SHAE -

ARUEE-ENBARNBRESRESNET:

RMB’000

ARBTT

Cash paid BEfIEE (5,134)

Cash and bank balances acquired BUWENIR e MIRTTAR 3,996
Net out flow of cash and cash equivalents STABRBESSHRECEER

included in cash from investing activities ReEEYRLFR (1,138)

Since the acquisition, Summer Power Group contributed
RMB107,570,000 to the Group’s revenue and net profit of
RMB23,067 to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the
revenue from continuing operations of the Group and the profit of
the Group for the year would have been RMB318,023,000 and
RMB135,792,000, respectively.
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BWRESEEE BHE T NF+-_A=1+—
HIEFFE ENEEAELAEEERARE
107,570,0007C #) Y z5 &2 A R 823,067 7T #) )%
i Fl| o

e HRNFNET MAEEREKEEN
REKEXRBRERBEFNEI N BARE
318,023,000 % A R #135,792,0007T °
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36. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

On 4 January 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the equity
interest in First Intelligence International Limited and its
subsidiaries, Chang Sheng Investment Holding Co. Limited,
Changsheng Property (Hangzhou) Company Limited, Hangzhou
Yonghao Investment Management Company Limited and
Philosojoy Investment Limited (collectively referred to as the
“First Intelligence Group”) from Astute Horizon Limited, ultimately
controlled by the Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Li, for a total
consideration of RMB811,841,000, which was satisfied by
RMB200,000,000 in cash and RMB611,841,000, which was
determined by reference to a total of 272,661,290 share of the
company issued for this acquisition and the closing price of the
company’s shares at the issue date. At the date of acquisition,
First Intelligence Group mainly held the certain properties under
development and investment properties with no employee. The
acquisition was made solely to acquire its land and buildings as
part of the Group’s strategy to expand the business in Properties
investment. Accordingly, the acquisition of the First Intelligence
Group has been accounted for as acquisition of assets through
acquisition of subsidiaries.

The assets and liabilities of the First Intelligence Group as at the
date of acquisition were as follows:

S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

36. EWENBARKBEERER

RZE-—NF—AENAB AEBEESER
AEl(HEBRBREFTRERKEH) KER
THEERAFGEENB AR MEKREIL
REBRAR -MEEME (M) BRAR M
NAEREEEERATIRBREEBERA
Al(mBIELEE]) 228Kk E REL
A NRH811,841,0007T JHAE & AR
200,000,0007t & A R#611,841,0007 L& -
mEERENE2ZAZBESTENETNE
H#272,661,2000 N2 B 15 A 4T B HIA
RAEAIRMZIEmEEET -RIKEAA BT
SEXERBETERTUERREDE &
PIEREE - WEEHEEAKB L RIEFM
EBAEEERMEREEREEZ —PD -
it WEELEEEEBKEBHEB R AR
ERWEEE-

ATEERNKERHMNEERBBNT:

Fair value
consideration

allocated

B

ATERE

RMB’000

AREFT

Cash and cash equivalents RehkReEEYD 52
Prepayments, deposits and other assets AR RIE - e R E At EGRIR 8,883
Properties under development ERPME 186,140
Property, plant and equipment W - WE R&E 18,980
Investment properties S E Y 597,120
Deferred taxes assets BEEFIBEE 1,373

Other payables and accruals e BRIE R R SRIE (707)
Total net assets acquired B R FEELTE 811,841
Total consideration BRE 811,841
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36. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND 36. EWEHEATWBEERAS
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of HWERNBAANBESCTRESWAT
subsidiaries is as follows:

RMB’000
ARMFT
Cash paid EfRE (180,000)
Cash acquired with the subsidiaries WEMB A Z2H e 52
Net out flow of cash and cash equivalents FFAREBESSHRESCHEER
included in cash from investing activities REeESEWRLFE (179,948)
Note: The first installment of RMB20,000,000 was paid in November MisE: B HT A R #20,000,000tERZF
2018. —NF+—AXfKe
37. COMMITMENTS 37. EIE
(a) The Group had the following capital commitments at the end (a) MBEHER NEMOBEAREENT :
of the reporting period:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: BETAB R B
Land and buildings T RETF 2,552 4,944
Properties under development BRAPME 13,304 =
Investment properties EME 54,437 =
Plant and machinery 5 K& - 400
Investment RE - 180,000
70,293 185,344
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37. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. &iE (&)
(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 b) R=B2—NF+=-A=+—HH
December 2018 REHERIE
The Group lease certain of its office properties under AEERBEEHELTHBERAES Tl
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are NEPE-VEAENHBEHAN T —
negotiated for terms ranging from one to two years. EMEF o
At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum RZZE-—NF+=-_A=+—H ~%£E
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases R 0] BUE AR & M & 1R DA R B B
falling due as follows: HIERT AR R EE BTN T
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARBF T
Within one year —FR 806
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFEERF (BIEEREMRE) 331
1,137
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 38. BELXRZ K&

BALANCES

(@) Name and relationship (a) BBREHE

Name of related party
BESEB

Relationship with the Group
B KB FR

Hangzhou Yongsheng Group Limited
MM EEFR QA

Fuyang Jingshang Agriculture Development

Company Limited
ESRMERREREBRAA

Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng Foreign
Trading Company Limited
MM L KEEINE D ERAF

Hangzhou Yongsheng Holdings Limited
N K BERAER AR A A

HUVIS Corporation and its subsidiaries
R & HUVIS &2 E BT & A A

Hangzhou Shining 3D Tech Co., Limited
MM ER =R RN ERAF

Yongsheng (HK) International Co., Ltd
X&E(BER)BEEREBRQA

Yongsheng Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.
KERERIERERRAF

Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Chemical
Fiber Company Limited
TNDEME LA CBAR AR

Chang Po Chun

REY

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
128 IR IS PR 2 o

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder

i 458 A A R 2

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder

i 48 A AR B 22

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
B 12 s s PR 2 o

Joint venture partner and its subsidiaries

BECEBHEENBAR

Joint venture partner

BACEBY

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
B 28 AR AR R 2 A

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
B 12 s s PR 2 o

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder

i 458 A AR B 2

Director of a subsidiary

—HNBARZES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SRR IR R Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE— A&+ =-_A=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 38. BELXZ Ki&er (#)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Related party transactions b) BELERS
In addition to the transactions and balances otherwise PRUSHBEHREEMEIDAEENRZS
disclosed else in these financial statements, the Group had NEEGIIN REBEBEIEETAT
the following material transactions with related parties: BRRG:
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥TF T ARETT
1) Purchases of goods 1) HEE® [0}
- Fuyang Jingshang —E5EMAERE
Agriculture RERZBRAA
Development
Company Limited 73 38
— HUVIS Corporation and — KA EHHUVIS K
its subsidiaries HIfTB AR 73,130 29,097
73,203 29,135

2) Storage fee received from  2) [AIRE T UWEEEEF (i)

related parties

— Hangzhou Xiaoshan AL T %)
Yongsheng Foreign INEHERAF
Trading Company
Limited - 51
- 51
3)  Agency service fee 3) M—REERWRERE (iii
received from a related k7% &
party
— Hangzhou Xiaoshan — WU B L 2k B A
Yongsheng Foreign B S5ER AT
Trading Company
Limited - 3
- Yongsheng Financial — KBRS BILAR
Holdings Co., Ltd. BRAA 676 377
676 380
4)  Management fees paidto  4)  [A—&BAEF (v)
arelated party ERE
— Yongsheng (HK) —KER (BH) B
International Co., Ltd BRAA 393 719
393 719
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S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

38. BELXRS K& (&)

(b) BELZXZ (&)

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BT EE ARMT T AR F T
5)  Interest income 5 FBUWA )
- Hangzhou Fiber — M &% 189 =
189 -
6) Brand royalty 6) mEEFEAE (vi)
- HUVIS Corporation and — KA B HHUVIS R
its subsidiaries HitB AR 46 -
46 -
7)  Labor costs 7)) BIAK (vii)
- HUVIS Corporation and — R EHHUVIS K
its subsidiaries EE AR 1,182 =
1,182 -
8)  Sales commissions 8) HEME (viii)
- HUVIS Corporation and — R EHHUVIS K
its subsidiaries HitB AR 2,700 -
2,700 -
9) Sales Commissions paid ~ 9) DA —ZREES (viii)
to a related party HHEMS
— HUVIS Corporation and — A ZHHUVIS K
its subsidiaries HETB AR 15 -
15 -
10) Sales of products 10) EmEHE (ix)
— HUVIS Corporation and — A EHHUVIS K
its subsidiaries HETB AR 193 -
193 -
11) Lend to director, 1) MEBRBLED )
Chang Po Chun
—Loan Lent —BEREHER 6,150 -
— Receipt of money Lent — I ER B 18 HH FIB 3,250 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

Notes:

M

(i)

(i)

(vi)

(vil)

(viil

The purchases of goods were made according to the
published prices and conditions similar to those offered to
the major customers of the suppliers.

The storage fee received from related parties was
charged at prices similar to those offered to other
customers of the Group.

The agency service fee received from a related party
was charged at prices similar to those offered to other
customers of the Group.

The management fee was paid for the management
and administrative services provided by Yongsheng (HK)
International Co. Ltd, a company which controlled by the
controlling shareholder of the Group. The management
fee was charged pursuant to the terms in the agreement
signed between the Company and Yongsheng (HK)
International Co. Ltd.

The Group entered into a contract with Yongsheng
Chemical Fiber to lend RMB40,000,000 at an annual
interest rate of 6%. As at the date of the disposal of
Hangzhou Fiber, the remaining amount remained the
same and Yongsheng Chemical Fiber has settled all
interest incurred.

The brand royalty was charged pursuant to the terms in
the agreement signed between the Company and HUVIS
Corporation and its subsidiaries.

The labor costs was paid for the Korean person who
worked for Nantong Fiber.

The sales commissions were charged by Nantong Fiber
and HUVIS Corporation.

The sales to the related party were made according to
the published prices and conditions offered to the major
customers of the Group.

The Group entered into an agreement with Chang Po
Chun to offer interest-free loan of HK$7,187,100 during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

31 December 2019

S5 IR R MIEE
—T-hAEt+=—A=+—H

38. MELXRB KR (&)

(b) BELZXZ (&)

B &L

U

(i)

(i

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

mIRREHTHEBRNIZE

R
FHRENRAREBMIEMET

18

D mp

A B3 77 W ER Y (13 B A To i AR 4t
TAKEEMEFPOERESER
e

A — 4 B 75 W R (I AR 75 B i e
RETAEEEMEFOEREES
Yo EX -

EEREDAXNKE (BFE)BRAR
N (HAEEZERERZESZAF)
iRt e BB RITHBRE - EEET
RBEARBENE (BFB)BBEARR
B ERA] . Wb o fR AR URER

REBEEKBECHETL — A KIS
AR 40,000,0007T * ;&K FF
R B6% ° P HE MM EE A H - ®IgR
SHERFTE MRS EERR
BREHHRS -

MR RTE R B TR IB A N A AR R
FHHUVISK H I B A R 2 AT 0 1 3
R UL ER

BTRAT RN B e RS R

So

HEMchERBERKA TR
HUVISUgEX

REES HEDRERTAEENE
BEP AR ERIMEETT

AEBFHERELI Y HaaAREE=
T NE+-A=+—HILFEEH
% BB K7,187,100/8 T °

KB R ERAR 2019F#H
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31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 38. BELXRZ Ri&er (&)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) ERESFNREELEL
Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 December amount
At outstanding 2018 and outstanding At
31 December during 1 January during 1 January
2019 the year 2019 the year 2018
RZE-N\E
+ZB=+-H
RZEB-NF FREE R-Z-h%F FRAEE RZIE-NF
Due from related parties ERBELRRE +=A=+-H AEELHE -A-AH REESHE -A-A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE ARETRT ARETT ARETT  AR%Tx

— Hangzhou Shining — NG = BB R
3D Tech Co., Limited BRAA S S 2,800 2,800 2,800
— Yongsheng (HK) International Co., — 7k B (&% ) Bl
Ltd BRATE 45 45 = = =
- Yongsheng Financial Holdings ~ —k 4 BhiZ R A 1R 22 &)
Co., Ltd (i) 114 114 390 390 -
-Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng ~ — 01 E#E ok B (L &
Chemical Fiber Company HIR (i)
Limited (ii) 40,200 40,200 = = =
~ Chang Po Chun -REY 2,900 6,150 - - -
43,259 3,190 2,800
Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 December amount
At outstanding 2018 and outstanding At
31 December during 1 January during 1 January
2019 the year 2019 the year 2018
RZB-N\F
+=A=1+-H
RZE-NE FRER R-E-hE FRER RIB-N\F
Due to related parties ERBERRE +=-A=+-H AEESH -A—H AEELE -A—H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTTT AR®FT ARBETT AR®FT
- Yongsheng (HK) -k (BB EBEERAA
International Co., Limited - - 38 96 3
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

St AT IR Rl 5E

31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Outstanding balances with related parties (c)
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) The amounts due from Hangzhou Fiber is the outstanding
loans and interests at the end of the year. On 24 January
2020, the Company, the Controlling Shareholder, Mr.
Li, and Hangzhou Fiber, by mutual consent, agreed to
extend the repayment term of the outstanding loans of
the equity transfer agreements to 30 May 2020 or any
other dates as mutually agreed by the parties.

(ii) The amount due from Yongsheng Financial Holdings
Co., Ltd and Yongsheng (HK) International Co., Ltd is
outstanding agency service fee and management fee,
respectively.

(i)  The amounts due from Chang Po Chun is the outstanding
loans at the end of the year.

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

38. MELXRB KR (&)

HREELNARERSH (F)

(i)

RER BRMNCEFIERKRE
BERERMNBE -R_T_ZF—H
A AR ERBERFEER
MMEECHEER BB EE R B
ZARBEEFRNETPERE T
EERAA=THRATOHHEEREN
EfREMLAR-

& WK B & B A A IR & B Kok A%
(B ERERARRIAS I RKRE
BRERGEREEE-

RER BURREDNFTELSKEERE
B

(d) AEEZ2ETEEEAS 25

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBEFT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 ~ 285 & B ¥1E 7 1,977 1,703

Performance related bonus BB SIEA 4,015 1,509

Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHEK 200 176

Equity-settled share option arrangements A% 1 45 & 8 i i 22 5k - 278
Total compensation paid to key MEEEBABENZ

management personnel 2 kS 6,192 3,666
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Rl FS IR Z Bl 5

31 December 2019

39.

40.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

—E-h&E+=-A=+—H

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s buildings, land
use rights, properties under development, investment properties
and construction in progress were pledged to commercial
banks relating to the long-term and short-term loans granted to
the Group. Details are included in notes 14,15, 16, 20 and 28,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

39. EEEH

RZBE-NF+A=+—HB rEEETE
ForLMERE BRTYVE REVERE
BIRERASEERNRAREHEFIER
TERERT -FABOANERE P ERKRME
141516 -20%28 -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. ZERE SNSRI T
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REBEHR SEeRITANEDENT:
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2019 —E-NF
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets
designated as
Financial at fair value
assets at through profit
amortised cost or loss Total
EER
BAYE
R AL AR STABRN
JIRMSREE SREE #t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥T R AR®T R
Financial assets designated as at fair BEAREAFEF AER
value through profit or loss WeREE - 100,696 100,696
Trade and bills receivable B 5 RYGRIE K R I E 66,094 - 66,094
Loan receivable EER 145,832 = 145,832
Financial assets included in FFATERNRIB e Kk
prepayments, deposits and other HEEWIE 2
receivables SREE 3,570 - 3,570
Amounts due from related parties e R E 5 43,259 - 43,259
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEZEED 148,679 - 148,679
At 31 December 2019 RZZT—NEF
R=H=1H 407,434 100,696 508,130
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

St AT IR Rl 5E

31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

40. RERETHERMTA (F)

CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities cTHERE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RS A AT BR Y
= h=Ri
RMB’000
ARETR
Trade and bills payables B RENFREREMNEE 53,861
Financial liabilities included FFAHMENRIBEREGRE A E
in other payables and accruals 4,586
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FRERITREAMLER
(excluding lease liabilities) (TBEEHEaR) 95,549
Lease liabilities HEaRE 646
At 31 December 2019 N-ZE—-NEFE+=-_A=+—8 154,642
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HERRZMEE

31 December 2019 —F—AF+-A=+—H

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. RERE SN EHMI A (&)
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
2018 —E-N\F
Financial assets TREE

Financial assets
designated as

Financial at fair value
assets at through profit
amortised cost or loss Total
BER
ZAFE
RE AR FFABEER
SR e MEE TREE T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT ARETT
Financial assets designated as at fair 57 A1z A FEFABZH
value through profit or loss CREE - 68,134 68,134
Trade and bills receivable Z %WEM& RIE K RN R E 137,277 - 137,277
Loan receivable FEWE K 50,000 = 50,000
Financial assets included FFATERNRIB - Ee Kk
in prepayments, deposits and HEMERGRIENSREE
other receivable 5,479 - 5,479
Amounts due from related parties JFE YL B & 75 IR 3,190 = 3,190
Pledged deposits BT 2,743 - 2,743
Cash and cash equivalents BehkReEEY 144,573 - 144,573
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF
—A E% 343,262 68,134 411,396
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

0. REREZTHEMTA (F)

TEMEE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

1R SN F 1 BR Y

cRaE

RMB’000

ARBTT

Trade payables B 5’ A 78,556

Amounts due to a related party e — R EBE R 38
Financial liabilities included STAEMBENRERESFTENEREE

in other payables and accruals 10,247

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FRERITREAMLE K 37,700

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+ZA=+—H 126,541

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety

At 31 December 2019, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed Bills”) with
a carrying amount of RMB16,431,000 (2018: RMB64,591,000)
to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers (the “Endorsement”). In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks relating to such Endorsed Bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts
of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including the sale, transfer
or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties. As at 31
December 2019, no trade payables settled by the Endorsed Bills
during the year have been recourse by the suppliers.

THEENER

VEPEARIERANCEECHEE

R-E-NAFE+-_A=+—B x£EER[H
ETHEBEZECEPBEANMRITEMRD
ETRUVZER(IEBSEEE]) EAEA
AR¥16,431,000L (Z T — \F: AR¥
64,591,0007T) " & BENZSHERNE
SENFBE(ZEE]) - EE2RAE £5H
ERBERTPABRELOGR BEFEZER
HEEZEMENRE SULHEETEERE
HEEZENEEEREHEEENE S EN
HIE -NEZEER FAESEVERBFEAES
EZEMNAMEN RERERNEME=S
HE BESIEHCEEZER-R-Z—NEF
+ZA=+—H EHEHERREERESE
ERFNMEENE S EMNFIEB-

KEBFAMEERAT 201065 239
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31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

Transfers of Financial Assets (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Derecognised Bills”)
to some of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers with a carrying amount in aggregate of
RMB13,487,000 (2018:RMB82,634,000). The Derecognised Bills
had a maturity of one to six months at the end of the reporting
period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right
of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating
to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full
carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills
is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors,
the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills are not significant.

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
did not recognise any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from the
Continuing Involvement, both during the years or cumulatively. The
endorsement has been made evenly throughout the years.
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40. RERETHERMTA (F)

THEENER ()

EXARULBEZNEBREHMEE ()

—E-AFE+_A=+—H AE@ERHESE
TFHERSECESTBERNDIBITERNE TIE
WEZEE(TERIEBRZRE])  AEBFZEMH
FEFm B REAAE SR A ARE13,487,0007T (=
:nﬁWEAﬁwwamwmmm 2 5 et

FIE ABEHR DR IFFERZIE N E HI
@%—iAMHomﬁ<¢¥AE LR E
) P EMIRITELY  MERIEERZED
BEANSAEEEEERE ([FE2H])-
EERE $¢la%&ﬁ@a RIEEREE
R AR R & O R Bt B &K JHEEM
Eﬂﬁﬁ%TF&ﬁﬁT%ﬁﬁ R IE Y 2 6
[EIRIER $%ll%%%ﬁaﬂ¢ﬁ%Tﬁ&%
EZEERIEBRAREMNRNBERSEEME
HEm/BERR AEREERE-EFR
A AEEBELADRIEBRAZENATE
YTEK-

BE_ZT-NFR_F-N\E+-A=1+—H
¢57'$¢llﬂﬁwa%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂi
FHHNEARERBE - RZEFELRGF
mE MEEIFELENBENBE-NE
EFEREEEHES -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, trade and bills
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, an amount
due to a related party, and amounts due from related parties
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the CFO and the board of directors. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements in
the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
the CFO.

The fair values of financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss require the directors to make estimates
about the expected future cash flows from future proceeds when
the investments mature and the fair values have been estimated
to be the principle plus estimated interest income. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at the
end of reporting period.

S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

M. EMITENLFERLAFEEBR

REEEFNG RehBAeEEY CSEFF
PBHREWGE EERRATFEFAER
MEMEE BEHRNREARENRR A
BNFR REREMEYFENSREE
FHARMENFIR B REANSBEE &
BRITREMBET BN —BEETRIBRE
WREET AN A EREREERS T8
FREEZEF AN HARRE-

MU BEERMTENAEREMEHREEEE
ERTANRTEAENHRRRIZF HHL
BEERNYBREREEFER NEHRSH
H - MBHdomeR ITABENEHIETRE
ARGEENETRBABE % EEHMBRAE
A RER -

BERBRAFEFABENEHEEN R FE
AHEFNREINNREREEAAFERESS
IR R W AR - $ R RAT S FIRRIEH R
KREREELE -EZRA FTAGHEY
BRRROMGE A FE (RFABENEER
TEEH)HBSE UANBRERRRRE
MEE -
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 41.

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Below is the significant unobservable input to the valuation of
financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December

%EIE%Q$E&Q$EE&
IIE

TXREERBEAFEFABENEREE
HEFHNERTIBEREAZRE ERAN_-F
—NFT A=t B EEHEMEIN:

2019:
Significant Sensitivity of fair
unobservable input Input value to the input
BEATAEEGASE BWAEE AT EHBARBENSRE
Financial assets designated Estimated return rate 7.00% 2% increase (decrease) in estimated
as at fair value through (EERERTES return rate would result in

profit or loss

increase (decrease) in fair value by

BEREAFET AEBRD RMB204,000
ERMEE fEstRIFHRE EF (T#)2%
1S E BN F{EIE N
U4 ) AR #204,0007T
Fair value hierarchy ANFEEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2019

TRHAARESRIANATEHEER:

BATENBNEE:

feln

W=B-AE+=A=+—8

Fair value measurement using

AFEHBER

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EERTHS TERN FUBREH

THE EZRARE EZSAEE

(F-8) (=4 (F=8) )
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR  ARETR ARETR ARETx

Financial assets designated as at EEARATEAERN
fair value through profit or loss: SREE:
Asset management agreement EEEEHE

- - 100,690 100,690
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41.

42.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

St AT IR Rl 5E

31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE M. TRITENAFERLAFEER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (%)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEFTEFEA (8)
As at 31 December 2018 R_ZE—-—N\F+-_HA=+—H
Fair value measurement using
ATEERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EEETS AERy  TAEEM
BERE EEHAEE ZEZGHAYE
(B—#) (B=8) (B=4) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Financial assets designated as at EE AN ESTABEDN

fair value through profit or loss: SRMEE:

Asset management agreement BEEERE - - 68,134 68,134
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FRN eMEEREREBEE —BRNE-R
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 AFEFEFRLEATEFEEE ME=R
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2018: Nil). MEAMBAREL (ZS—N\F &)
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair RZE-NEFRZZE—-NF+ZA=+—8"
value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. AEBBEFAAQATFENENEREE:
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42, TRIABEEBEERBER

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities, such as
trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarised below.

AEENTIEZERTAGREASRENEN -
ZEEMIANTIZENAEEAKELSE
A AEBEAELEHEMEREENE
B EAEEMEREENE S REHAERE
1t & U SR I DA K2 B 55 B A AR IR Ko H At FE A 3R
b1

AEBEAEIINERR ERARRNIRSHESEA
R-ARENRREEEEEZTRBMNERE
BR-BEFEgRNIAEEESEZSZRARD
BB - WS XAt -

KB R ERAR 2019F#H
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 7% (2018: 5%)
of the Group’s sales were denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the operating units making the sale,
whilst approximately 4% (2018: 5%) of costs were denominated in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities).

42 cRIREBEEERERBER (&)

S LB

AEEEHRHERAR - LERABRAKES
MAENEEEAINERETHEREER
EL - ARBEMEHEETNT% (ZT—\F:
5% ) AETTHE K2 B NI IASN
MEBEE BINELLI% (ZE—NF:5%)
MR A BRI TN RE BB IA SN B SHE

TRETNBERRMERMEERTTIER
BRAT AEERBMEN (HEKEERA
BRRAFESEBIBOBARBEZTNSIER
REE B G-

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in RMB rate before tax
ARMER RRBL AR R
EH (T #gm, OGfd)
RMB’000
ARBFT
2019 —E-hEF
If US$ weakens against RMB HETAARERE +10% (635)
If US$ strengthens against RMB HETAAREAE -10% 635
2018 —ZE-N\F
If US$ weakens against RMB WETHAREEE +10% (1,042)
If US$ strengthens against RMB METHAREHE -10% 1,042
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank and other borrowings (note 28). Management
monitors the interest rate exposures and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposures should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relates
to pledged bank deposits and bank balances carried at prevailing
market rates. However, such exposure is minimal to the Group as
these bank balances are all short-term in nature.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of the interest rate as stipulated by the People’s
Bank of China arising from the Group’s RMB borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank and other
borrowings, which is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year.

S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

42. TREREEEEREE (&)

R E R

AEBETHHARTERITREMESR (ME
) MBS RNEXRR - EEBERNEAR
THEEFEREBEHPEANERER -

AEETESARIZRTHENEFENE K
RRITERLIBITERNRERFEE R - R
e ARZERTERO/EHEE WA
2B 1 A SR [ 1 = AR A

AEENBRERNEXEARI2EPRAEEHA
REBEELN BPBRARRITIIHOAN X
IR

BT BURKE 5 17 T3 IR 5% 8 SR 1T R K A 5 B
R BRI EEE * 16U 7B AR 925 20
RZABEREEBERERNREE.
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31 December 2019 —ZE—hAEFE+_-_A=+—H

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

42 cRIREBEEERERBER (&)

Interest rate risk (Continued) FlZ=Ek (&)

TRETIBEMEERFIENBERLT &
SEBRBAMNENERIBNNEEENTERAN
SEEZEHNENSIBTREBNGURIL-

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax through the impact on
floating rate borrowings and the Group’s equity.

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points profit before tax
Bagm BREL AR R
(R 2) #m Cmd)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
2019 =E-NF
RMB ARHE +50 (357)
Hong Kong dollar BT +50 (3)
RMB AR -50 357
Hong Kong dollar BT -50 3
2018 —E-N\F
RMB AR +50 (136)
Hong Kong dollar BT +50 -
RMB ARHE -50 136
Hong Kong dollar BT -50 -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group trades mainly with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis. For transactions that are not denominated in the functional
currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer
credit terms without the specific approval of senior management.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged short-term deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, other receivables
and amounts due from related parties, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty and by
geographical region. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s
trade receivables are widely dispersed in different regions.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables and contract assets are
disclosed in note 21 and 23, respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

S5 IR R MIEE
31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

42. TREREEEEREE (&)

AR

AEETRERANAEREENENE=TE
TR5 -AEENBRREMEEEAEERR
SRNEFPHAKBEERZZF LI T
BEFRBRSREH HRUFFNERAEEE
RN ERETOR S AEETEERE
SREEERNIZETIREEE]

rEBEMeREE (BRASIREE
Y EEMERGFR BAFEFABENS
BEE - H M EMCRIR R W& 0T FRIR) Y
ERRRRNEF RN TARBRHEFRZ
EFTAMER@E-

HRARBEREGMEEREENENE=S
ETRS REFEMERR ST EARR
BEF/HFAURBEER - AR ASEE
SRBFENTPED RN &M AmAKE
VESAEFEAAR-

EEAEBNEZERFBRENEENTER
R EE— T EBIED BN E HTERERW
F21 23 E -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42. cRiEMEEEERBE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk REE SRR
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring AEBNLEERDESRE T AERESE
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its FEB W TARNZEEMIARSMEE
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) (B SEWFKIE)MEEA  YBAEEESE
and projected cash flows from operations. FIRERE -
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity AEEMNEER@BATARTEREESNE
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans. BUHERBEEZBERFEG-
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at each RERERH REEZREOKRTHEFESE S
reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, MemaEnE8gRaT:
is as follows:
31 December 2019 —E-hE+=ZHA=+—H
On
demand
or within 1to5 Over 5
one year years years Total
-FR —FEHE BBARE @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ETR ARBTR ARBTR
Trade payables BIEMNFHE 53,861 - - 53,861
Financial liabilities included STAE MR HUE R
in other payables and accruals EREMSBARE 4,586 - - 4,586
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HERTEE
(excluding lease liabilties) (TR5HEER) 30,686 20,130 72,279 123,095
Lease liabilties HEARE 726 103 - 829
89,859 20,233 72,279 182,371
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St AT IR Rl 5E

31 December 2019 —ZT— A& +=-_A=+—H

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
debt to total shareholders’ equity. Total debt includes interesting
bank borrowings. Total shareholders’ equity comprises all
components of equity attributable to owners of the parent. The
Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 cREMEBEEEZERBEEK (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESRER (&)
31 December 2018 —E-N\F+=ZA=+—8H
On
demand or
with in 1t05 Over 5
one year years years Total
REXY
—FR —FERF BBRE Bt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Trade and bills payables BORNFERENREER 78,556 - - 78,556
Amounts due to a related party ER—2BERHE 38 - - 38
Financial liabilities included in STAE MR FUER
other payables and accruals EREMSBARE 10,247 = = 10,247
Interest-bearing bank and FERITREMBER
other borrowings 38,594 - - 38,594
127,435 - - 127,435
Capital management EXREE

AEEEAERN IR ABRBRASESE
REMEN RRFRIEFNEEFS RBRNE
REER AXHEEHRERERRMERK
fee

AEBERBSCERINECREBREENR
SREIREIEEERNERBUIEL AR - B
SABERER ARETREAZRRNT TRE
R E  MREEREERNLBEITHRG - A&
EHEETEMPRENHERER - HEZ
E-NF+-A=t+—HEZZE—N\F+=A
=t+—HUIEFE EEEANBEEZE BERHIE
Fr I 48 5% HE 4L o

AEBEFEREANBFELE (REKABERIAK
RESAEE)ERER B AR
BRITEE - BRREDLECLESQAEEA
FEMEIEZRA P A R e REBH R R RS E R
BELRERESEKF-

KB R ERAR 2019F#H
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S HERRZMEE

31 December 2019 —Z&—

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIOATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

(b)

NET=—A=+—H

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
had acquired certain subsidiaries by shares consideration.
Details of the acquisition are set out in note 35 and 36 to the

43. EHRERERME

FEIRERS

REE_—T—

NFE+=-ZA=1+—B1tHF

B AEEDEBROKERES THE
NE - WEEREZFBEHNE G BHRER

consolidated financial statement. P 5E35%2.36.
Changes in liabilities arising from (b)) BEITHELENEEEH
financing activities
2019 —E-hEF
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
RITEE HEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+ZHA=+—H 37,700 -
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 RN BIBR B 75 45 ZE
F16R 2 & - 941
At 1 January 2019 —nF—A—H 37,700 941
Changes from financing cash flows MERSNEZ S 106,693 (1,046)
New leases FrigEE - 950
Foreign exchange movement b H & B 48 24
Interest expense MERXZ - 78
Interest paid classified PRAKEREREZENFE
as operating cash flows - (78)
Acquisition of subsidiaries not under U B IE 2L RIZE 5 T B9 BT B A )
common control (note 35) (FHI7E35) 1,108
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HEMRBAR (MaE11) (50,000) (223)
At 31 December W+—R=+—8 95,549 646
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIOATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SRR IR R Bl 5
31 December 2019 —ZE— A&+ =-_A=+—H

43. SR REBRMEE (&)

(b) REEBELENEESE (F)

2018 —E-N\F
Bank borrowings
RITIEE
RMB’000
AREFIT
At 1 January n—H—H 15,000
Changes from financing cash flows BER S REE 22,700
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 37,700

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEELENEESRHARE

2019
—E-hEF
RMB’000
ARBT T
Within operating activities AL TEE R 78
Within financing activities RE & EE 1,046
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 1,124
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44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD

(i) On 5 March 2020, the Company entered into a letter of
intent (the “Lol”) with Bagan Investment Limited (“Bagan”).
Pursuant to the Lol, the Company and Bagan proposed to
form a joint venture company (the “JV Company”). Upon
the incorporation of the JV Company, the JV Company shall
be owned by the Company and Bagan as to approximately
60% and 40%, respectively. The JV Company shall be
principally engaged in the development, investment,
operation and management of hydra-related projects, in
particular regarding water supply and wastewater treatment,
in the Southeast Asia (the “Proposed Cooperation”).

(i) The wide spread of the novel Coronavirus in China since
the beginning of 2020 is a fluid and challenging situation
facing all the industries of the society. The Group has already
assessed the overall impact of the situation on the operation
of the Group and taken all possible effective measures to
limit and keep the impact in control. The Group will keep
continuous attention on the change of situation and make
timely response and adjustments in the future. The Group
does not have other significant subsequent events.

45. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative statement of profit or loss has been re-presented
as if the operation discontinued during the current year had been
discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period (note 11).
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() MZZE-_ZTF=AAHAB'AK27F KBagan
Investment Limited ([Bagan ] )zl 32 &
mE([EmME]) BEEME XA
Al M Bagan#i KA E AR ([E& D
all) cREERRIFMAMLE  ARA]
K Bagan® BB G & 2 5 4960% &
40% - AE QBT BN RB RN EME-
HE ZBBENEERBARSKMEBER -
LEREBKERERSKERE ([EHE
1) o

(i) BZZ_TFIRTBERENONTRS
FIRZE SHERTIELRBRR
TEEERKBENERE - NEED FA
BRI BHASEEENBESE W
BA BRI — B B pe sk AR R IE I A
BEE -rEESFKERIVEEDY
REREEIEHESE R FHE AEEL
BHMBARESHIRER-
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31 December 2019 —ZE— A&+ =-_A=+—H

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  46. A2 "Ry BT B AR e &
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the AARRRMEPRPBEARAKROERDOT
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2019 2018
s —T-N\#F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR HRE 1,092,080 144,967
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS IR EELAEE 1,092,080 144,967
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables ~ FafI 5 E %4 &
H b fE 5k IE 193 188
Cash and cash equivalents BehReEEYD 19,678 1,240
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS MBNVEEERE 19,871 1,428
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEARE
Other payables, advances from HMENFIE BEFRERK
customers and accruals JEETRIA 1,152 1,863
Due to subsidiaries JFEASHFT B A B FRIE 211,650 11,439
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES mENB BB 212,802 13,302
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES MENBEFE (192,931) (11,874)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #&ERRE A& 899,149 133,093
NET ASSETS FEE 899,149 133,093
EQUITY R
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO FNTHEE AEGEZR
OWNERS OF THE PARENT
Share capital & As 6,217 3,121
Share premium f&19 4 B 886,872 130,657
Other reserves HFEE 6,060 (685)
TOTAL EQUITY e 4A%E 899,149 133,093
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  46. &7 ] HY Bt AR & ()
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note: B 5
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AREHEENRENT
Foreign Equity-
currency settled
Share Share  Accumulated translation  arrangement
capital premium losses* reserve* reserve*  Total equity
HMERE BEEE
B& RHEE ES 3y R RURE  RRER

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARETR

At1 January 2018 R=E-\F-A—H 3,173 173,359 (23,190) 9,280 14,976 177,598
Loss for the year FREB = - (5,835) - - (5,835)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FRABZERA:
Exchange differences on BERNEBNES 2T
translation of foreign operations = = = 5,669 = 5,669
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEARALE - - (5,835) 5,669 - (166)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company AR AR EX TR & - (26,285) - - = (26,265)
Shares repurchased and cancelled BT 2R (82) (22,299) - - - (22,381)
Exercise of share options TR RE 30 5,882 = = 2,110) 3,802
Equity-settled share option arrangements Rt Emp gL - - - - 525 525
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1+-H
kZE-N5-A—-H 3,121 130,657 (29,025) 14,949 13,391 133,093
Profit for the year EREF - - 5,867 - - 5,867
Other comprehensive income for the year: FRERZERA:
Exchange differences on translation of AERNEBNERER
foreign operations - - - 2,429 - 2,429
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZAKALE - - 5,867 2,429 - 8,206
Acquisition of assets and liabilties through EYERBLAANEEERAR
acaquisition of subsidliaries 2,390 609,451 - - - 611,841
Acquisition of subsidiaries not under WEEELREH THMBAR
common control 685 170,455 - - - 171,140
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ~ RAA AR R TR & - (27,951) - - - (27,951)
Exercise of share options iR E 21 4,260 - - (1,551) 2,730
At 31 December 2019 R-2-NE+-A=+-8 6217 886,872 (23,158) 17,378 11,840 899,149
* These reserve accounts comprise the other reserves of * ZEREREEARRRMER R TR AN EA
RMB6,060,000 (2018: negative other reserve of RMB685,000) & AR #6,060,000C (ZE— N\F:BE
in the statement of financial position of the Company. H b 7% # A R #685,0007T ) °
47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 47. HET B IHRR
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue HEHMERERZZEEF=A=1T—HEE=Z
by the board of directors on 31 March 2020. A R TR o
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Five-year Financial Summary
hF RISt S

RESULTS E

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-RA=+-HLEE

Adjusted
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E2-NE —Z-N\E ZZ—+F ZZ-RF “T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT AREF ARETR ARBTR
(Represent)
(&E5)
Revenue from continuing operations 5 @& & £ % W& 306,539 206,420 647,811 580,651 491,165
Gross profit from continuing BELSEEREAR
operations 102,454 89,987 180,159 167,205 141,423
Operating profit mE R 69,615 73,071 121,563 111,632 83,346
Finance costs BERAK (1,005) (297) (766) (1,350) (975)
Profit before tax BB ATER 68,610 72,774 120,797 110,282 82,371
Income tax expense FrEsimx (17,597) (15,252) (22,347) 21,711) (18,578)
Profit from continuing operations 5 @& & £ %5 51,013 57,522 98,450 88,571 63,793
Gain/(loss) for a discontinued RIEEEEBE
operation (B#E) 84,035 29,157 = = 363
Profit for the year FRHEF 135,048 29,157 98,450 88,571 64,156
Attributable to: BAT RS R -
Shareholders of the Company ARAERRR 113,895 80,751 92,144 79,128 56,230
Non-controlling interests FERER 21,153 5,928 6,306 9,443 7,926
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (RMB cents per share) ERX(BRAR¥ES) 16.4 20.4 23.0 19.8 141
Diluted (RMB cents per share) %8 (SRAE%S) 16.2 19.9 27 19.7 140
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hERFItE
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
As at 31 December
Rt=A=t-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-NF —E-N\F —T—+F —E—REF —T-1F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT AREFL ARETL ARBT
Non-current assets ERBEE 920,649 268,953 266,514 188,299 182,954
Current assets RBEE 740,712 532,173 534,436 484,533 363,716
Total assets mEE 1,661,361 801,126 800,950 672,832 546,670
Current liabilities hEBaE (132,772 (179,716) (217,143) (158,387) (110,970)
Non-current liabilities kRBaE (91,549) (21,496) (18,950) (17,232) (15,608)
Total liabilities BEME (224,321) (201,212) (236,093) (175,619) (126,578)
EQUITY v
Equity attributable to AARIRREGER
shareholders of the Company 1,437,040 556,198 518,806 448,068 381,470
Non-controling interests R - 43,716 46,051 49,145 38,622
Total equity EReHE 1,437,040 599,914 564,857 497,213 420,092
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